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Our driving ambition

is to enrich the lives of our
customers so that they can
experience retirement
living to the fulll
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Strategic and
Operational Highlights

40 years

40 years since the cpening of the first McCarthy
& Stone retirement development at Waverley
Hause, New Milton, in October 1977

75 sites added
to the land bank

75 high-quahty development sites added to
the land bank {FY16 65 sites) Total land bank
of 9,967 plots (FY16 10,186 plots), eguivalent
to 4 3 years' supply (FY16 4 4 years’ supply)

Access to
the growing
rental market

New strategic relationship wath PP Capial’
allowing access the growing rental market

Workflow on track

Workflow on track to support growth strategy
andg deliver c B0 new sales releases in FY18
(FY17 52 sales releases)
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Five Star rating

Awarded full Frve Star rating for customer
satisfaction by the Home Builders Federation
(HBF for the twelfth consecutive year - the
only UK housebutider of any size or type to
achigve this accolade

3,000 units
medium-term

Sufficient land under control and operational
platform now fully in place to deliver strategic
objective of bulding and selhng mere than
3,000 units per annum over the medium-term

15 Quality Awards

15 Qualty Awards (FY16 10 awards), 7 Seals

of Excellence {FY16 2 Seals of £xcellence) and

1 Regronal Winner at the 2017 Nauonal House
Bulding Counal (NHBC) Pride in the Job awards
underpinning exceptional build quality



Financial
Highlights

Revenue

STRATEGIC REPORT

Legal completions'
Units
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Average selling price?
£k

£66O 9m

660.9

Gross profit
£m

2 ,302

Operating profit
£m

£273k
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Underlying profit before tax®
Emr

£130.7m
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Tangible net asset valua?

£94.2m

FYt7

Return on capital employed?
*

£94.1m
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Year-end net cash/{debt)?

1 Excluding commerciol umts
2 See poge 158 for giossary of terms

16%

£30.7m
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Our Business

Retirement living to the full

Graphic rermnoved

We are the sector leader with
more than a 70%' share of the
owner-occupied retirement
housing market

1 Bosed on 4,778 ceaistitiions 4f rross feaura propeities sperifically
desigred for ihe eidern with the NHBC during |18 toonth period ended tmage
3 june 2017 of which 3 684 were repistere by e Carthy & Sione ! Bowes Lyon Court, Paupdbury
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STRATEGIC REPORT

We place our customers’ and homeowners’
needs at the heart of everything we do and have
an unparalleled understanding of our market

as the only listed national housebuilder to focus
exclusively on the needs of older people

Our model

Our modet s based on buying land,
securing detailed planning censent and
then bullding and selling high-guality
retirement developments Importantly,
we then take on the management of our
developments and provide a range of
property maintenance, support and care
sarvices to helg enrich the Iives of our
homeowners

Our customers

Qur customers are looking to maintain
ther independence with private hame
ownership but also want companionship,
a little more assistance with everyday
tasks and the knowledge that support

15 on hand should it be needed B
providing well-designed and well-located
housing with on-site suppaort services,
we are able to cater for a wide range of
needs and help our customers live
healthier and happrer lives

o

Graphicremovad
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Customer satisfaction

tn March 2017, we again received

the full Five Star award for customer
satisfaction for our products and
services In the independent survey

by the HBF and NHBC We are the only
housebuilder of any size or type to
have achieved this accolade for twelve
caonsecutive years The HBF's yearly
questionnaire 1s one of the largest
customer surveys, totalling 52,290
purchasers of a new home in 2016
More than 90% of the 1,433 custemers
who completed the survey were happy
to recommend us

We dre pleased that almast nine out

of ten of our customers also feei that
moving te one of our developments
has impraved their quality of Iife

As well as the general ifestyle we
provide, thrs i1s testament to our sales
appreach and management services
offering that ensures homeowners aind
their farmulies are supported and guided
through the purchasing process and
recerve all the support they need whilz
Iving with us

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Our Business continued

Our 40th year
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2017 marks 40 years since the openng of
McCarthy & Stone’s first retirernent development
at Waverley House, New Milton, ir October 1877
We are proud of our subsequent record of
achievemnents and success, which gves us
unnvalied expertise m this sector

McCarthy & Stone ploneered the retirement
housing sector for homeowners after seeing a
gap i the market, and we have since enniched
the Ives of tens of thausands of older people
and their farmilies We have built and sold over
54,000 apartments across ¢ 1,200 developments

Fur more rgormoinn o wlr puetiership th RYS and how fodonate
10 the COMPED, please viste sy mecarthygndstone ca wkieg
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Ta celebrate qur 40th anmversary, we have
partrered with the Royal Volunzary Service (RVS')
for 2017, which also has a long history of
supporung older people Our staff have raiseq
more than £200,000 for this worthy cause during
2017 wia 3 wide range of actavities from dragon boat
races and chanity balls to parachute jumps in Dukai
We Intend o continue this fundraising INto FY18

we would like to thank our dedicated employees,

as well as our homeowners and our suppliers who
have helped us reach this milestone

oo You
KNCQW?

TOTE

than c.1,200 developrr
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Our awards

Our position as the UK's leading
retirement housebuilder and our
ambition to enrich the lives of our
custormers and homeowners are further
evidenced by the awards that we have won
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The only housebuilder ta receive the
fult Five Star rating from the HBF for
12 consecutive years

HBF/Housebulder awards - Best
Retirerment Scheme for Ramsay Grange
and Lyle Court in Edinburgh, and Best
Customer Satisfaction Initiative

Pride in the job - 15 site managers won
the coveted Pricle i the job Award from
the NHBC, a 50% increase on last year
n addition, 7 site managers won Seals
of Excellence and 1 Regional Winner

£ Housebuttder Awarats L R Dawd Bridges, Group Mocketing & LUsTomer
1 xperience Mnrertor wat e South LOST TEGIONM (201 receiving ihe
Hiausebuwider Axord from arcor fames Nesbirt

]

2016 Management Today - Featured
in the st of Britain's Most Adrnired
raphix removed Comparugs
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2017 ARMAACE awards - Highly
raphic removed Commended for On-Site House
Manager of the Year

o

- Three national awards, including the
Innavation Award

T Buiding Safety Group ('BSG") awards

——1 WhatHouse? awards - Bronze In the
*aphictemeved — Best Renrement Scheme category
- for Constance Place, Knebworth

m—_xr
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Chairman's Statement

On track to deliver our
medium-term growth objective

- N re—

£660.9m

{FY16' £635.9m)

Graphic removad
vidend, pence per share

5.4 pence

{FY16, 4 5 pence)

L ]

John White, Group Non-Executive Chairman | am pleased to present our second set
of full year results since re-jomning the
London Stock Exchange in November
2015 The Group delivered a solid
performance this year natwithstanding
the headwinds experenced as a result
of increased pahitical and econamic
uncerlanty Revenue ing eased (o a
record £661m (F¥16 £636m) and the
Group conunued to capitalise on the
attractive demagraphic opportunity
and structural shortage of supply
of retrermnent housing in the UK As
previously announced, trading in the
first six months of FY¥17 was constrained
by the lower forward order book
brought inta the year wnpacted by the
market uncertanty following the EL
Referendum Trading in the second half
of FY17 saw an \mﬁro\/ement dueto
an increased weighting of completions
from newer higher margn sites,
reflecting the qualty and lecation
of the developments McCarthy &
Stone Is naw bringing to rmarket

Profit Before Tax reduced from £93m in
FY16 to £92m in FY17 with Underlying
Profit Before Tax reducing from £105m
n FYi6 to £94m in FY17 This reguction
it profitapiity was rnamgf driven by the
age and mix of units sold, increased

10 McCarthy & Stone pic



ncentive costs, build cost ncreases
offset by pricang improvements, some
additonal land renegotiation costs as we
repositianed our land bank in the face
of more challenging market conditions
and our conbinued investment in
regonal operational infrastructure

to support our growth strategy

The Group rermains the UK's ieading
retirement housebuilder with a greater
than 70% share of the owner-occupied
market Our strength of brand and
continual striving for operational
excellence ensures that we can continue
to deliver solid resutts in a challenging
market without any support from the
Government Help To Buy scheme

We have astrong and expenienced
management tearn that is focused

on delivering the Group's strategic
objectives, a bugh-quality land bank, a
roéust balance sheet and the necessary
operational expertise and nfrastructure
in place (o deliver our medium-term
growth strategy of buliding and seling
maore than 3,000 units per annum

We continue to fead the housebulding
sector on gustomer satsfaction we
are the only housebuilder of any size

or type to have received the full Five
Star raung i the Home Builders
Federation customer satisfaction
survey for twelve consecutive years, in
which more than 90% of our customers
would recommend us to a friend

Outlook

The improvement of forward sales
experienced throughout the year has
continued into FY18 with total forward
sales including iegal completons since
1 September 2017 standing at £277m
at 10 Novermmber 2017 (FY17 £250m)

Economic and

political environment

The underlying housing market
continues to be supported by low
interest rates, good mortgage avatliability
and low levels of unemployment

The market for retrermnent housing
also remains highly attractwe,
underpinned by strong dermand, albait
the secondary market was impacted
by pohbical and economic uncertainty
Research by the Department for
Communioes and Local Government
¥DCLG') recognises that around 74% of
household growth in the UK ta 2039

is expected to come from those aged
65 and over and McCarthy & Stone
remams urmguely placed to capitalise
on this unprecedented demagraphic
opportunity Inwhich demand continues
te dramatically exceed supply

STRATEGIC REPORT

Dividend

The Group’s solid performance this year
has enabled the Directors to propose
afinal dwidend of 3 6 pence per share
This follaws the mntenm dividend of 18
pence per share, gving a total dividend
for the year of 5 4 pence per share
(FY16 4 5 pence per share pro-rated for
period since ksung}, which represents
20% growth an the FY16 dvidend and
15 In line with our progressive dividend
policy as stated at the time of our inital
Public Offering (IPO%

Board changes
There were a number of Board changes
dunng the year

On & January 2017, we were pleased

o anncunce the appomntment of
Rowan Baker as the Group’s Chief
Financial Officer Rowan was previously
Group Financial Contraller and has
warked for the Group since January
2012 She took aver the rale from

Nick Maddock whose resignation

was announced on 11 October 2016

On 1 June 2017, we announced the
appointment of John Tonkiss as the
Group's Chief Operating Officer This
role has been created wo help drive
the Group's growth strategy A key
part of the role waill be overseeing the
conunued development of the Group's
nine reglonal operations across the
UK John joined McCarthy & Stene in
2014 and was previously the Group’s
National Qperatigns Director

In addition to thus, John Carter joined
the Board on 1 Octaber 2017 John
15 currently Chief Executive of Travis
Perians ple, which owns many of the
building rdustry’s most poputar
brands and spans the trade, home
improvement and DIY markets John
Joned Traws Perlans i 1978 and helg
a number of senior strategic roles
within the business befare being
appointed as Chief Executive 1n 2014

Finally, on 9 November 2017 we were
pleased to announce the sppointment
Paul Lester CBE as a Non-Executve
Director and Chairman Designate

He will join the Board on 3 January

2018 and, subject to his election by
shareholders, will take over from me

as Chairman at the conclusion cf the
Cormpany's next Annual Gereral Meeting
FAGMY N January 2018 Paul s currently
Chairman of Essentra plc and Forterra
plc and was forrnerly a director of
Invensys plc Previcusly, he was Group
Managing Director of Balfour Beatty plc
before becaming Chief Executive

1 The Depariment for Communiies und Locol Governmenmt

IDCLG) hovsehald prajections Englend (hely 2016)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Our medium-term strategic
targel is to buitd and sell
O urits per annom

image | Birch Court, Momiston

of support services company VT Group
picin 2002 Paul was also Chairman of
John Laing Infrastructure Fund untit
Seprember this year

We are very pleased that Paul wili be
|eirung the McCarthy & Stone Board
and succeeding me as Chairman
McCarthy & Stone 1s & great business
and | am proud to have served on the
Board during a transformational period
for the Company, culminatng in its
successful IPO 0 2015 While market
uncertanty following recent poltical
everts has acted as a stern test for
our business model, | am pleased that
our high-quality product and excellent
team led by Clive Fenton have proved
McCarthy & Stone’s resifience

The Company remains umaquely-placed
to capialise on the substantial growth
appartunity N retirement housing,
driven by a rapidly ageing population,
and the tearn can look to the future with
confidence The Group has made solid
progress towards achieving Its strategic
objectives this year and my thanks go to
all employees, the management team
and my fellow Board members for the
significant contribuvon they have made

John White
Group Non-Executive Chalrman
13 Novermnber 2017

ol LA
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Our Market

Attractive demographic opportunity

Graphic remaved

There is a structural shortage of

suitable housing options for older

people and more retirement

housing is needed for the UK's r -]
rapidly ageing population
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Our market

The UK population stands at its highest
ever at 65 &6m' and continues to get clder
There are currently 11 8m’ pecple aged
65 or over, nsing to 17 3m? by 2037 - a
47% increase For those aged 85 or over,
the increase will be larger, from 1 6m"

1o 3 0m? by 2037, an increase of 88%
This will place Increasing pressure on
the housing systemn and care providers
The BCLG estmates that 74% of all
household growth to 2032 will corne
from purchases made by older people?

Structural shartage of supply

There also remains a structural shortage
in the supply of specialist houstng for
older people Just 4,778 regisiratons of
retirement properties were made with
the NHBC during the 18 month period
ended 30 |une 2017, and there have only
ever been ¢ 157,000° units of owner
occupied retirement housing built in the
UKto date Property consultancy Knight
Frank estimates that the UK 1s buiiding
just ¢ 5,500 units of retirement housing
across all tenures each year, and yet the
sector has the capacity (o grow 10

€ 30,000 units per annume

This undersupply 15 1n part due o the
very high barriers to entry in this sector,
meaning few providers operate at scale
AS 3 resdlt, we Contirue to mantam our
¢ 70% share of the owner-occupied
retirement housing market®

This is set against the backdrop of

a wider housing shortage Intotal,
153,3707 new homes were started N
England dunng 2016 (a 5% Increase
year-on-year), although estimates
suggest that up to 300,000 new homes
are needed per year®, creating a
yearly shortfall of half this amount

Downsizing

There are also a significant number

of older peopie locking to downsize
Research by YouGov for McCarthy

& Stone in 2017 found that 38% of
clder people are looking to move to

a smaller property, and an additonal
0% would be encouraged to move
with a stamp duty exermnption, equalling
48% - a rise of 4% from the prior year?

Office for Natonal Stonstecs (ONS], Overview of
the UK pepuldtion (il 2617

ONS, 2017 (2016 based) populotion projections
Deporiterrent for Communities ond Locol
Government (DCLG), 2074-based household
projechons Englond, 2014-3G3%

4 Bused on 4,778 regnlrations of cross-fenure
progerties specifically destgned for the elderi
with the NHBC during 18 month period ended
30 june 2077, of which 3,684 wete registered
to MeCarthy & Srone

w A
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Demand driven by strong fundamentals

UK population:

65.6M people’

of which T1.8m

are 65 years old or over?

Of which 29%, or 3.4M
have equity of £250k-£500k"®

v

Of which 38%, or

<1.3m

are considering downsizing®
- our target demographic"

Compares with just

157k

owner cccupied retirement
properties built in the UK®

With a 47% predicted increase
n those aged 65 or over by 20372

TG ONS, futal nousing acolth by regon and age
group (2073)

11 Gur lorgel dermogroptne group 15 disctissed further
1 Our Products and Our Liestyle’ on peges 16 25

-

EAC dentg based pn pwner-cecupied reprement
housing (2017}

Krught Fronk Retiremnent Housing, 2016
DCLG, 2017, Housig starts bit 9 year high
The House of Lords Feonomic Affarrs seleq
commutee 2076, Englangd needs to buld
700,000 homes a year

Youow, 2017, rescorch provded by YouGov
Jor McCarthy ond Stone

~ ™

@

)
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Government support

Positively, the Governiment continues (o seek ways (o longer and recuces costs to the health and social care system
encourage the retirement housing sector The Housing It also notes that helping older people to move at the right ime
Whute Paper, 'Fixing our broken housing market,’ pubhshed in and = the nght way impraves therr guality of ife and frees up
February 2017, recognises that offering older people a betrer more homes for other buyers ncluding those much needed

chaice of accommaodation helps them to live independenty for  for families

Housing White Paper in summary

The White Paper contained a number |_ —l
of positive proposals for our business:

= Ageneral commitment ta explore ways to stimulate
the market to deliver new homes for older people -
recognising that this sector is worth supporting

= Anew statutory duty on the DCLG Secretary of State
to produce planning guldance for local authorities on
meeting the housing needs of older peaple
Graphic removed
» For the first time, itis now official Government
olicy to logk at incentives to help older
omecwRers move

Other positive measures included

s Clear drive to support hausebuilding

= Strengthening the presumption in favour of developing
brownfield land

» Greater support for small 'windfall' sices

= Support for higher density development in wrban
locations well served by public transport

n More pressure on local authorines to meet ther |_ J
housing targets

image
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Rt Hon Sy hivn MP wmth homeowners i Boberey Pace Gromsgrove

DID ¥OU
KNOW?

160,000

built
year in England We need o build
5000« 000 or mure homes
2 &> LR with population
veh ard start to tackie years of
er supply
1 Fixeng our brokeh housing marker, Bepa tment for
Lommunities and tocal Govetnment 2 Fehruary 2617
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Qur Products

16

Graphic removed

Three unique housing options,
catering exclusively for older people

We offer well-designed apartments

in stunning locations, where every

detail has been carefully thought Graphic ramoved
through with our customers’

needs in mind, from access to local

amenities to internal layouts and

fixtures and fittings, and combined

with just the right level of service

L

images
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PRODUCTS

OUR
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Retirement Living

For more info see pages 1819

Independence with peace of mind

" Mimimum age 60

® Typical number of aparements per site 30-50

= FY17 completions 1722 (75% of total completions in the year),
{FY16 1,511, 66%)

8 Lanrd bank 5684 umits {57% of toral land bank a1 the year end),
(FY*6 6,303 unis, 52%)

® House manager and shared facilities, including hormeowners' lounge
and guest suite

Retirement Living Plus
{previously Assisted Living)

For more Info see pages 20-21

A retirement apartment you own with flexible care and support

= Mimumage 70

» Typical number of apartments per site 50-70

= FY17 complegons 479 (2% of (otal completions in the year),
(FY16 697, 30%)

& land bank 3,598 unis {36% of total lend bank at the year end),
(FY16 3,094 units, 30%)

® Simifar services to Retirement Living, but also includes full estate
management fearn, restaurant or oistro, domestic support and ‘lexible
care packages, among other faclities and services

Lifestyle Living

{previously Ortus Homes}

For more mfo see pages 22-23

-

Downsize for your leisure years

» Mimimum age 55

® Typical number of apartments per site 20-40

m F¥17 completions 101 (4% of total comptetions i the year),
(FY16 88, 4%)

= |and bank 685 units (79 of total land bank at the year end),
{FY16 789 units, 8%)

= Visming NOUSe Manager

Graphic removed

_
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Our Products

Retirement Living

Independence
with peace
of mind

Graphic removed
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Our Retirement Living developments
provide high-guality apartments for

homeowners aged 60 and over

Key features

W For those aged 60+

B Cn-site house manager

& Homeowners' lounge

W Guest suite

B Extensive landscaped grounds
B Lifettme Homes Standard’

B Typically 30-50 apartments

Apartments feature one or twe
bedroams, spacous lounges, fifted
kitchens, lifts ta all floors, level access,
extra storage, en-suite bathrooms
and, tytpu:ally, private outside space
in the form of balcones, terraces or
patios. Every aspect 1s specifically
desigred with our customers in mind,
fraem the slip-rasistant floonng in the
bathrooms, and the lever taps for
easier operation, to the etectric plug
sockets at waist height.

In addition, the developments have
camera-door entry and a 24-hour
emergency call system with pendant
alarms, They alsa feature a large
amount of communal space to help
build comparienship, including a
shared lounge, guest suite 1o
accommodate wisiting family and
friends, and landscaped grounds

Qur site-based house managers
ﬁrowde help and assistance for

omeowners and are responsible
for the day-to-day running of
each devefcpment,

image
T D Tree Joun Humngdon

et ifersme Homss Siandord .§

a SEries of sixteen desipn ootera

AEngeg (G Inake OMES MoNe Sy
aduptabic far etime use of mMiama Losi

36

New Retirernent Living
developments sajes
released in FY17 (FY16: 49)

1,722

Units sold in FY17 (FY16: 1,511)

c.57%

Ofland bank (FY16: 62%)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Case study
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Our Products
Retirement Living Plus

I Aretirement

apartment you
own with flexible
care and support

&Graphic ramoved
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Our Retirement Living Plus developments

(previously Assisted Living) are
exclusively for customers aged

Key features

W For those aged 70+

M Estate manager and on-site team
& Homeowners' lounge

@ Restaurant/bistro, well-being suite
M Wheelchair Accessibiity Standards
W {QC registered, 24-hour support
B Typically 50-70 apartments

Qur Retirement Living Plus developments
offer a retirement apartment with
management services, domestic
assistance and personal care It1s an
attractive zlternanive for people seeking
additional support whilst maintaining
their Independence.

Developments are similar to Retirement
Living but have a number of additional
features, including a full table-service
restaurant or bistro with meals freshly

repared en-site, a function room,
aundry, and secure mobility scooter
store room.

There is also a dedicated estate
management team on-site 24 hours

a day, 365 days a year, which s led

by the estate manager. They provide
extra support If and when it 15 needed,
whether 1t 15 shopping, cleaning or
more care services. Tallored and
flexible care and support packages
mean homeowners only pay for the
additisnal help they use

tmoge
ToAatne f ot Sidfrun

designed
70 and over

! See page 158 for giossary of terms

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Case study

12

New Retirement Living Plus
developments sales released
in EY17 (FY16: 10)

479

Units sold in £Y17 (FY16: 697)

Rowena Hampion
B R :

C.36%

Of land bank (FY16° 30%)
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Our Products

Lifestyle Living

Downsize for
your leisure
years

22 McCarthy & Stone plc
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Lifestyle Living (previously Ortus Homes) is
our product for customers aged 55 and over

Key features

M For those aged 55+

MW High-quaiity, low-mamntenance

B Prestigious locations, 2/3 bedrooms
@ Increased space and car parking

B Open-plan living

W Visiing manager on-call

W Typically 20-40 apartments

Lifestyle Living is our product for
customers aged 55 and over looking
to downsize into modern, hegh-guality
and low-maintenance apartments in
prestigious focations, Developrents
typically have fewer, but larger,
apartments than our other core
products, with more car parking.

They are intelligentty and attractively
designed to future-proof later iving.
Features are Incorporated discreetdy

to achieve an ageless design and
developments typically feature an
enhanced lobby area and an open-plan
feel, with fewer shared facdities. Each
apartment has two or three bedrooms,
a fully fitted kitchen and bathroom, plus
an en-suite bathroom and a walk-in
wardrobe.

As homeowners tend to be more
independent, developments have a
visiting manager who 15 also on-call.

Bungalows

As part of our Lifestyle Living range,

we will shortly deliver our first 100%
bungalow development of 30 units at
Wymondham, Norfolk, with construction
starting in FY18.

image
7O eent e Tinlon 2o,

There is a growing need for
low-maintenance and well-
situated bungalows amon,
the older population and the
apﬁropriateness of this form
of housing Iin later lifa 1s
well-proven, The supply of
bungalows in the UK has also
been in steady decline, with
anly 2,210" new bungalows
registered with the NHBC

in 2016, In comparison to

26,408 1n 1986. The particular

shortage of bungalows and
other houses for oider people

means they are hkely to attract

a premium compared to
standard housing.

As of 31 August 2017, we had

222 bungalows in our land bank.

1 MMBC, New Home Siatistics Review 2076
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Case study

4

New Lifestyle Living
developments sales
released in FY17 (FY16: 5)

101

Units sold in FY17 (FY16: 88}

c.7%

Of land bank {FY16: 8%)

Mar

inand Marion Irving
’ ir ar ! e
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Our Lifestyle

Management and
Care Services

Providing peace
of mind that we
will look after our
customers and
their properties

Graghle remavad

L Mccarthy & Stone pic
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Our in-house management and
care services are a key part of how
we seek to enrich our homeowners’ lives

Relizbie and cost-effective management
and maintenance services are Impartant
to our homeaowners. Our team provides
homeawners with peace of mind that we
will support them and look after their
properties over the leng term Thisisa
key part of how we seek to enrich our
homeowners’ lives,

Providing an m-house management
services solution allows us to establish a
unigue relationship with cur customers,
providing personal and efficent services
that not anly help them, but also support
the point of sale and allow us to deliver
industry-ieading standards of customer
satsfaction, It also links together aur
expertise in housebullding and property
managerment.

Our praperty management business
provides property management,
support and care serwces across our
two development praducts, Retirement
Living and Retirement Living Plus. They
also provide property management
services to our Lifestyle Living
developments.

Each Retirerment Living development
typically has a dedicated House Manager
on-site, five days a week during working
hours managing the day-to-day rurning
of the development whilst also helping
tofacilitate varous social activities,

Each Lifestyle Living development has

a visiting Manager whe 1s in charge of all
aspects of property maintenance,

YourlLife Management Services
CYLMS') 1s owned 50/50 by MSMS
and Somerset Care Group, a
feading not-for-profit care provider.
It provides management services,
domestic assistance, catering,
personal care and additional
suppertin our Retirement

Living Plus developments

Each development 1s run by an
Estate Manager who leads a

team of staff members to deliver
these services, 24 hours a day,
365 days a year.

c.14,600

Homeowners (FY16: 12,000+)

312

Developments under
management (FY16: 264)

¢.10,860

Additional care and domestic
hours per month (FY16: ¢.8,400)
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Chief Executive's Statement

Operational Review

Graphic remeved

L |

Clive Fenton, Group Chief Executive Officer

“Momentum is rebuilding,
underpinned by sound
foundations. Workflow is
in place to support delivery
of 3,000 units per annum”

26 McCarthy & Stone plc

Average selling price

£273k

(FY16: £264K)

Build activity commenced on

/3 sites

(FY16' 54)

Land bank equivalent

4.3 years

(FY16: 4 4 years)

Our results

The Group delivered solid progress inits
first fll year of trading since re-joimng
the Main Market af the London Stock
Exchange in November 2015 Trading
improved consistently throughout the
year notwithstanding the increased
uncertanty in the secondary market
following the General Election in June
2017, and the Group made good
progress in rebuilding its forward order
book and progressing s workflow

Revenue increased by 4% (o £661m
(FY16 £636m) pnmanly driven by an
Increase in average semng prices from
£264k to £273k, reflecting 3 continuing
imorovernent In sales mix and quality
of sites Legal completions were shghtly
ahead of prior year levels at 2,302 (FY16
2,296} despiie a weakened forward
order book brought mtothe year and 3
fower level of just 48 first occlupations
during the year (FY16 69} Thisyears
volurnes benefited from accelerated
off-plan sales rates which improved to
S3% (FY16 508%; and the bulk sale of



126 apartments to PP Capital as part
of a new strategic relationship ailowing
us Lo access the growng rental market

Consistent with previous guidance,
underlying operating profit decreased
by 10% to £96m (FY16 £107m} at a gross
profit margin of 20% (FY16 21%), an
underlying operating profit margin of
5% (F¥16 179%) and an operaung profit
of £94m (FY16 £35m} The reduction

n profitability was reainly driven by the
age and rmix of urits sold, iIncreased
incentive casts, build cost increases
offset by pnang improvements, some
addinonal land renegotiation costs as we
repositioned our land bank in the face
cf more challenging market cenditions
and our continued nvestment in
regional operational Infrastructure

1 support our growth strategy

PP Capital

Over the course of the financiaf year,

we sought to diversify and enhance

our business model by developing a
strategrc refaonship with PP Capital
Thus represents an exciling new
oppeortunity to access the growing rental
market and has the potential to improve
captal twrn' and enable land investment
n new, previously untapped locations
This strategic relauonship resulted in
the sale of 126 apartments {ncluded
within the total legal complenons of
2.302) across 27 sites 1o be held within
a specialist reurernent Private Renital
Sector {'PRS) Fund being established
and managed by PfP Capital, the fund
management business of Places for
Peaple The apartments will be offered
for private open market rent PfP
Capital aims to grow its assets under
rmanagernent from £150m to more than
E750m over the shart to medium-term
by acguinng residential units and we
are well placed to provide them with
access 1o the retrement housing sectar
We intend to develop this relationship
further over the coming financial year

Investment and growth strategy
We conunue to pursue our strategy

of creating an efficient and scalable
business, capable of bulding and seling
more than 3,000 units per annum over
the medium-term There s significant
demand for our products and we are
confident that we have put in place all
the necessary elements that will enable
us to achieve our planned growth We
have arespecied brand with 40 years’
experience, a high-quality tand bank,

a strong balance sheet with a robust
capital structure and the necessary
crganisational capability and platform
Qur experienced rmanagerment team

1s focused on achieving this goal

STRATEGIC REPORT

Market demand

The structural imbalance between
supply and demand within the housing
market conuinues to provide wus with

an excepticnal market opportunity
Despite the recent growth in
housebullding activity, there remains

a sigruficant and growing shortage of
hiousing supply in the UK. This imbalance
15 particularly acute n the market for
retirement housing, and McCarthy &
Stone stands alone arong the national
housebuilders as the only one that
focuses entirely on this market

During four decades as the retrrement
housing market leader, the Group has
formulated a tailored approach to sales,
site acquisition, design, securing detailed
planning cansents and constructon

that mainstream housebuilders have
been unable to replicate We alsc ensure
that gur customers receve the highest
standards of ongoing support through
our management services offenng The
high barriers to entry in our market
ensure that we maintain a unique
position as the only houseburlder
capable of meeting the natonwige need
for high-gquality specialist housing for
the growing number of older peaple
who are looking to move to properues
more suited to their needs and lifestyle

Land bank

In total, ¢ £472m (FY16 £468m)was
invested in land and build during the
year We added a further 75 hﬁh—qualny
sites with attractve embedded margins
Nt the land bank (FY16 €5), equivalent
to ¢ 3164 addizonal plots (FY16 ¢ 2,614),
with terrms sgreed on & further ¢.1,355
plots (FY16 ¢ 1,700 plots)in ine with cur
normal land buxng model The land was
secured with a high level of optionality

At the year end, our land bank

stood at 9,967 plots (FY16 10,186),
equivalent to 4 3 years' supply, of
which 2 & years had detalled planning
consent As a result, the Group now
has sufficiert land under control to
delver all targeted sales to FY20

We secured &4 detailed pianmni
consents (FY16 60} and started build
an 66 addinonal sites (FY16 42) There
is detaled planming in place for 100%
of FY18 planned first occupations and
71% of F¥15 planned first occupations.,

The market far laid remains berign
and competition for ourt?](pmai
brownfield sites remains highly
fragmented Cur busmess continues
ta maintain operational focus and
discipline in the assessment of our
land purchases ta ensure that returns
centnue to flow to our shareholders

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Chief Executive’s Statement continued

Operational infrastructure

and capability

Our newer regicnal offices established
in Nerth Lenden, South West, East
Midlands and North West cont:nued to
drive the mormeniurn of therr workflows
during the year We have high-calibre
senior management teams n place,
combining McCarthy & Stone experience
with volume mainstream housetulder
operaticnal experuse

Having established these new offices,
we have now commenced the roll-out
of a new ‘Dwisional’ operatonal
structure, to manage our nine régions
The three Divisions, under John Tonkiss,
our Chief Operating Officer, will each
consist of three established reglons

This operational structure « similar (o
many national volume housebuilders
and will provide the frarmework to run an
efficient business at scale Our existing
nine regrons will be ciustered nto a
North Division, covering Scotland, the
North West and North East, a Central
Diviston, covering East Midlands, West
Midlands and South West, and 3 South
Divesion, coverng North London, South
East and Southern We expect to fill

28 McCarthy & Stons pic
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all the new positions from internal

candidates The establishiment of

these new dwvisions will complete

the platform required to deliver 3

our planned operational growth an sal
e Tt

Strategic initiatives st occupied n FY 17

Our cantinued focus on achieving

operational excellence by acceleraung

our warking capital cyde has allowed fmage

us to deliver further impravement 1 Swift Jlouse, Madennead

n our three key strategic initiatves

impraving sales rates, reducing time

taken between securing land and

starting build and implementing

build programme efficiencies

Sales initiative

The sales nitative, faunched in FY15,
sets out to consistently deliver off-
plan reservations of 50% or more by
the date of first occupation, and then
to reserve out all remaining units
within an average 12 month period

Our sales intiative continued to make
ood progress durng the year The main
ocus has been on enhanang the early
part of the customer journay via website
Improvements and the development of
eaily relationships with enguirers prior




"Workflow on track to
support growth strategy
and deliver ¢.80 new sales
releases and more than 65
first occupations in FY18”

STRATEGIC REPORT

10 site sales lsunches New relationship
rmanagement teams are now In place In
all regions and are working weill These
improvements have contributed to

an increase In the off-plan sajes rate

to 53% (FYt6 50%) from the 49 sites
(FY16 69)that first cccupled in FY17

Anumber of sites achieved significantly
more than 53% of the off-plan sales
rate, for example jameson Gate,
Porigbello, Edinburgh which seld

100% off-plan Afurther five sites

sold more than 80% of apartments
off-plan Itis particularly pleasing that
we have been able to achieve these
accelerated sales rates in a challenging
market whilst also improving pricing

The Group continued to be impacied
by the challenging secendary housing
market with the average nme 1o sell
out sl{%htly tugher than in the pnor
year This average now stands at

19 monzhs (FY16 18 months) for

all sites sold out during FY17

During FY17, we worked closely with our
thirg-party part-exchange providers (¢
improve the terms of the part-exchange
offering In addition, we successfully
piioted an n-house part-exchange
scheme on 163 transactions in which
dependent properues are temporariy
taken onto our own balance sheer
pending onward sale This resufted

in a cost saving of ¢ £1m in relauon to
the 49 properties re-sold during FY17,
when compared to the costs assaciated
with using third-party part-exchange
providers As at 31 August 2077, we held
114 properties on the balance sheet

at a net carrying value of £319m

Pevelopment initiative

Our development mnitiative, also
launched in FY15, aims to reduce

the time taken between securing

tand and build start This mvolved

the implementaticn of @ number

of process impravements with
particular focus on ‘ways of warking,
the planning process and increased
standardisaticn This enables the
business to bring forward profitable
developments, accelerate growth plans
and improve capital turn. The imitiative
1s now embedded in all regiens and 1s
beginming to produce positive results

A number of changes designed to
accelerate this cycle were imglemented
dunng the year In particular, we have
focused on local consultations within
the planning process and Implemented
our new Datum tool (o support proguct

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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and design standardisation and value
engineering Our target for reducing
the ume taken between land exchange
and starung build 15 16 months for
standard sites achieving & first ume
detailed planning consent During FY17,
we saved an average of four weeks per
scheme, with the total tme taken from
land exchange o bulld start averagmg
¢ 181 months (F¥16 £ 191 months)

During the year. a Froduct Approval
Group (PAG") was established to
enhance our product offering and
dentify and resclve persistent

issues The PAG s made up of semor
management team members with
representatives from Sales and
Marketing, Management Services,
Developrnent, Construction,
Procurement, Customer Services, and
Health & Safety The PAG meets regularly
to achieve greater standardisation
across the Group, optirnise product
selection and improve design

Build initiative

The buld intative, launched in FY15,
continued to drive improvements to

the buid process duning the year, to
accelerate buld tmescales, reduce
buld costs and enhance margins
Speciic focus has been placed on
supply chain management ta maximise
savings as well as driving towards longer
term benefits via the increased use

of modern methads of construction
The Group's framewark of criocal
controls introduced last year s now fully
embedded across all our regions and

15 driving Irmpraverments to buikd cycle
times and budgets This intiative has
delivered a c four week {FY16 c three
week) nme saving frorm buid start to first
gecupaton and has identified savings
opportunities to the vaiue of £127k per
developmenzt in refauon to materials
and fabour which wil help to mitigate
the impact of bulld cost infiation

Our product ranges

Ouring the year we repositioned our
product branding in order to capitalise
on our existing strong McCarthy & Stone
brand recognitron This will now be
used In & unified way across our three
products our Assisted Living product
has been rebranded Retirement Living
Plus and our Ortus Homes product
has been rebranded as Lifestyle

Living This also allows us to optirmise
our marketing spend and create
consistency awross our product names
As part of our Lifestyle Living range,
we will shortly dehver our first 100%
bungalow development of 30 units at
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i ertme tammster Theresy May with Ui G Uive Fenton at Swifl House, woudenhead

Wymondharm, Norfolk, which 15 now
under construction There 1$ 3 growing
need for modern, low-matntenance
and well-connected bungalows
among the older population and the
appropriateness of this form of housing
in later Ife 1s well-proven The supply
of bungalows in the UK has also been
in steady decline, with only 2,210' new
bungalows registered with the NHBC
in 2016, In companson o 76,408

1 1988 The parucular shortage of
bungalows and other housesfor

older people means they are hkely

to attract a high level of demand

We are also exploning the provision

of bungalows and coltages on

larger schemes, opening up exciting
new possitulites for mawirusing,
development patential on certain sites,
as well as providing far cormpletely
new land opportunities As of

31 August 2017 we had 222 (FY16
127) bungalows witmn our Jand bank

Our Management Services business
The rapid growth of our Management
Services busingss conunued during the
year, adding 48 new develocpments to
1ts portfolio, which now rotal 312 {FY16
264) managed developments Prowiding

30 McCarthy & Stone plc

our OWN Management services allows
us [0 establish 2 unigue relatonship
with our customers, providing personal
and efficent services that not only help
them, but also support the point of sale,
and aftow us 1o deliver indusiry-leadng
standards of customer satisfaction

Our customers

We are pleased to report that we have,
once agan, achieved the fuil Frve Star
raung in the Home Budders Federauon
('HBF) customer satisfaction survey this
year This marks the twelfth consecutive
year in which mare than 30% of our
customers have said that they wauld

be prepared to recommend Us to 8
friend We are the only housebuilder

of any size or type 1o win this award
everyyear since 1t was introduced in
2005 This sustained recognition by

our customers of the quality of product
and service we deliver is a strang
endorsernent of our continued desire
to design, buid, sell and manage the
very best retirement deveiopments

Quality

The Group was also pleased to achieve
15 Quality awards, 7 Seals of Excellence
2nd 1 Regional Winner in the 2017
NHBC Pride in the Job awards, marking

|

a 50% increase tn awards from 2018
The schere 1s dedrcated Lo recognising
construction stte managers who achieve
the fughest standards in housebuilding
and has been mstrumental in driving up
standards in the sector for 37 years

Our employees

Our performance this year would

not have been possible without the
dedication, enthusiasm and expertuse of
our peeple We are bulding a culture of
excellence that provides opportunities
for development and recognises
achievements by regularly celebrating
those employees who go the extra mile
for a customer or colleague through
our Instant, quarterly and annuai
PRIDE awards | am also delighted

ta repart that, 10 ouc maost recent
employee survey, 87% (FY16 89%) of
our employees confirmed that they are
proud to work for McCarthy & Stone

Health and safety

{am also pleased to report that we
have continued to make good progress
with developing a culture of excellence
in health and safety across the Graup
Qur vision 15 not Just to achieve health
and safety compliance but to lead our
sector with a robust and consistent
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Our Managemoent Services

business has fevelopments
in thew portfolio ;. .o

image
2 Walmsley Ploce, Bishops Waftham

safety culture across our organisation
Our internat monitoring regime Is
supported by a ngorous, independent
site Inspection programme including
regular reporting updates to the
Board During FY17, we recewved
three BSG Health and Safety awards,
ncluding one award for Best Use of
Technelogy for our picneering work
using drones for roof inspection to
reduce the need for work at height

Housing White Paper

In February 2017, we welcomed the
Housmiwmte Faper "Fixing our
broken housing market”, the country's
first housing strategy for s years

It proposed a number of measures
to support housebuiiding and we
were particuiarly pleased to see a
number of positive references to
the need to Increase the provisian
of specialist retirement hausing

P ONHBC mes Home Statistics Beview 2016
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The White Paper notes that the
Government will explore ways to
stimulate the market ta delver
new homes for older people and 1s
Intreducing a new statutory duty,
through the Neighbourhood Pranning
ACt, on the Secretary of State to
raduce, for the first tme, guidance
or local planning autheonties on how
ther locat development documents
should meet the housing needs of older
people Guidance produced under
this Guty will set clearer expectations
about planning 10 meet the needs of
older people, ncluding supporting
the develapment of such homes near
local services, and we understand
this will be published shortly

In addinon, the white Paper notes the
Government's new commitment
explore ways to help clder people move
at the nght ume, including possible
future incentives We are working

with the Government to provide more
information on how this incentive rright
waork, including a pessible one-ume
Stamp Outy exemption for clder people
downsizing. Such policies would help
older people ta move, which would also
in wrn help first tme buyers onto the
housing ladder and encourage further
demand for retirement housing

Government consultation on
ground rents

In June 2017, the Government also
launched a consultation on tackling
unfair practices in the leasehold market
with particular reference to leasehold
housing and unfair escalation clauses
for ground rents We understand and
support the need for action Inthis area
Our ground rents are on fair and stabie
terms as they are fixed for fifteen years
and increases are inked to the higher
of 2% ar Retal Price Index (RPI'). There
have undoubtedly been cases where
the system has been abused by some,
induding with ground rents that double
every ten years, and we understand
why DCLG 1s considering taking action
1o protect homebuyers We welcome
this, but have rased concerns about
the further proposals around reducing
ground rent income for all leasehoid
properties (o a zere or peppercom rent

Leasehold 1s a common and widely
accepted form of tenure for apartment
Iiving and has traditionally been

used as an efficent way of managing
apartment blocks and managed estates

CORFPORATE GOVERNANCE
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that contain a number of residents on
the same site, often with competing
veices With best practice and proper
%uldance in place, t can work well, and
as done for a number ofyears, and
the vast majarity of apartments are
on fairr terms Ground rent helps o
keep the freeholder actively involved
n the development and 1s a key part
of this system We have responded
accordingly to the Government’s
consultation and we await 1ts outcoime

Outlook and current trading

The workflow of the business remans
o track to support our growth
strategy Buid actvity commenced
on 73 5tes dunng FY17 (FY16, 54) and
of the ¢ 80 sales refeases which the
Group plans to deliver in FY18 (FY17
52}, 96% are now under construction
During the first 10 weeks of the year
17 new sites (FY17- 13) have been
successfully launched and this has
contributed to an improvement 0 our
farward order book, which currently
stands at £277m {(FY17 £250m) First
occupations are planned to increase
to more than 65 in FY18 (FY17 49} and
are expected t be weighted towards
the second half of the year due to the
tlmln% of our butld programmes. We
therefore expect the delivery profile
of the Group's profits hetween H1
and H2 to be similar ta that in FY17

We have started the new finanaal
year with a high-quality land bank,

a strong net cash position and an
experienced management team in
place We also have the necessary
regronal infrastructure and strength
of brand that ensures that we are
uniguely placed to capitalise on the
sigrificant demographic opportunity
avallabie to us We remain on track
to deliver our strategic growth
objective of bulding and selling more
than 3,000 units per annum and
continue to target a Return On Capital
Employeg (ROCE) of 25% when the
pusiness achieves scale

Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer
13 November 2017
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Our Business Model

The Group has a proven business model of buying land,
securing detailed planning consent and then building, selling and
managing high-quality developments across the UK that are
specifically designed to meet the lifestyle needs of older people

Our customers
Our distnct and growing customer base is at the heart of everything we do

= Target customer age over 60s in Retirernent Living, over 70s w Those who wish to maintain ther -ndependerce

In Retirement Living Plus and over 55s in Lifestyle Living with support or-hand if, and when required
s  Clder owner-occupiers who are keen o downsize inig = Addressing undersupply of homes dedicated to
attracove and secure housing with shared benefits the needs of our customer base

and companienship

1, Targeted
\and buying

We buy land and secure detailed
planning consents in locations
where we know our customers

would be happy to live

We provide Our apartments

afirst-class ) ) are hugh quality
customer Qur driving ambition and designed
experience, is to enrich the lives around the
enhanced by of our custemers. f we needs of older
our speaalised succeed 1 this aim we customers
afferings wilt maximise long-term

value for our
stakeholders and
shareholders

Cur developments are We build our products
marketed to attract efficiently in a safe
atder hameawners environment, using 40

looking to downsize years of expenence

The principal risks and uncertainties associated with our Business Model are described,
together with the mitigating actions on pages 56 and 57.
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Core elements of our business madel
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1. Targeted jand buying

= Webyyland in appealing locavons

= The sites are typically brownfieid locations, weli-locared refavve to essential services
N towns and cities, and attract less compettion from other housebuilders

2. Effective planning = Qur in-house planning team, the ‘Planning Bureay’ aims to obtain the best possible planning
and design consént as guickly as possible by applying directly for detaled planning permission
w High-guaity apartments designed around the changing needs of clder customers
3. Industry-eading u Efficient ard cost-effective construction using 40 years' experence
constructionina » Irdusery-leading health and safety standards
safe emvironment
4. Unique sales s Markeung with 2 focus on consistency and Iransparency ensuring that the customer journey
and marketing 15 s Straight forward as possible
» S5ales process focused on supporting cur customers and ther families from initial enguiry
through to legal cormpletion
5. Customerfocused a Providing the hughest quality property management, care and support Services 1 response
management services to our custarners’ and homeowners’ changing needs

-

Graphic removed
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Our Business Model continued

Targeted land buying

Strategic aim
We aim to identify sufficient high-quality land opportunities to meet our grawth plans aver the
medium and long term

Hey performance indicatars
{KPI1S) r _‘

News sites exchanged

/5

(FY16 65)
Land bank units

9967

(Fy16" 10,186) Graphic removed

Number of years' supply
within our land bank

4.3

(FY16: 4.4)
Investmentin land and build

£0,50n
(FY14. £0 5bn) l_ J

KPI - Land bank {units)

31 August 2017 St L4t

Owned and unconditional land bank o o . ) 1,620 2,287
Coﬂd:i\OIma_HQcon[_racted Iagb-ank o o T o 4,509 o ;,50?

6,129 6,791

CONSErucior work (i RIcgHess o o - . o 2639 1,883

Finished stock o . ) - 1139 sz

Yotal owned and controlled land bank 9,967 10,186

Numier of years’ supgly based on completions in the financiaj year 4.3 years 4.4years

image 1 Wiligughby Piace, Bourfon an the Water
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investment in
land and build

Investment in land and build
FYi6 Fy17

£0.50n

i F¥15 we announced the strategic aim
of nvestng £2 5bn in land and build

over the four years {o FY18 in support of

our strategic growth abjective

£0.56n

Medium-term target

£2.50n

We have contunued to make good
progress with our target of £2 Sbn
investment in land and buitd wath a
further £472m invested in land and
build during the year (FY16. £468m}

Further informauon on this strategic pricrity i1s provided on pages 48 1o 57

Highlights in the year

New sites exchanged

n 75 high-quality sites wath attractive
embedded margins added to land
pank in FY17 (FY16 65), equivalent ta
€ 3,164 additional plots (FY16 ¢ 2,614
plots), a 15% inciease m the number
of sites, and a 21% increase in the
nurnber of units

» Land secured with a high ievel of
Dﬁtlol‘lah{y (7196)

u The market for land remains
relatively berign and competition
for our typical brownfield sites 1s
still tughly fragmented

» The business continues te matntain
operational focus and discipline in
the assessment of (ts land purchases
to ensure that returns continue to
flow to sharehoiders

Land was secured across all
three products

=

Graphicremoved
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Land bank

e Theland bankas at 31 August 2017
was 9,967 units {(FY16 10,186 units)

w Total pwned and controlled fand bank
as at 31 August 2017 represents 4 3
years supply (FY16 4 4 years)

There |5 detaled planning consent in

place for

= 100% of FY18 planned first
gccupations

» 65% of F¥19 planned first
occupations

Case study: Engagement on planning issues with local communities

Ocean House, Carlyon Bay

Development:
32 tifestyle Living apartments

The story:

We signed a 24-maonth option
agreement to purchase the sre of
this former hotel in Gctober 2014

This gave us time to address the
pianning issues relating to the loss of
the hotel and employment, and 1o
arrive at the right quality of design
required for such a sensitive location

Extensive engagement with local
community, interest groups and the
media meant that the benefits of
providing specialist retirement
housing were balanzed against any
concerns regarding the loss of the
existing use

Conseguenily, plans for the 17 ace
site were successfully approved on
the first time of asking by Cornwall
Council's Planning Committee

Opened in july 2017, Ocean House,

Carlyon Bay 15 a development of 32
high specification twe bedroom

-

apartments, less than 300 feet from
the bay tself, giving fantastic views
and access to the beauuful outdoars
Each luxurious Lifestyle Living
apartment has been carefully
designed to prowvide the best of
comfortable, modern Imving for the
over 555

-

Graphic remaved
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Our Business Model continued

Targeted land buying

Graphic removed

Background to our land buying
« Our sites are typically centrally
focated within towns and cities

= Sitesrange from 05 o 3 0 acres
i1 ize

Less competition for our sites r
from traditional housebuiiders,

who tend 1o be interssted In

larger, usually greenfietd,

locations

= Limited on-site affordable
fouUsINg requirements and
mitigated impact of Section 106 Graphic removed
and Commurity Infrastructure
Levy (CIL} payments

= Experenced in-house planning
team, ensuring s consistent
approach to submission angd
negotigtion of planring L
appiications
images
1 Qinrer Place, miton
2 Ritth Court, Moroston

« Optimised developrnent density
ttrough reduced on.-site parking
and amenity space requirements

T See page 158 for glossary of ierms

38 McCarthy & Stone Ple
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Gary Day, Land & Planming Director

“Our differentiated land
model ensures that
we adopt clear land
acquisition criteria and
a strict approval process”
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Effective planning
and design

Strategic aim
Our aim is to operate an efficient and effective planning precess and to design
great homes to meet our customers’ ever changing needs and improve their quality of life

KPIs |_ ——|

Detaited planning consents

64

(FY186, 60)

First time planning consents

75%

(FY16. 69%)

Successful planning appeals

64%

(FY16° 42%)

Retairied customer
satisfaction rating

Five star HBF | _{

Lifestyle Lving annual legal l_
completions

101

(FY16 88)

Weeks saved per scheme Graphic removed

from land exchange to
build start

c4

(FY16' ¢ 17 weeks) L J

tmages P Colwo Coun, Glossop 2 Bloke Cou 1, Briggwier

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Repert and Accounts 37



Qur Business Model continued

Effective planning

and design

N -

Graphic removed

L |

Jadon Sitva, Group Product and
Development Girector

“Our aim to deliver products
tailored to our customers’
needs has led to a number
of formal product reviews,
offering significant
aesthetic enhancement”

E McCarthy & Stoneplc

Graphic ramoved

Case study: Shortening development cycle

Tenterden, Kent

Development:

36 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

» Contracts exchanged (subject
1o planning} 29 February 2016

n  Achieved planning permission
14 September 2016 {tocat first
urme consent in 28 weeks from
land exchange)

w Achieved budld start 5june 2017
{66 weeks or ¢ 15 3 months from
lang exchange)

The mamn factors that helped sherten

the developmentt cycle were

= Designing the bullding using our
standard apartment types and
standard detalls to simplify the
design process whilst producing
an external design that was
strongly influenced by the iocal
vernacular and perceived by the
loca! commumity to be in keeping
with the local style

= The site-enabling works were
simplfied through improved
collaboration (1e underground
drainage, car parking design,
retaning walls) to ensure we could
move guickly from site acquisition
to the construction of the new
development
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Operational efficiency:
Development initiative

Development cycle
FY16 Fr17

€.19.1 months

The development ingiative, introduced
In FY15, ams to reduce the time taken
between land exchange and buld start
Anumber of changes designed to
accelerate this cycle were implemented,
focusing on the planning process,
improved local consultations, increased
product and design standard:sation and

€181 months

Medium-term target

16 months

value engineening Our target for
reduang the time taken between land
exchange and starting build 1s 16 months
for standard sites achieving a first time
detaled planning consent During FY17,
a further ¢ four weeks per scheme have
been saved from land exchange to build
start, averaging at ¢ 18 1 months

N
&

Continued product
innovation

{1} Customer satisfaction
The aim s to retam our Five Star
HBF customer satsfaction rating

The Five Star HBF customer
sausfaction ratng was retained
for the 12th consecutive year

Lifestyle Living units sold as a percentage of total compietions

Fy16 FY17

3.8%

(1} Expand customer base
Grow E_\fest?/ie Lwing Lo € 0% of
annual legal completions

4.4%

Medium-term target

10%

Lifestyle Living continued to grow dunng
F17 10 4.4% (FY16 3 8%} of annuai legal
completions, daspite a lower number
of sales reteases In the year four

compared to five sales refesses n FY16

Further information on these two strategic priorities is provided on pages 50 and 51

Highlights in the year

Planning consents

» FY17 was another strang year for
planning, with detalled planning
consents achieved on 64 sites,
representing ¢ 2,473 units (FY16 60
sites, representing ¢ 2,449 units)

n During FY17 we actveved 75%
success on first time planning
consents (FY16 69%) and won nine
appeals (c 329 units) representing a
64% {FY16 42%) success rate This
compares favourably against the
national average rate of 320!

Product Approval Group

Duning FY17, a Preduct Approval Group
('PAG"Ywas established to enhance our
product offerng, and identify and resolve
1ssues Members of PAG includes senior
managers from Sales and Marketing,
Management Services, Development,
Construction, Procurement, Customer
Services, and Health & Safety It meets
re,tfu\arly to deliver optimum product
selection and design decision-making
PAG has led to greater standardisation
across the Group

1 Panning inspectorcle SIatistics (PINS) August 7617,
based on 11,052 appeats qunng the yetr chidea
40 june 2017 with 3,578 sppeals oliowed

Conti product impr

Cur aim to deliver groducts talored

to our customers’ needs hasledto a

number of product impravements

= ABistro concept kitchen has been
itroduced into Retirement Living
Plus, providing a mare flexible
dining experience

w Our bathrcoms have undergone
a significant makeover, offering
significant aesthetic enhancement
Through improved purchasing
agreements, bathrooms have not
only been enhanced in line with
changing trends, but significant
savings have also been idenofied,
¢ £20 Sk per development

a Electric car charging points have
been incorporated into the design
concept for our sites

w Improved kitchen design, making
befter use of space

Standardisation

The Group uses the integrated BIM

{Buiiding information Management)

tool Datum It contains all our standard

infermation ranging from apartment

Elans to specfications for indmadual
uilding components

This information is stored alongside
speafic project informaton, including
architectural drawings, 30 models,
and specifications The system enabies
a full cost plan to be compiled for each
project from the early development
stages This helps to ensure greater
predictability of project costs from the
outset It has been refined during the
year, pnmerily focusing on increasing
the content and its funcuonality

It has enabled the Graup to further
standardise the product, mprove
rebate comphance, and spead up the
development Cycle

More efficient development cycle
During FY17, ¢ four weeks per scheme
has been saved from land exchange
to build start Trus was achieved by
focusing on the planning process, In
particular, Jocal consultations, Increased
product and design standardisation,
and value engineering

Quality of products

At the annual Housebuilder Awards in
Novermnber 2016 we were pleased to again
recene Best Reurement Scherme for Ramsay
Grange and Lyle Court, our combined
Retiremnent Living Plus and Lifestyle Lving
development in Barnton, Edinburgh

MeCarthy & Stone ple Apnual Report end Accounts 39



Our Business Model continued

Industry-leading construction
in a safe environment

Strategic aim
We aim to deliver exceptional build quality whist maintaimng industryleading health and safety standards

KPis P 7

Build starts in the year

66

(FY16: 42}
Reduction inbuild cyde

c.4 weeks

(FY16. €.3 weeks}
Gross profit margin

20%

(FYi6, 21%)

Graphic removed

Graphlc remaovad

1moge
1 Sovoy House and Tudor Rose Coury, Southseo
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Strategic priority
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Operational efficiency:
Build initiative

Our build initiative continues fo drive
improvements 1o the bulld process, to
accelerate buiid umescales, reduce build
costs and erhance margins Speafic
focus has been placed on supply chain
management Lo Maximise savings as welt
as drving owards longer-term benefits

Build cycle
FY15

€.15.3 months

Buning FY17, the average build cycle was
further reduced by ¢ 4 weeks, down from
15 3 months N FY16, o 14 4 months

Gross margin was reduced in the year
however, from 21% m FY16 to 20% in £Y17,

¢c14. 4 months

via the increased use of modern methods
of construction The Group's framework
of critical controls introduced lastyear

15 now fully embedded across alt our
regions and s driving improvements

to build cycle umes and budgets

Medum-term target

12 months

impacted by the age and mix of units
sold, increased incentive costs, builld
cost Increases offset by pricing
improvements and some addivonal land
renegotiation costs

Further nformation on this strategic priority is provided on page 50

Highlights in the year

Progress on build activity

Y17 saw g 57% increase n the number
build starts, at 66, compared with

42 nFY16

During FY17, 33% of build starts

were non-traditional buld techniques.
{1e Porotherm blocks and ightweight
steel frame) contnbuting to an average
buld cycte reduction of four weeks

Health and Safety
Health and Safety remains a top prionty
for the Group A recalibrauon of the
sconng criteria for the BSG audits in
FY17 resulted in lower average scores
during the year, but now provides
more meaningful feedback than before
For FY17 we achieved a score of 36%
against the new scaring crierta During
the year a number of improvements
have been made
= Health & Safety Cormnmitiee now
estabbshed, chared by our Chief
Operacng Officer

New proneerng processes have

been ntroduced

a The education and invalvement
of our subcantractors in Health
and Safety

m Theintroductian of a new
apprenticeship scheme

» Designinitigrive a navonal raming
programme rolled out to our
designers so they are equipped (o
destgn nsk out of buldings before
they are built

= Brenes are being used for rocftop
Health and Safety inspections

= Every region now has their own
dedicated Health and Safety Adviser

u Defibrillators are now fitted at every
new site

Pride in the Job awards

The Group was aiso pleased towin 15
awards at the 2017 NHBC Pride in the
Job awards, marking a 50% increase
inwinners from 2016 In addition,

7 site managers also won Seals of
Excellence and 1 Regional Winner

The scherme is dedicated 10 recognising
construction site managers who achieve
the highest standards in housebuilding
and has been tnstrumental in drving up
standards in the sector for 37 years

BSG awards

= We won three BSG Health & Safety
awards in FY17 BSG Best Use of
Technology for Health & Safety award
for aur pioneering work using drones
far roof inspection to obviate the
need for work at height

= Two Site Manager of the Year awards

Procurement

Good progress was made with cost

saving INdatives duning the year

» Total rebates of ¢ £3 0m invoiced
In FY17 (FY16 £1 8m), as a resultof
negottating mare favaurable suppler
terms and Impreving compliance for
meeting rebates targets

w22 procurement tenders completed,
identifying a savings opportunity of
£127,000 per development

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts “



Our Business Model continued

Industry-leading construction
in a safe environment

-
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Jobn Tonkiss, Chief Operating Officer
“The build initiative
continues to drive
improvements to
the build process,
accelerate timescales
and reduce costs”

Images
1 Lancaster HOuse, ickenhrm
7 Freemagn House Canlerbury
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Case study: Shortening build cycle (build time reduced to 55 weeks)

Freeman House, Canterbury, Kent

Development:
54 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

Freeman House, Canterbury, was a
comphcated four-storey build, facng
the cricket ground, with varous
balconies to all units, steel frame
apertures and shared access with the
cricket ¢lub and the local Sainsbury's
In addition, we had to accommodate
52 days’ production down-time due
to cricket matches during the season

The build cycle commenced in june
2016, with a forecast first occupation
date of 14 August 2017

1o overcome the various 1ssues
surrounding the complex build of this
development, we changed the buiid
technology te Porotherm fight weight
day blocks with a */zmm bed joint
This technola%ywas kngwn to be
gurcker to lay, lighter to construct and
id not absorb as much rain during
the inclement weather As a result,
we delivered the scheme one month
ahead of programme taking first
prcupatons on 17 July 2017, resultng
111 55 total weeks or ¢ 12 8 months
fraom build start to first occupation



STRATEGIC REPORT

Unique sales
and marketing

Strategic aim

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We aim to make our sales process as easy as possible for our customers ensuring
that they are fully supported from the initial enquiry right through to legal completion

KPIs

Legal completions {units)

2,302

(FY16: 2,296)

Average selling price (£k)

£273«

{FY16, £264K)

Off-plan reservation rate {%)

53%

(FY1& 50%)

Months to reserve cut
from first occupauon

19

{FY16 18)

-

Graphic removed
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Our Business Model continued

Unique sales
and marketing

Graphic removed

Case study: Accelerating off-plan reservations
Jameson Gate, Portobello, Edinburgh

Development:
42 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

In order to maximise the strang database we had for Jameson Gare, we ensured
our sales team was fully nducted and provided with the togls required to sell
with confidence We opted to do an initial survey of cur database, which prowded
our teamns with a detailed Insight of the prospects allowing customers to mave
quickly through the qualificaton process to booking home appointments, fram
which reservations were secured This, along with events for our reservists and
industry networking, helped towards achieving 100% off-nlan reservations at
fameson Gate

McCarthy & Stone pic

N 1
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Dawvid Bridges, Group Markating & Customer
Expenence Director

“Qur continued investment
in improving the customer
journey, together with
introducing the new
Relationship Manager roie
across all regions has had a
significant positive impact
on off-plan sales rates”
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In FY15 we announced the
strategic target of selling more
Unit sales

lIlI

» FY16 Fri7
Sales growth 2,296
Total legal completions were slightly

ahead of the prior year despite

ASP
FYi6

Fy17

£264k

2,302

£273k

than 3,000 umits per annum by
F¥1G at an ASP of ¢ £300k

Medium-term target
3,000

delivering just 49 first occupations
)

Medum-term target

£300k

Incredse N ASP reflects a continuing improvement ir sales mix and gualry of sites

QOur sales iniative was introduced in
FY15 to achieve more than 50% off-
plan reservations and then reserve

Operational efficiency
Sales initiatives:

Average % sales off-plan

FY1g Y17

50%

{l) Achieve greater than 50%

off-plan reservatlons

Our sales intiative continued to make
good progress guring the year The
maln facus has been on enhanang

the early part of the customer journey
via website iImprovements and the
development of eariy relauoriships with

Average time to sellout

341 1

18months

(i) Reserve aut remaining apartments
within 12 months of first occupation
The average tme to sell out was slightly

19months

OuUt remaining apartments within
12 manths of first occupation

Medium-term target
53% 50%

enguirers prior to site sales launches
New Relationship Management teams
are now 1n place in all regions

These reams have contributed (o the
improvement in the off-plan sales
rafe (o 53% in FY17, compared with
50% in FY16, our second half levels
being particularly strong at 58%.

Meditim-teym target
12months

higher than inthe prior year due to the
seling out of older sites Only one site
now remains from FY14 and earlier years

Further infarmation on these two strategic priorittes Is prowided on pages 49 and 50

Website redesign

Qur websre has been redesigned to
Improve our customer journey and
achieve better search funcucnality

A new digital agency was alsc apponted
to support search engine optimisatior,
pay per cickand anline display actvity
ke imprave cur online efficiency

Hi%hlights inthe year
Rebranding

We refreshed our product branding
during the year in arder to capitalise

on our strnn% brand which will nowbe
used i a unified way across our three
products Qur Assisted Living product
was rebranded as Retirement Living Plus
and our Ortus Homes product was
rebranded as Lifestyle Lving This will
atlow us to capitalise on cur existing
strong brand recognition, optimise cur
marketng spend and create greater
consistency across our product names

improved marketing materials

A mare consistent creative style was
implemented during the year to defiver
Stronger custormer response Lo media

Outsourced call handling now fully
embedded

Ventrica, our outsourced call centre, 1s
driving improved conversion rates to visits

A national brand bulding TV campaign
to be launched in the New Year

Continued investment in sales training
We have delivered high-impact traiming
to Area Sales Managers who are criucal
to sales performance and have setup a
new national traning academy

Part-exchange {PX)

During F¥17, we worked closely with aur
third-party PX providers to improve the
terms of their part-exchange offering,
resulting In an estumated saving of

c £1m In addition, we successiully
piloted an in-house part-exchange
scheme where McCarthy & Stone
purchases the custemer's property
This has resulted in a cost saving of
CE£imn reiation to 49 properties
resold during FY17, when compared

to the costs associated with usin,
third-party part-exchange providers

MeCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report znd Accounts as



Our Business Model continued

Customer experience
and property management

Strategic aim

We aim te enrich the lives of our customers by providing the highest quality property management,
care and support services in response to their changing needs

KPis r"
Number of managed Meals per month
developments

312 .60,500

{FY16. ¢.43,200}
(FY16* 264)
CQC score {rated “Good"}
Number of homeowners 9 8 0/
C. 1 4{ 600 (FY16 58%)
(FY16 ¢ 12.000+
Additional care and
Retained five star customer domestic hours per menth
satisfaction rating

Five star
HBF

Highlights in the year
Customer satisfaction
As the business continued Lo grow, our
management services dvision remamed
committed ta maintaining its customer-
focused approach, ensuring its speed of
growth never compromised the quabty
of service it provided The positive
results from a recent customer
satisfaction survey demonstrated this
ethos of excellence 4,258 homeowners,
in apartments first built and sold more
than 18 manths aga, responded ta an
independent survey in 2017 Nine gut
of ten said they were sausfied with the
» Management services on offer
= attention to detail undertaken
a desire to deliver Innovative
new services which allowed
homeowners to enjoy & safe and
secure, Independent lifestyle at
the developments icoked after by
our management services dwision

46 McCarthy & Stona plc

c.10,860

{FY16 8,400}

L

Improvements in the

handover process

QOver the |ast year our management
services dmsion has Deen improving
and aligning the handover process.
from the construction teams to provide
a much enhanced cusiomer expenence
All the regions have now implemented
& new phased occupation protocol,
which looks at the development from
our customers' perspective

CQC score

98% of our nspections have been
rated "Good" We are always looking
to develop our people and improve
our processes in order ta provide a
high-quality service

Our forus s on evudencmF that we
pay attention to the detail to make a
difference to hormeawners' inves and
being able to demanstrate that we
always go the extra mile

Graphicremoved

Our awards

At the annual Housebuilder Awards in
November 20%6 we were pleased 1o
recetve Best Custorner Satisfaction
Initiative for our approach to ensuring
that we deliver a five-star service

for our homeowners The Group has
also won *Best Retrement Scheme”
at the annual Housebuiider Awards

In 2016

McCarthy & Stone's commitment to
quahity and customer service conbinues
10 be recognised by homeowners

In March 2017 the Group receved

the full Five Star raung for customer
satisfaction from the HBF for the

12th consecutive year  making i the
only UK housebuilder, of any size or
type, to achieve this accolade
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Mark Riddington, Managing Director
McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited

“Over the fast 12 months
our management
services division has been
improving and aligning the
handover process from
the construction teams
to provide an enhanced
customer experience”

STRATEGIC REPORT
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Case study: Providing care and support to our homeowners

Sharon Gratton, House Manager

Location:

Rockhaven Court, Horwich, Bolton
Development:

45 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

Sharon was a finalist in the On-
Site Staff Member Categcr}\gal the
ARMA ACE 2017 awards, which
was a fantasuc achievernent
Despite not winning, she was
“hughly commended”

Sharon s a shinmg beacon of what
our House Managers and Estate
Managers de on a dally basis From
the day she welcomed her first
homeowner, Sharan has made 1t her
primary objective te ensure everyone
feels welcome and quickly settles
INto their new living environment
that promotes independence,
companionship and security She s
the first to say that t's been the most
rewarding role in her career so far

Whilst sustaining an active and
stimulating actmties calendar
for homeowners ta enjoy seems
straightforward, the amount of
planning invelved should not be

underestimated, especally when
factorng n peoples' different health
and mobility needs For Sharon,

It's more than just a job title it's

a deeply felt vocauon to ensure

the welfare and happiness of the
homeowners under her care

Whether organising a programme

of simulating socal activities,

dealing with emotional distressing
circumstances, routine development
issues or just being a “good
neighbour”, Sharon's professionalism,
empathy, attention to detail and
sense of fun shines through She s
laved by her homeowners, respected
by her peers and recognised by
visitors for the outstanding job she
has done for the past five years

N -
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Our Medium-Term Strategy

Creating an efficient
and scalable business

./ll'| Sales growth

Our medium-term strategy is to create an efficient
and scalable business capable of building and selling

rmore than 3,000 units per annum

To deliver this, we focus on four strategiC prorites

T

!

£

Increased
investment in
land and build

We aim to invest £2 Sbn
n land and build over
four years from FYto

te F¥19 to support

growth and capture

a larger share of the
retiree market

%

Operational
efficiency

We aim to create a
more efficient and
scaiable business by
shortering the working
capital cycle across our
core activities sales,
development and bulld

Q

N

&

Continued
product
innovation

We aim to meet our
customars’ changing
needs and expand our
customer pase through
INcreasing capadity and
capabiity and ensuring
ONEOING INNOYaUGN
across our products

Focus on financial performance

We operate with financal disapline and an appropriate capital structure
I order to maxirmise margins and return on capital employed {RCCE)

L] WMcCarthy & Stone plc
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Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPl | FY15 FY16 Progress m FY17 for FY18
/ Buld and sell | Legal 1,923 2,296 w Total legal completions » Deliver strong
more than complerrons mantained at FY15 levels upward momentum
_.III 3000units  |{units) units units aespite delivering just 49 In forward order
—— per annum first occupations this year book supported by
Sales at an average campared [0 68 N FY16 an increased level
growth 3?'!2%83&6 # 126 apartments sold to of sales releases
PP Capital as part of 2 m Contirue to secure
Build and sell new strategic refationship completion chains
more than 3,000 allowing access to the via effective use
units per annum growang rencal market of part-cxchange
NEMEAIIM | e e e e e oD e e when required
term ASP £245k £264Kk = 3% rrprovement in ASP
) reflecting a continuing = Deliver ¢ 80 new
improvement in sales mix sales releases
and quality of sues and ¢ 65 first
.................................................................. accupations
Revenue £485.7m | £635.9m | £660.91m (= Achieved 4% revenue growth | |~ nvinue ro grow
(Em) despite 3 weakened forward rental appartuni
order book brought nto P £
theyear and fewer first
occupations
Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KP! | F¥15 FYt6 Prograss i FY17 far FY18
% £2 5bn Cash £0.4bn (£0.5bn wConunued toinvestinland | m Target land and
irvestmentin [ investment in and build throughout the build spend of
land and build | land and buld year despite seasonal cash cFQBbn-c£07hn
Dy FY13 {£bn) availabibty skewed towards
investment the second half of F¥17 - gg&gﬁ;gﬁﬁt
in land and a Y17 {and and build spend 1N accordance
build of £0 Sbnwas on target with our strict site
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" purchase critena,
£2 Shn investment Land pank 10,087 110,186 w Land banl stands at 9967 Securing contract
Inland and {urits) umts units units and represents condinonality where
build over four 43 years supply appropriate
yearsio FY 190 m There s detalled planning
support growth Inplace for 100% of FY18
and capture a planned first occupations
larger share of the and 65% of F¥19 planned
retiree market first occupations
Sites acquied |90 65 a 75 sites acqured durning
sites sites FY17, reflecting coninued
momentum within our land
ACQUISILON strategy and the
availapllity of ugh-quality
sltes
w Terms agreed on additronal
1,355 units, representing a
further 0 6 years supply
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Our Medium-Term Strategy continued

Performance
Strategic Medum-term Qbyectives
priority targets Measure/KPI | FY15 FYi6 Fy17 Progressin FY17 far FY18
Imprave Capital turn 1.0x 1.2x 1A% m The decrease in FY17 = Conbinue to iImprove
capital urn underiyimg operaing profit oft-plan sales
n order o together with an increased rales and target in
maximise level of investment in lznd excess of 50% off-
operational ROCE and build hasledto a plan reservabions
i reduction In capital wrn across g Fy13 first
efficiency 101 1% {FY16 12%) oceupations

Create an even
more efficient
and scalable
business to
support planned
nvestment and
targeted growth

Sales iitlative

u Exceeded our target to
achieve greater than 50%
off-plan reservations,
with 53% off-plan sales
achieved InFY17 In total, 26
developments of the 49 Fr17
first pecupations exceeded
the S0% target, with six
developments exceading,
BO% oft-pian sates rates

= Average ime taken o self
out mcreased shghtly (o
18 months due lothe final
selt-out of older sites

Development initiative

» Time (aken between land
exchange and build start
reduced by ¢ four weeks for
standard sites Bulld acuvity
commenced on 73 sites
dunng F¥17 (FY16 543

Build imative

w Datum platform is now
in place to support
standardisation, valueg
engineering and cost
management

w £3m of rebates iInvoiced
nFY¥17 (FY16 £1 8m)

w 22 procurement tenders
cornpteted durmg
the year, delivering a
Savings opportunity of
£127k per development

u Target further
reductions in time:
tw sell out

= Cantinue to roll aut
our develgpment
nigiative and target
further reducuons
in average time
taken from land
exchange to puid
start

= Facus on ughter
management
of buld cycle
by embedding
CONSIStent working
practices and raling
out Datum platform
across all new-buwld
startsin kY18

» Continue to adapt
modern methocds
of construction n
order 1o reduce
build tmes further
and pursue
further margin
Improvement

u Ensure maximuim
rebate comphance
1smantained across
ail developments
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Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPl | FY15 FY16 Progressin FY17 for FY18
{'\ Custamer Cusomer Sstar Sstar w Five Star HBF custorner w Retain Five Star
O sausfaction satisfacuion sansfacuon ranng retamad HBF customer
u Retain raung for 12ih consecutve year satisfaction rating
. Five Star HBF » Successfully Increased » Continue to
Continued | sromer capacity an)('i capability of Increase capacity
product satrsfaction gur Management Services and capabilizy
H i ratng USINEss 10 ensure that of management
Innovation we can meet the needs Servicas business in
Meet our ) of customers at all new order Lo keep pace
customers developments Volume of with growth in new
changing needs developments managed developments
and expand our increased from 264 (o 312
wstomerbase [ e
Expand Lfestyle Lvang | 1,0% 38% w Lifestyle Living now u Grow Lifestyle
customer base | carnpletions represents ¢ 7% (FY16 8%) Lving to € 10%
Grow Lifestyle (% ofictal ofland bank of land bank
Lving o ¢ 10% | OMPlEtons) = 101 {FY16 88) Lifestyle Living | m Continued
of annual legal units sofd during FY17 with \NNOVALIoNn N cur
comgpletions four new Lifestyle Lving core products
developments released for ensuring that we are
salen FY17 (FY16 five) meetng the needs
of our custemers
» Continue to expand
our customer base
through Private
Renial Sector {'PRS}
opportunites and
our Lifestyle Living
‘Bungalow’ product
Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPi | FY15 FY16 Progressin FY17 for FY1s
improve Undertying £65.3m |£107.2m 2 £112m(2ppis noperaung |« Conbinue to target
underlying operating margin}decrease as aresult | high-qualityland
operating profit’ (£m) of the age and mix of unis with attractive
profit and and undertying| 20% 17% sold, Increased incentive costs| Margins
Focus on maximse operating 2nd buld cost ncreases offset
financial margins profit margm Dy Bricng IMprovements, - gg:l‘g';g;faﬂun{;;'e
Target {5) some addihonal land via the build
performance e Tenegonation costs and our nitianve
Target top- ROpCE (25% cantinued Investment i1y our
guartile sector target) regional infrastructure w Maintain strgng
margnsand | 0 e e T o T T L et s e v e balance sheet
returns on capital ROCE (%) 20% 20% = 4ppts ROCE erosicn as a and focus on cash
P result of a decrease in the management
FY17 underlying operating
prefit together with an = Business growth 1o
Increased level of nvestrment | achieve operauonal
11 land and build leverage
Net {debry (E44.4m)| £52.Bm » Maintained strong net cash
cash{fmy) pasition due to a disaplined
approachte land and
buita spend

T Underipng opeiaing profit hos been ceconciled et nore 6 (0 the Consoudated Finginal Stoterens
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Financial Review

Graphic removad
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Rowan Baker, Chwef Financial Officer

“The Group balance sheet remains
strong with net cash of £31 million
at the year end to support future
investment in land and build”

i tinderhwng operaning prafit hos neent reconciled athin note 6 1o the Consohdarad Yingneat Stotements
2 See page 158 for glossary of terms
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Operating profit

£94.2m

{FY16, £95.1m)

Underlying operating profit’

£96.2m

{F¥16 E£107 2m)

Net cash?

£30./m

{FY1& £52 8m)

TNAV

£676.4m

(FY16; £626,8m)

Qur performance

McCarthy & Stone has continued to
make progress towards achieving its
medium-term strategic objecuve with
significant focus placed on mvestment
inland and build and keeping the
workflow of the business firmly on track

Revenue

Revenye increased by 4% this year to
£661mM (FY16 £636m) primarty driven by
an increase In average sefling prices from
£264k to £273k reflecting a continuing
improvemnent in sales mix and gualit

of sites Legal completions remane
nline with the prior year ac 2,302

units (FY16 2,296) despite a weakened
forward order bock brought into the
year and just 49 first occupatons during
the year (FY16 69) Volumes benefited
from the accelerated off-plan sales

rates improvernent from 50% 10 FY16

to 53% n FY17 and the bulk sale of 126
apartments o PfP Capial as part of the
new strategic relationship allowing us

1o access the growng rental market




Profit

The Group achieved an underlying
profit before tax for the year of £94m
(FY16 £105m) and a statutory profit
before tax of £92m (FY16 £93m)

This was achieved at a gross profit
margin of 20% (FY16 219} and an
underfying operating rmargin of 15%
(FY16 17%) This reduction n operating
profit margin was driven by the age
and rix of stock sold, an increase in
mcentives offered to customers to
close out completion chains n Iight
of the increased uncertainty in the
secondary market, buld cost Increases
offset by pnicing improvements, some
additianal abortive land costs as we
sought to repositron cur land bank
and our continuing Invesiment im
regional operational infrastructure

0 Support aur growth strategy

The overheads in the business
conunued to be welf-controlled with
total administrative expenses for the
year of £37m (FY16 33m), excluding
exceptional tems and amartisation
of brand They remain at broadly the
same proportian of revenue as flast
year of 6% (FY16 59) and reflect the
Investment hemng made 1o delwver
the strategic growth of the business

Capital structure and interest
We closed the year with a tangible

r0ss asset value (TGAV?) of £646m

FY16 £574m), which was a year-on-
year ncrease of 13%, primarily due to
the continued level of land and buld
investrment during the year Similarly,
our tangble net asset value increased
to £676m (FY16 £627m) The Group
continued to mamtain a robust financial
position with  net cash balance of E31m
at 31 August 2017 (FY16 £53m)and
neéatlve geaning of 4% (FY16 B%) This
reflects management's ongoing focus
on disciphned cash spend in response
O CoNtiNUING economic Uncertanty
and was achieved notwathstanding
the negative cash impact of our new
In-house part-exchange tool which
resulted in £32m part-exchange assets
being held on the balance sheet at the
yearend (FY16 L£nil) We mantained a
strong balance sheet and appropriate
headroom against aur £200m revolving
crecht faciity (RCFY throughout the year

The Group Incurred net finance
expenses of £2m durm§ the year

(F¥16 £2m), benefiung from a full

year of lower interest casts under the
Group's amended RCF and the annual
revaluation of its shared equity debrars.

Exceptional costs

There were no exceptional costs
incurred during FY17 Total
exceptianal costs recognised within

STRATEGIC REPORT

the Consohdeted Staternent of
Comprehensive income during

FY16 were £10m, of which £m

related w IPQ adwviser fees and
associated costs and £1mrelated 1o
Management INCENtVes, restructurnng,
redundancy and refinancing costs

Taxation

The effectve tax rate was close (o
the statutory rate durning the current
financial year The total tax charge

for the year was E18m (FY16 £19m)
which represents an effective tax rate
of 19% (FY16 21%) based oh a profi
before tax of £92m {FY156 £93m)
Reductions in the rate of corparation

tax o 19% from 1 Apnl 2017 and to 17%

from 1 April 2020 were substantively
enacted on 18 Novernber 2015 and
6 September 2016 respectively

Earnings and dividend

Adjusted underlying basic earnings per
share decreased by 12% to 14 2 pence
(FY16. 16 1 pence) reflecting the lower
level of profit after tax achieved this
year Basic earnings per share for FY17
were 13 8 pence (FY16 13 9 pence)
Details of the calculation af earnings
per share can be found in note 12 to
the conschdated financial statements

The Directors are proposing a final
dividend of 3 6 pence per share.

This follows the intenm grdend

of 1 § pence per share, giving a total
dmdend for the year of 5 4 pence

per share The proposed final dvdend
reflects our progressive dividend policy
as stated at the IPO The proposed
dividend is cavered 3 nmes by earnings
Subject to sharehalder approval at

the AGM, the dvidend will be paid

on 1 February 2018 to sharehclders

on the register at 5 January 2018

The total cost of the final dvidend
is £19m, resulting in a totaf dvdend
cos! relating to the year of £28m
(FY1e £24m)

Risk management

The Group maintains a rabust risk
management framework, providin,

a dlear ink between strate,gy and the
strategic, operancnal and financial
nisks faced by the business The
approach to rnisk 1s set by the Board,
which maintains a close involvement
indentifying and migating risk and
monitors certain key risk indicators at
Board meetings on a regular basis

As part of managing the financial risk
in the business, the patennal iImpact of
a downturn in the housing market or
the broader UK econormic environment
1s regularly evaluated and we have

a number of key risk indxkcators that

MeCarthy &k Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts
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are used at Board level in order to
assess this Our national reach and
diversified portfalo of fand ensures
that we are not cverly dependent on
particular local markets or indvidual
developments In addition, our distinct
business model helps to insulate our
business from a downiurn, with land
acquisition normally contracted subject
te planning and also often subject to
commercizi viability or by way of opiion,
enabling us to review land acquisition
decisions in light of planming outcomes
and latest market conditions prior

to commating sigrificant capital

Target returns

Our continuing snvestment in land and
build 0 order tc delver future growth
together with the lower under\yln%
operating profit delvered in FY17 led
to a decrease in ROCE by 4 ppts to 16%
(FY16 20%) and 3 reduction in capital
turn to 1.1 (FY16 1 2%) These metrics
will recover, hawever, once our growth
plans begin to delver resuits, The
workflaw of the business remains firmly
on track as a result of our continuing
investrment for growth and allows us to
target future increases in both margin
and ROCE with the aim of achieving a
ROCE of 25% over the mediumn-term

Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer
13 Nevember 2017
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Risk Management

How we manage the
risks to our business

Effective management of risk
is integral to the successful
implementation of our
corporate strategy. Risk is
managed through a five-step
risk management process,
led by the Board

McCarthy & Stone's governance

Our risk management process

1irdenidy sk & Dercorminge

sk dppelite 1l

4 hionar -1 EREEAER NS

< ar

Lranstor risk

> >

>

Board Risk regsters Key controls Key risk Assurance
assessment framework indicators programme

Oversight, identification,
assessment and mitigation
at Board level

Firstline of defence:
operational controls
and reporting

Second line of defence;
policies and procedures
Third line of defence:
internal and external audit

The maintenance of formal nsk registers, the identification of key control frameworks, the monitaring of key risk indicators and the
pursuit of 3 broad assurance prograrame provide all levels of management with a clear framework within which to operate

The Group’s risk management
framework requires the mamntenance
angd regular update of Groug risk
scorecards and regional risk registers to
identify the rsks to our business model
and strategic plan, with the major risks
reviewed by the Board in the context
of the Group's appette for nsk Since
the beginming of FY17 the Board has
recognised an increase in the foliowing
nsks

54 McCarthy & Stane plc

Ariskin relation to Government
legislation has been increased as

a result of the recently announced
government consultation on
ground rents

The Board has also recognised an
increased risk n relaton to the bming
of legal completions and profit being
skewed towards the year end, which
increases the risk in respect of
forecasting accuracy and the timing
of cash receipts required to fund
further growth

The Board has downgraded the nsk
assoclaled with buikd programmes
and buld costs as further progress has
been made N tightening the controt
environment around build costs

The risk scorecards and registers

are supported by frameworks of key
operational and financral controls that
erable risks to be treated, tolerated or
rransferred to third parties



The rsk scorecards and registers are
complemented by the monitoning of a
set of key nskindicators approved by
the Executive Leadership Team, which
provide early warning of potential Issues
and enable management to react
accordingly Those risk indicators
establish the risk appetite for each

risk and are monitared at Group and
regicnal levels

Assurarce 1s provided over the effective

design and operation of the risk

framework through a forma! programme

of assurance acuvity This is structured

around three lines of defence

management assurance, through

operational cantrols and reporting

2 functionzl support In the form of
formal policies and procedures

3 programme of assurance activity,
including internal and external audit

During FY17 internal audit reviews have
focused on the following key areas of the
business and idenafied ways of
enhanong the control ermaronment
= The selling processes post
first occupation
& Building in line with budget and
pro%ramme induding the
implementauon of new commergal
and construction key controls
= Customer sausfaction
IT project governance in relation
10 new initiatives

Overail oversight 1s provided by the
Board, with indrvdual mernbers of the
Board and the Executive Leadership
Team sponsoring each of the key risks

Monitoring key business risks

The Birectors have carred out a robust
assessment of the principal nisks facing
the Group, including those that would
threaten its business model, future
performance, sofvency or hquidity

Key business risks are formally
identriied, reviewed and updated

by the Executive Leadership Team
every six months using a nsk scoring
methedology Each risk is categorised
based on lkelihood and potential
impact Once agreed with the Executive
Leadership Team, the risks are plotted
on arnsk heat map and subrmitfed to the
Risk and Audit Commuttee for approval
and subsequeridy to the Board

STRATEGIC REPORT

The risk appetite 1s established by a
bi-annual review of the risk heat map

by the Executive Leadership Team This
review confirms whether the relative
position of risks 15 acceprable and if nat
what actions need to be taken to reduce
the likefihood or impact A rating s given
to each risk that defines whether the risk
1s wihin the risk appetite and requires
na further attention, If the nsk s
crystallising and therefore action should
be taken before the risk appetite 15
breached or whether the rnisk s already
beyond the risk appetite requiring
immediate action The status of each
key risk indicator is reviewed for all risks
beyond the risk appetite and reported
ta the Executive Leadership Team and
the Board As part of this review, the
Executive Leadership Team will review
the actions required and ensure that
progress 1s being made and conclude
whether the propesed actions are still
sufficient

The risks attributed to each land
acc;unsmon OpPPOortunity are assessed
by locel regional management using
predetermined critena and form
part of the regional submission to
the Group Investment Cammittes,
which approves each land purchase
Following land acquisinen, the
construction and commercial nsks
and appartunities are recorded in a
development risk register Arange

of worst-case to best-case potential
OUE-tUrn costs are monmored and
managed throughout the construction
phase, allowing risks to be formally
managed and opportunities reslised

Internal control environment

The core elements of the Group-wide
internal control environment are
arganisational structure, culture an
values, corporate strategy and a key
controls framework

Organisational structyre

The Group's organisational structure

is established around clear dwisions of
responsibiities between the Board and
the Executive Leadership Team The
Board 15 respensible for the operatianal
control of the Group, Including al!
strategi, financial, organisatienal, legal
and regulatory matters

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Executive Leadership Team

1s responstble for the day-1o-day
management of the gperational
actities of the Group Each member
of the Executive Leadership Team has
2 'leadership team’ of direct reports,
who are collectively responsible for
the overall system of internal control
across the business

Culture and values

The Group has developed avalues
framework which consists of five
cornerstone principles passion,
responstoility, Innovation, determination
and excellence [PRIDE) These are used
as a guide 0 conduct business from
key decisions to day-to-day acovities

These values are widely communicated
agross the business ta ensure
alignment with strategic aims and

to actively encourage a culture that
promotes teamwork, mvclvemnent

and empowermnent at all levels of the
Group These values play a key role

N recruitment across the business

Corporate strategy

The corporate strategy principally
focuses on investing £2 5brin land and
build and on increasing the size of the
business over the mediem term The
strategy has been well decumented
and communicated both Internally

and externally. To support this strategy
the Group hasidentified five strategic
prionnes, as discussed on page 48

Key controls framework

The key controls framework defines the
Group’s most iImpartant internal
controls on which it places key reliance
In the management of its core business
and reporting on its perfermance and
progress towards strategic objectives
The Group operates consistent financial
management, reporting contrals and
processes across Its nine regions These
are manitored by the Group Financial
Controller and her team in order to
ensure therr effectiveness The key
controls framework is reviewed and
tested annually with the results
presented to the Board, and 1s also
subject to nternal audit review
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facng the Group indude, but are not hmited to

Risx area

s Jescriplon

Whtigaong ac 1ons

Economic
conditions

Housebuilding ss cycical ang reliant on the broader
economy Adeterioration i the econamic outlook,
including economic growth, iInflation, ingerest rates and
buyer confidence, could have a significant impact on the
Group's finanaal performance and ability o sell both
retirement aparvments and the properties acquired as
part of the recently introduced in-house part-exchange
scheme

The uncer Lainty in the economy and speafically the
secondary housebuilding market following the result
of the EU Referendum and General Election s 'ikely
0 corunue i the short (o medium-term as Brexit
negatiations continue

The Group ¢losely monitors Industry indicator's and
assesses the polential impact of different economic
scenanos Decsions G allocate new capital to land and
ouild are managed centrally through the Group Investment
Committee The Group atms 0 mantan a nabonal and
product spread of developments ta ensure that itis not
reliant on ane particular locality or product type

The operation of iIn-house part-exchange scheme
introduced during the year ts subject to strct conirols and
regwonal imits

In additon, over the course of the last financial year, the Group
has sought to enhance the robustness of s business model
by developing & strategic relationship with PFP Capital to
access the growing rental market This will help te offset any
potential impact of a downturn in the secandary housing
market

Reputation
and customer
satisfaction

The Group constructs and sefls a quality product Lo an
ageing and sometimes frail customer base and provides
ongoing management and persanal care services Any
Issues with the progucts or services the Group provides
could impact on reputation or customer sausfacoon to
the detriment of the Group's busimess madel

Adverse natonal publicity with respect to re-sales,
espedally alder non-managed properues and these sold
ust prior 1o the housing market crash in 2008, can resul
s lower resale values, which in turn can adversely impact
our ability to sell new retirement apartments

The Group enforces strict procedures over the handover of
deselopments for accupation and the handover of specific
apartments to indnadual customers ONgoing management
and perscnal care services are provided within a robust
framework of controls which is ctosely monitored The
business has a dedicated customer servicesteam and
tracks customer satisfaciion through NHBC, HBF and
internal surveys

A new in-house estate agency has been established to
support the (e-sales process for customers in our mariaged
developments on the private market, with the aim of speeding
up the sales process and maximising value on resale

Sales
performance

©

Fhe Group's growtr plans assume that i€ can sell us
products at attractive prices Any volume shortfall or priang
weakness could have a significant smpact on the Group's
financial performance

Detailed reporting enabtes the Group (o monitor sales
and pricing at a site and unit level and regularly review
performance against expectation with regional
management A strict approval process has been
introduced during the year for awarding discounts ang
incentives in excess of certain thresholds

Workflow
management

The Group has hustanically suffered from a bias towards
achieving the magority of its completions and profit n the
second half of each financial year Hence, any palitical
uncertainty or adverse market conditons during this period
could adversely impact the Group's annual performance
This was evidericed by the EU Referendum result in 2016
and to a lesser extent the General Election sutcome in 2017

The Group 1s taking acuon to spread the workflow more
evenly throughout the year, which s ikely o take effect
from FY19 onwards, and continues 1o seek ways inwhich
(o wmprove this Workfiow is closely monitored by regional
managerment and the Board

Government
legislation

@

Uke any other business, the Group is affected by changes in
Government legislaison 1t s possible that the outcome of the
recent Gavernment consultauon on unfair leasehold pracices
could adversely impact the Group’s business model

The Group closely monitors Government proposals and
consultations and seeks alternative solutions, Includmg
lobbying Government, submitting consultation responses,
and combining views with otFier companiesin the sector
to mingate any potential adverse impact on the busmness
model The Group has recently carned cut an impact
assessment of lower and no ground rents and reviewed
its land appraisal process accordingly

Build
programmes
and build
costs

The Group's financial performance i1s dependent on 1ts
ability to deliver build programmes on time and on budget
Buitd programme or cost over-runs could resuitin slower
sales or reduced margins

Build progress and costs are reviewed regularly by
dedicated regianal commercial teams, as well as being
reported to regional, divisianal and Group management
Independent assurance 1s provided through a dedicated
commercial nternal audit resource Framework agreements
have been established with key subcontractors and
supplers to provwide greater certainty of price and supply In
additon, the Group has recently mplemented a tighter control
framework over higher nsk more complex develepments
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Megating actlons

The Group has put in place atiractive reward mechanisms
and provides extensive opportunities for personal
development and traiming, bath of which are regularly
reviewed against peer housebuillders and other employers
nlocal markets Resource requirernents are assessed against
annual budgets and recruitment processes are designed

to ensure talent attraction to deliver the Group's plans

Whenever possible, contracts to purchase land are via option
agreement or are conditional on the Group obtaining
detalled planning consent and contan a cormmercial vabiity
clause The Group performs imparment reviews in ing with
International Fingncial Reporting Standards {IFRS?)
requirements

Fiskarea Rusk descriprion
Empioyees The Group's employees are central to the achievement
of the Group's objectives Fallure to recruit and retain
suificeent suaff resource af the iight quality could constrain
growth plans
Carrying value The net reahsahle value of land owned by the Group may
of land decline fue to changes in the property market ar other
conditions, or the Group baing unable to secure detaled
planning corsent on land purchased unconditionally
Health & Construction sites are inherently risky, and could expose
Safety employees/coniractors ta the risk of serous injury/fataliy

mare susceptible o nury

Homeowners in the developments the Group manages are
ageing and sometimes frail, with the nisk that they can be

The Group stnves for excellence in health and safety and
considers it to be atop pnorty The Health & Safety
Operations Director reports directly 1o the Executive
Leadership Team, idenufying areas of concern, near misses
and accidents This 1s supported by a nigorous, ndependent
site inspecticn process which routinety assesses and
reparts on standards During the year, the Group also
estabhshed a Health & Safety Committee, chared by our
Chief Operaung Officer

Land
acquisition
and planning

Poor-quahity land and/or location could result in

future sales and/or cash flow

programme/cost over-runs and difficulty in selling Faillure
to obtain umely planming permissions will adversely affect
workflow, resufting in falure to meet targeted growth rates,

Regranal land buying teams are in place across all regions
providing local knowledge and expertise These Lteams are
targeted on land exchange and completion as part of their
bonus structure

We acquire land with a high-degree of conditianality

Regional planning teams have the support and oversight
of the Group Invesiment Committee

The Graup maimams central IT systems and has in

place a fully tested disaster recovery programme This is
supplemented by regular reviews to seek to reduce the risk
of successful cyber-attacks and a General Data Protecucon
Regutation (GDPRY) programme Lo ensure compliance

Cyber/data Falure of ary of the Groups 1T systerns, in parucular those
relating (o customer data, surveying and valuation, could

e agversely impact the performance of the Group

Change

Increased

Viability statement

In addition to making a going concern statement, the
Directors are aiso required to make a longer-term viabifiity
staternent to comply with provision C 2 2 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2014

In response to that, the Directors have assessed the
prospects and finanoal viability of the Group, taking into
account bothits current position and arcumstances, and
the petential impact of s principal nsks The Directors
consider a three-year perod was appropriate for this
assessment as our capital cycle from land completion to
final sell-out of 8 developrment, for FY17 buiid starts, 1s
approximately three years. Our land pipeline alsc provides
us with sufficient land under control to meet sales rargets
for the next three years Accordingly, we consider it

o No change e Decreased

appropriate that our viabiity review periad 15 broadly aligned
with the expected longewity of our cwned land supply

The Group 1s subject to a number of principal risks fas
set out in more detait above, and the Directors’ viabifity
statement review considered the impact that these risks
might have on the Group's ability tc meet its targets This
was undertaken through the performance of a single
downside case sensitivty, which reflects a severe but
plausible impact assurming that appropriate steps are
teken to mitigate the impact of the downside

The Directors have a reasonable expectanon that the Company
and the Group will be able to continue in aperation and
meet its labilities as they fall due over the three-year
assessment period
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

A responsible housebuilder

Graphic removed

Our focus on enriching the lives of

our homeowners and employees
influences all of our activities,

from identifying and buying |_
suitable land to designing, building,
selling and managing high quality
age-exdusive properties

Graphic removed
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Introduction

Thus, our second Corporate Social
Responsibility {CSR) report, since
re-joining the London Stock Exchange,
encompasses all the operations fram
the {and aguisition, planning and
design stage through construction

to management of our occupled
developments It explains how we
nteract with our stakeholders, namely
our emgployaes, our customers, our
hamecwners and the communities

in which we operate

As the UK's leading retirement

housebuilder, our driving ambition

across our business 15 to enrich

the Iives of our homeowners and

employees We aim to deliver this by
= Creating a great place to work
which 1s both safe and inspiring
for our employees

& minimising the environmental
Impact of our activities

= engaging positively with the local
communities in which our
developments are built

» buiding a culture of excellence in
health and safety ecross all our
business activities

w bullding safe and wbrant
developments to help older people
lead healthy independent lives
ensuring that they experience
retirement lving to the full

Our C5R Commuttee meets quarteriy
and 1s chared by Gary Day, our
Executve Land & Planning Director

It includes representatives from
across the business - tand & Planning,
Procurement, Construction, Regiona
Management, Health & Safety, HR,
Communicatons, Management Services
and Legal The Committee reports
directly to the Executive Leadership
Teamn and indirecily o the plc Board

QOur priorities for FY17 and FY18

The main priorities of the

Cammittee in F¥17 have been

» establishing KPis

= implementing a framewark for
greenhouse gas emIssIcn reparung

During FY18 the Committee will fecus on

= contining toimprove our C5R
performance

» refimng our CSR reporting framework

STRATEGIC REPORT

Planning and design

We understand that aur homeowners
want to remarin active within thewr
community and near to lecal amenities
and pubhc transport inks On average
our homeowners move Ne more

than five miles from their current
home intc a McCarthy & Stone
apartment, so our developments

are clearly helme to meet acnical
and growing local housing need

We have strict critena when purchasing
land to ensure the location will suit the
needs and aspirations of customers
Cur developments are typically built

on centrally located, urban, brownfield
sites which were previously developed
or had an existing established use

Examples of sites we have purchased
mnclude local authority surplus car parks
ar buldings, palice and fire stations,
garages, pubs, care homes and hotels
In FY17 92% (FY16 94%) of cur land
exchanges were brownfield sites

We always seek to optirise the
development density of our sites This,
combined with a relatively fow level of
car ownership and usage amongst our
homeowners, means that we deliver a
highly sustainable form of development

Community consultation

We consuit with local communives,
businesses and other relevant
stakeholders on everfy new planning
application we bring forward {both pre
and post-submission], ncluding hotding
ore-to-one meetings, discUssIons

with affected parties and public
exhitntions, This gives neighbours and
other interested parties a platform

to voice their opinions, many of

which help to inform our designs

and approach to construction

During FY17, over 92 (FY16 133
consultations and exhibiions were held
with 84 4% (FY16 76 6%) of atrendees
adwvising that they found them informative

Construction

We are aware of the impact that the
canstruction phase of aur actvinies can
have on the lotal community All of our
sites must comply with internal policies
around levels of noise, cleanhness and
presentation and some of our sites

are accredited under the Considerate
Constructors Scheme ({CCSY)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Minimising our impact on the
envirenment

There are clear ervironmental and
business benefits o designing energy
efficient homes, using responsibly
sourced and efficcent materials, and with
the rmimmum of waste sent to landfil}

Having a clear understanding of where
our money s being spent and how much
waste we create during the construction
and operation of our developments
allows us to make better nformed
business deasions whilst ensuring we
minimise our environmental impact

We are committed to reducing the level
of waste generated by our construction
sites year-on-year as this will bring both
financial and ervironmental benefits

Qfthe 18,821 tonnes of waste penerated
cn our construction sites in FY17, only
17% (320 ronnes) went ¢ landfill, the
rest being recycled We continue to work
with our waste management companies
ta further imprave this figure, as wefl

as with our suppliers to reduce waste
further up the supply chain

DI YOU
KNOW?

93.3%
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Greenh gas

This section has been prepared in
accordance with our regulatory
obligation to report greenhouse gas
{GHG} emissions pursuant to Section
7 of the Comparies Act 2006 (Strategic
Report and Directors’ Repart)
Regulations 2013 As a newly listec
compary, this s the firsr year we have
reported our GHG emissions 1 our
Annual Report

Duning the period from 1 September
2016 to 31 August 2017, McCarthy &
Srone emicted a total of 16,382 tannes
of Carben Dioxide equwvaient ({C0O,e)
from combustion of fuel and operation
of faciles {(Scope 1 direct} anc
electricity purchased for our own use
{Scope 2 indirect location-based)

The rable below shows our GHG
emissions for the year ended
31 August 2017

Gr h issi intCOe

F¥17

gas

Compustion of fuel and
operation of faciities {Scope 1)

Electricity, heat, steam and
cooling purchased far our own
use {Scope 2 iacaton-based)

Electricity, heat, steam and
cooling purchased for our own
use (Scope 2 market-based}

8,681

7701

2,661

5Cope 2 AM wsns ke laee Jsing the markes-pased
approach usirg suppber specific ermss an lactars are
calcutated 2nd reported 1m (€O,

Methodology

We quantify and report our
organisational GHG emmissions
according to the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol Our sustainability consuitant,
Carbon Credernais, performed the
calculations to convert our actity
data imo CO; equivalent using the UK
Government 2017 Conversion Factors
for Company Reportng

This report has been prepared in
accordance with the recent
amendments 1o the GHG Protocol’s
Scope 2 Guidance, we have therefore
reported both a locaton-based and
market-based Scope 2 emussions
figure The Scope 2 market-based
figure reflects emissions from

&0 McCarthy & Stoae pic

reporting

electricity purchasing decisions that
McCarthy & Stone has made

wWhen guantifying emissions using the
market-based approach we have used
a suppher speafic emission facror
where possible If these factors were
unavailable aresidual mix emission
factor was used This appraach s in hne
with the GHG Protoce! Scope 2 Date
Hierarchy

We have also chosen to report our
emissions per number of managed
developments {312)

Greanhouse gas emissions in tCOe

N ]

Graphicremoved

L ]

ions and estimations

Lecaton- Maret-

besed bused

approach approach

e B/

Total Scope 1 and 2 16,382 11,341
€Oy e per Managed

Developrnent 525 364

e emissions irlensy Laluletion s based or g figure
ol 312 rnanaged developmer.s far e year
September 26160 31 August 2017

Reporting boundaries

and limitations

We consolidate our organisational
boundary according to the operational
control approach Emissions for all
significant sites nave been disclosed,
which includes our offices, constructcn
sites and developments

The GHG sources that conshitute our
operational boundary for FY17 are

w Scope 1:Natural gas combustion
within bollers, diesel combustion
within generators and road fuel
combustion within vehicles

w Scope 2 Purchased electricity
CUHSUmp[IDﬂ for our own use

As this 1s our first year of reporting we
have been unable to gather sufficient
information on refngerant consumption
across the organisation, therefore this 1s
excluded from our disclosure

p
As this is the first year we have reported
our GHG emissions, our data collection
processes have not been fully
operational across all areas of reporting
We have therefore used some
assumplions In order to estmate our
activity data For example, we did not
have records of vehicle fuel consumption
avallable for management senaces’
employees or company vans Therefore,
esumations were made using avaiable
data from ather parts of the business

In addmion, accurate records of

diesel combustion n generators at
construction sites were rot avallable

ir ume for reporting Therefore, an
esumation was used based on average
diesel consumption at each site as well
as avallable records from procurement.

in some cases, missing data has been
estimated using extrapolation of
avallable data fram the reporung penod

tmproving performance

We monitor energy consumption on
the developments we manage In detail
to identify opportunities to iImprove
energy performance We have now
begun the process of collectng mare
accurate data for construction sites
and offices Thiswili help us to
undersgand more about our
consumption and energy use, and 1o
reduce our emissions gong forward



Efficient homes

We design our developments to

maxirmise the performance of the

fabric and matenals of the building

The “fabnic first” approach 1s used

for @ number of reasons

» [t priorimses the largest item of
energy consumption in hames
maintaiming a comfortaple internal
temperature

s The energy efficiency 1s integrated
nto the building and dees not require
occupants to operate complex
systems or change therr behaviours

We emplay a range of methods across

our “fabric first” epproach including

= Maximising arr aghtness

w Installing insulation in walls and
loft spaces

= Opumising sclar gain through
openings and shades

= Optmising ventlation and using
the thermal mass of buillding fabrics

s Addition of photovoltaic cells to
buildings where practical

Customer feedback

We alsc listen and respond to customer
feedback. Qur current work on
improving kitchens 1s a good example
of this Around 20% of cur negative or
neutral feedback on the NHBC New
Homes Survey was related to kitchens,
with storage space the mast common
cnticsm As a result, we have improved
the speaficavon of our kitchens and
implemented an aptimised design to
make better use of the storage space

Engaging with the community
We do not ust consult with local
communines at the planning stage
- we also engage with therm dunng
the construction phase Activives
mdude visiting lacal schools or
organising visits Lo our sites 1o
encourage children to understand
the dangers of construction sites

Creating a culture of excellence
and a great place to work

Qur people are vital to the contmued
growth and success of our business
We recognise that attracting and
retaining empioyees is only possible

If we provide the night working
environment, appropriate reward and
recognition schemes and opportunities
for personal developrment and training

STRATEGIC REPORT

Al 31 August 2017, the Group employed
2,264 people (FY16 2,094) Tis figure
gucludes subcontraciors and agency
workers Some 59% of employees in
the main business are employed on
sites or at developments cr as House
Managers with the balance based in
our regional and central offices

Employee communications

We commuricate with our employees
through a vanety of channels including
regular updates and the Group's
quarterly staff newsletter Group-wide

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DID YOU
KNOW?

>13,500

Online and face-to-face
training courses

business updates led by our Chief
Executive Officer on the business (Fi
strategy give employees an opportunity
to provide feedback to management

completed in FY17

8,200}

Ermployees: as at 31 August 2017

Female
Directors of the Board
- aceual number 5 2 7
- percentage 71 4% 28 6%
Empleoyees in senior management positions
{including Directors of subsidiary companies}
- actual number 103 27 130
- percentage 79.2% 20 B%
Total employees of the Group
texduding Non-Executive Directors)
- actual numner 756 1,508 2,264
33.4% 66.6%

- percentage

At the end of the financial year &6 &% of all employees were female and 42 7%
were over the age of 50

Employee survey

Cur lazest all-employee survey was carried out in Cctober 2016 The response
rate was B6% and, as shown in the table below, demonstrated that sur employee
engagerment scores continue to be significantly higher than external benchmarks

External benchmarks for the employee survey are provided by the externat suppler,
and are based on responses to the same question from other survey partcipants

Sxternal
2017 Employees survey Pz " e
{am proud to work for McCarthy & Stone 87 89 &3
I would be happy 101 ecammend McCarthy &
Stone as a place to work 79 8 74
| feel a sense of belonging at McCarthy & Stene 77 76 54
| feel valued for the work! do 74 74 44
| 3m clear about how my role contributes to
McCarthy & Stone's success 90 o1 62

McCarthy & stons plc Anrual Report and Accounts 1



Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Our values are;

Passion
Responsibility
innovation
Determination
Excellence

Recognition of achievements

QOur vakues, which were chosen by our
employees, are the standards to which
we hold ourselves accountable and
reflect the way we work, the way we
communicate and the way we act

PRIDE
i Fy?

We celebrate and recognise employees
who go the extra mite for a customer
or colleague through our guarterly and
annual PRIDE awards Our progress

15 userated by our mast recent
empioyee survey, which identified

that 87% of cur employees are proud
to work for McCarthy & Stone

Ary staff member can nominate a
colleague for an instant PRIDE award
which 1s Judged by our regional PRIDE
champions Each quarter, instant

PRIDE winners are then put forward for
quarterly awards with overall winners
beng judged on an anrual basis Durng
F¥17, 674 PRIDE awards were presented

Image

1 Chifdres ond teachers from Lucknoll Day Nursery
visit Whybwrn Court, Noionghom

82 McCarthy & Stone plc
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NHBC Pride in the Job awards

We are extremely pleased that our
standards are recognised externally

In 2017, 15 of our site managers were
awarded NHBC Pride in the Job awards,
an impressive 50% increase over 2016

NHBC Pride in the Job 1s the industry’s
maost prestigious awards programme,
the awards recogrise site managers
wha achieve the highest standards of
housebuilding and who demonstrate
the highest qualities of workmanship,
teadership, technical expertise and
health and safety awareness 7 of
aur site managers have recewved an
NHBC Seal of Excellence Award

Apprentices and trainees

We offer aspring site managers the
opportunity 1o learn hands-on skills on
our construcnon sites whilst studying
1owards a NVQ gualfication such as Level
4 Diploma in Construction and Buiding
Services Management, and Supervisions
and Technical Certificate Level 4 NHC in
Construction and the Built Environment
We also participate In a Shared Trade
Apprentice Scheme, partnering with
South West-hased subcontractors, and
various colleges We hope that, once
qualified, the apprentices will continue
working for the Group, thus helping

|

to alleviate national shortages In
skilled fabour

We have also offered tranee
contracts in other departments
such as Sales, Finance and Legal

Opportunities for development

We have an ongoing commitment to
training, and personal and professionat
development Performance against
objectives 1s formally reviewed on
arvannual basis As well as seting
objectives, the process includes the
igenufication and implementation of
atalored personal developmentplan
Improvement programmes focusing on
quality, efficency and customer service
provide an opportunity for all employees
to be involved in the development

of our business and producis

Student placement scheme

The Group is also developing the
next generation of housebutiders
through a student placement scheme
run N comunction with Northumbria
University As part of the scheme,
which has been running since 1991,
students studying for the BSc Hons
In Construction Project Management
have the opportunity to spend a
year working at McCarthy & Stone



This works well for both the students,
who gairm on-site experience,

and for McCarthy & Stone, with

many students competing for
placements and choosing to become
employees after they graduate

Four new students started their
placement years with us in August
2016 Intotal, over 130 people have
completed the schermne with us since
It was launched with several scheme
partiapants continuing to work far

us after completng their degrees
Some have nsen to senior rales in the
organisation, ncluding two who are
naw regional managing directors

Employee involvement

Ermployees are encouraged t©
participate in the success of the
Group We currently have two share
schemes which are open to all
employees - a Sharesave plan (SAYE}
and a 5hare incentive Plan (SIF") The
SAYE savings contracts are for either
three or five years. Nerther scheme s

STRATEGIC REPORT

House Manager & Estate
Manager of the Year awards

Two years age we introduced our
House Manager and Estate Manager
of the Year awards ta recognise the
amagng work that our peaple do

N managing aur developments
These awards recognise the House
Manager and Estate Manager who
have excelled 1n their role and gone
above and beyond to enrich the
lives of colleagues and homeowners
alke In June our House Manager
and Estate Manager of the Year

for 2017 were anpounced

N ]
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Katnna Andrews, our House Manager
at Coppice Gate, Dibden Purlieu, has a
long background in customer service
and care, and was appointed as
House Manager at Coppice Gate
whien it first opened in August 2015
Nominations for Katrina commented
on how supportive she 15 1o everyone
around her, how fun she s and how
she has a real passion for working with
pecple She cammented on hew
COMMg Into work was not like work at
all, and that to make a difference to
pecple's iives was the best possible
Job satisfacton

Richard Wilsen has worked for
YourLife Management Services since
March 2014, and recened countless
nominauoons far hus fantastic

work, enthusiasm and positivity

as well as always being faw and
approachable te bath colleagues
and homeowners On accepting his
award, Richard said how lucky he felt
to have ajob he enjoyed sa much

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

subgect to performance condiiions

Diversity and inclusivity
We are committed to promoting policies
ta ensure that our employees are

treatad equally, regardiess of status,
gender, sex, age, tolour, race or ethnic
angin Kotrino Andreva, tHouse Mongger of the Yeor 2017

and Richord Wilson, Estfe Manoger of the Year 2017

We give full consideration to applications
for erployment fram people with
disabilmies where the requirements
of the job can be adeguately fulfilied
by a person with a disability Should
any employee become disabled, it is
the Group's policy, wherever possible,
to continue the employment of that
person itis the Group's pelicy
provide equal opportunities for the
tramung and career developrnent

of employees with disabifiies

On-site, we emphasise a proactive
approach to health and safety as well as
reinforang the indvidual responsibility
that every site worker has for therr, and
therr colleagues’ health and safety All
staff (both employees and contractors)
are required to have adequate health
and safety quahficatrons before starting
work on one of our sites and all
centractors are required to hold a valid
Construction Skils Cernfication Scheme
Card This evidences that the contractor
has the refevant skils required for their
rale, including understanding the health
and safety implications of the work they
perform

Building a culture of excellence

in health & safety

Health & safety continues to be one of
our top pricrties In F¥17, we relaunched
aur Health & Safety Commuttee, which
meets quarterly Members of the
Commuttee indude representatives
from Health & Safety, Construction,
Legal, HR, Marketing and Management
Services and 1s chaired by John
Tonkiss, aur Chuef Operating Officer
We have recently reviewed and updated

our Eguality and Diversity Policy The Comrmittee has oversight of afl

aspects of the Group's heatth and
safety management pclices and
procedures, as well as regulatary
155ues and best pracuce

Human rights

We support the United Nations’
Universal Declaraucn of Hurman Rights
and have polices and processes in place
to ensure that we act In accordance with
principles 1n relation to areas such as
ant-corruprion, dversity, whistleblowing
and the requirements of the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 Afi suppliers are
required to confirm compliance with

our Modern Stavery Policy which

was adopted during the year

We require all of our sie managers
and assistant site managers to hold
Construction Industry Training Beard's
('CIT8) Site Management Safety Training
Scheme qualifications and to be
qualified first aiders There mustbe a
qualified first aider on-site at afl tirmes
and all ncidents must be reported
internally We believe our rigorous
reporting standards provide uswith a
very honest portrayal of our acadent
statistics

In addition, the Health & Safety
Operauens Director reports directly

to the Executive Leadership Team

As well as the central team who
determine our health and safety
strategy, we have a Group Construction
Health & Safety Manager and

regional Health & Safety advisers

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts a3



Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Dunng FY17, we repor ted 23 incidents
under the Reporting of Inaidents
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
Reguiations (RIDDOR’) to the Health
& Safety Executive We have been
actvely encouraging transparency of
accident repart.ng and we belleve that
the increase ir AAIDDCR reporung this
year is a reflection of the greater level
of scruainy placed by the Group on
this area

We empioy the BSG to undertake
independent audits of our construction
sites throughout the year and It vists
each site every three'weeks during the
build process Although arecalbration
of the scoring ¢ itenia “or the B5G audits
n FY17 has résulted in lower average
scares, It also prowdes more meaningful
feedback thar befare Dunng FY17

our average score was 86 1% against
the new scoring criteria (FY16 98 7%)
These audits help the Group move
closer to its goal of achieving a culture
of excellence n health and safety

Since 2015, the Group has entered Its
sites for the NHBC Health and Safety
Awards These have been running for
eight years, and recognise and reward
the very best in health and safety, with
the aim of driving up standards, and
showcasing and sharing best practice

During FY17, we receved two NHBC
Health and Safety commendations
and won three BSG Health and Safety
awards We won the BSG Best Use
of Technology for Health & Safety
award for our proneering work using
drones for roaf inspection to obviate
the need for work at height We also
won two Site Manager of the Year
awards in 8SG's South West and
Midlands regions respectively

All our house managers and estate
managers have basic first aid training
and are qualfied ta make infial
assessments of rminor tnps and falls
Any Incdent involving a homeowner
on one of ocur developments ments a
full enguiry perfurmed by our Health
& Safety team with 3 view to ensuring
that the incdent 1s not repeated

Key igures from aur 2017 Homecwines Sads'awlion Survey

From August 2017, all of our rew
developments are being fitted with
automatic external defibrillators

All offices have a qualifieg first

aider whose yraiing 1s refreshed
arnually Al staff are also required 1o
complete a desk-based questionnarre
concerning their desk space and
seating arrangements

Ir 2014, we brougnt our heaith and
safety training in-house, allowing us

1o tallor the courses to our needs We
have intreduced training for staff te
enable them to become increasingly
self-suppoartve M therr management

of heglth and safety During FY1/, the
Group debverad 355 in-house tranimg
caurses for employees and 178 in-house
training courses for cantractors In tatal,
563 people attended safety workshops
and 12 BSG safety surgeries were held

Livingin a McCarthy & Stone
development

Qur Retirement Living and Retirernent
Living Plus developments have a house
mangger or estate manager on-site
during warking hours or up to 24
hours a day, respectively Since 2010
these services have been provided in
all new develepments by our in-house
management services businesses
Their role 1s not only to heip deal with
any Issues that our hormeowners may
have but also 10 help create a frienaly
and communal emaronment where
the homeowners can, if they wish, seek
companionship and make new friends
To suppart this, the Group has set

up a ‘community fund’ which can be
spent at the House/Estate Manager's
discretion with the aim of engendering
a sense of community within the first
year of each new development

We are very proud of the work that
our management services businesses
do In prometng socal interacuon
arneng our homeowners More than
27,600 soaal events were held in our
managed developments dunng FY¥17,
averaging more than seven events
per development per manth

Agreed  Disagreed

| feel safe and secure in my property 96% 2%
My property 1s easy to maintain 94% 1%
My property 1s easy to live in / statable for my needs 93% 3%
| have good access to local amerities and facimes 91% 3%
I feel 'at hame' in my property 89% 3%
| find the communal areas homely and welcorming 85% 5%
| make use of the communal areas to socialise 80% 5%

[ McCarthy & Sconeplc

Sacial events are orgarised In our
homeowners' lounges and range from
coffee mornings. film and guiz nights,
MUSIC evenings, exercise and craft
classes to Iocal interest talks and events

Qur homeowners have been especally
supportive of our 40th year celebration
RVS fundraising challenge, holding coffee
mornngs and bake-off competitions

DD YOu
KNOW?

held iy our
mF

Qur homeowners tell us what
they think of McCarthy & Stone
In August 2017 we commissioned our
second homeowners’ satisfaction
survey, contacting homeowners in
our developrments which have been
open for at least 18 months We
undertook the survey to see how
our scores compare to the NHBC
surveys, which are undertaken at
eight weeks and at mine months

QOver 4,200 hormeowners (51%)
responded and the results compare vel
favourably with the NHBC survey Overall
satisfaction had Improved shightly from
85% 1o 86% Feedback around the
gualty of lfe in our developments was,
on the whole, positive a5 indicated by
the responses shown in the tabie below

We wilt use the feedback from

the survey to inform discussions
across the business on how we
can improve the design, layout and
management of cur developments

Helping our homeowners to
reduce their carbon footprint
During 2016, we Degan a rall-out

of smart electricity meters across
our developments These allow us
o Monitor usage on g real-time
basis, both in terms of kwh and cosi
of electricity used within shared
areas on 3 half-hourly basis As at

31 August 2017, 98 developments
had these smart meters installed,
representing approximately 31% of
the Group's managed developments



The data from the new meters nas
been receved enthusiastically by
hameowners with energy savings
already starting to be seen Sgme of
the benefits include laundry faclibes
beaing used outside of peak hours
when electricity 1s cheaper, windows
and doors being kept shut when the
heating 1s on, 2nd the heatng being
turned dawn when not required

We will start our roli-out of smart
gas meters across the Group's

Retirement Lming Plus develcpments
which use gas, during FY18

r i
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Bacoming Dementia-Frigndly
In March 2017, we welcomed the
publicauon of the Dementia-
friendly housing charter that has
been intraduced to inform housing
organisatians, corporate bodies
and sector professionals on how
housing, s design and supporting
services can help improve and
maintain the wellbeing of pecple
affected by demenua

The charter, which we played a rote in
drafung, 1s an important and influential
document that will inspire the housing
sector o make a valuable cortribution
to support people with dementia

We have already identified areas
where we can improve our preducts
to make them more dementia-friendly
and we have made 1t a priory to
continue ta make key changes across
our orFanisatwon to help improve the
Iives of people [ving with dementia
We have introduced "Designing

for Dementia” gurdance for pur
architects and intenor designers

In October 2016 we arculated cur
own Becoming Dementia-Friendly
- Achieving Excellence in our
Developments document to all our
Retirement Living Plus developrnents
Our aim s o encourage staff and
homeowners to commit to working
together for people with demenua,
and to provide the families and friends
of people with dementia access to
more structured and personalised
support for their loved onas

1
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Our subsidiary, YourLife Management
Services Limited, YLMS, 1s a member of
the Natonal Dementia Acuon Alliance,
which brings together organisations
and individuals across England
committed to improving health and
social care outcomes for people Iving
with dementig, and those who care
for thern YLMS has produced an
action plan representing our stance
naticnally to achieve better standards
for people lving with dementia

We are striving to ensure that all of
our developments, both existing and
new burids, will incorperate elements
and principles of dementa-friendly
design We have developed a McCarthy
& Stane guide that promotes a
technology solution for the needs

of our homeowners this Includes
the new 'Care Chp' that can enable a
person ta leave a development safe
In the knowledge that we can track
therr whereabouts as needed

The more our business knows about
dementa, the more we can doto
help and understand the disease
Appropriate training Is therefore vital
and we have redesigned and lengthened
the dermentia awareness course
offered to our estate management
teams and our house managers to
hels thern understand the basics

of dementia, and the response
needed to support people iving with
dementia in our developments

Awirtual dementia tour has been
delivered to all of our estate
management teams The aim of this
tramning 1s for individuals to experience
what It 15 like to have dementia and
put that learning into practice in their
developments by mproving standards

We are encouraging all of gur staffto
become Dementia Friends to learn

a httle bit more about what it 1s Iike
to hve with dementia and then turn
that understanding into action

Our overarching aim is to meet the
challenge of supperting people with
dementia and their family members
Through this challenge, we aim to
create an environment that is inclusive,
accepting and promotes guality of

Iife for peaple Iving with 3ement\a

MeCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts [



Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Qur RVS fundraising challenge
Qur desire 1o support and ennch r T
the lves of older people has been

the driving force behing our 40th

Anniversary chanty partnership

Wwith RvS in 2017 Events have been

held acrass the business to raise

rmoney for RYS to support the

fantastic work it does 1n neiping

older people live better at nome

Qur employees have partiapated

n cycle ndes, charity walks,

Sponsored events, marathons and

even a parachute Jump in Dubar Graphicremoved

DID YOU
KNOW?

>£200,000

n + a -

Graphic removed Graphic remaved

L L .

We had a dragon boat race in the West We are delighted that we surpassed
Midlands region, whilst the North our £130,000 target by early September Graphi oved
East region organised a charity ball 2017 With events stli beng organised raphic rem!
and money still roling in, we are L
Our homegwners have also tremendously proud of, and grateful !
been extremely supportive of far the achievements and support
our fundraising challenge and of our employees, our homeowners
have organised events across our and our suppliers, who have all
developments during the year contributed to this wonderful cause

imoges

T South West Region Sky Dive

2 Morth Landon Charity woik

3 Narth Wedt flegun aof Haydack Races

o6 McCarthy & Stonae plc



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CSR KPIs
P FY17 autcome ~¥1E o2
Planning and design
Consultations and exhibitons 92 133
Nurmber of attenctees who found this informatve B4.4% 75 6%
Construction and environmental
Greenniouse gas emission per managed development - tonnes of Carbon Dioxide equivalent {tC0,e) 525 n/a
Waste to landfill 1.7% 5 6%
BSG construction site audit {average score) B6.1%' 98 7%
Smartmeters in our developments 31% 22%
Employees
PRIDE awards 674 572
Percentage of female Direciors 2B.6%* 14,3%
Percentage of female employees 66.6% 63 8%
Traming courses (employees) 13,500+ 8,200
Percentage of emplayees over 50 42.7% 45 9%
WNHBC Pride in the Job awards 15 10
NHRBC Seat of Excellence awards 7 2
Health and safety
RIDDOR incidents - construction sites/offices® 23 ]
NHBC Health and Safety awards (cornmended) 2 5
BSG Health & Safety award winners 3 2
In-house tramning courses for contractars rakl 178
Customer satisfaction
HBF Frve Star award Yes Yes
27,600+ 16,500+

Annual number of sacial actvties in our developments

T The reduchon 1s fue io o recatiinamion of the scorng citena fo provide more mearngfu feedhback
2 lhe percentage has redutad post year end (o 25% [offiowing ihe appormtmend of john Carter

T inciuges RIBNUIRS wn respect of sub-tontroclons of our sites

4 the number of sociut imvities was only repurted jor eight months of Y16

Qur Strategic Report, on pages 4-67 has been reviewed and approved by
the Board

On behalf of the Board

Clive Fenton
13 November 2017

MeCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts &7
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smaved

Graphic removed

MOge COPUONS
1 View of Poole Harbour from Horuons

2 Beocon Court, Rife
2 Mr & Mrs Mangeh, Eim Tree Court Huntingdon
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Board of Directors

Graphic removed

L J

John White
Group Nen-Executive Chairman

Graphic removed

L _

Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer

John was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Chairman
of the Group In September 2013 and 1s also Charman of

our Nomination Committee He was Group Charman of
Persimmion plg, & position he held between April 2006 and
April 20711, having previously been Group Chief Execunve
QOfficer since 1993 He has spent all his working ife in the
housing industry and has unrivalled experience of working
within the sectos

John ts also Charman of Northampton Saints plc and
a director of Narthampton Rugby Footbafl Ciub Limiged
and Prermier Rugby Limited

On @ November 2017, the Company annaunced John's
intention o retire fallowing the concluston of the Company’s
AGM on 24 January 2018 and the appointment of Paul Lester
as Chairman Designate

Clive joirted the Group as Chief Executive Officer in February
2014 He has & wealth of both housebuilding and business
experience, having spent almost 30 years with Barratt
Devetopments plc He joined Barratt in 1983 and worked

17 a pumber of finance and operational rales before

being appointed to the Group Board in 2003 with overall
responsiBility for all operations in the Seuth of England

He was also responsible for group strategic lend, partnershp
housing and retirement homes More recently he was

Chief Executive Officer of Mount Anwil, a development
company specialising in the residential praperty market

in central London

Committees
Charman of the Normination Cemmittee and a member or
the Remuneration Committee

70 McCarthy & Stong pic

Committees
Member of the Nominauon, Disclosure and Allotmeng
Commitiees
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Graphic removed

L -

John Tonkiss
Chief Operating Officer

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Graphic removad

L |

Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer

John joned McCarthy & Stone in February 2014 and joined the
Board in November 2015 He was appainted as ChEegOpErat\ng
Officer on 1 June 2017 John previcusty held the roles of
Operatons Director - North and Business Transformation
Director, and becarne Group Natonal Operauions Director in
September 2016 He is responsible for the Group's nine operating
regions and also leads the improvement change programme 1o
accelerate business growth, enhance customer expertence and
improve aperating performance

Johnwas previously Chief Executive Officer of Humart
Recocgritign Systerns, the UK's leading biemetric solutions
provider Prior to that. he worked for ten yaars for The Unite
Group, the UK's largest provider of purpose-built student
accommodation, becorming Group Chief Operaung Officer
in 2008

Rowan joined McCarthy & Stone in January 2012 and was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer on 6 January 2017
hawving previously held the role of Greup Financial Contraller
Rowan played a lead role in the Company’s successiut IPC
n Novemnbar 2015

Before Joining McCarthy & Stone, Rowan held various roles n
industry and private pracuice, most notably at Barclays Bank
plc and PricewaterhouseCoopers Rowan 15 a Charterad
Accountant and 2 Chartered Tax Adviser

Committees
Member of the Allotment and Health & Safety Committees

Committees
Member of the Disclasure and Allotment Commitiees

McCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts



Board of Directors continued

Graphic removed
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Frank Nelson
Senior Independent Director

Graphic removed

L _

Mike Parsons
Independent Non-Executive Director

Frank jomed the Board n Novernber 2013 and 1s the Senior
Independent Director and Chairman of the Risk and Audht
Commitiee He s a qualified accountant with 30 years'
experience in the housebulding, infrastruciure and energy
sectors He was Finance Directar of Galliford Try ple from
2000 until 2012 and was aiso responsible for s PFI/PPP
artviies Hewes previously Finance Director of Try Group pic
from 1987, leading the company through 1ts flotatian in 1989
and subsequent merger with Gallford

Franks currently the Senor independent Director aof
HICL Infrastructare Cornpany timited, Telford Homes plc
and Eurocell plc Frank also acis as an adwiser to certain
privaie businesses

Mike joined the Board In Novemiper 2013 as a Non-Executive
Director and is Charrman of the Remuneration Committee
He founded Barchester Healthcare 23 years ago, following

a succassiul career in advernsing Barchester is one of the
largest independent healthcare providers N the UK

Mike s criairman of Breezie and Qornph, vice chair of

Care England, the care sector trade association, and a
Non-Executive Director of Connect Physiotherapy He also
cnams Albion Care Commmumbes, wio are developing the
next generation of care homes, and 1s 2 director of Martha
Flora, the Dutch dermentia specahst

Committees
Chairman of the Risk and Audit Committee, and a member
of the Rermuneration and Nomination Committees

2 McCarthy & Stone pic

Coammitieses
Chairman of the Remunerauon Committee, and a member
of the Risk and Audit and Normration Comrittees



STRATEGIC REPORT

Graphic removed
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Geeta Nanda, OBE
Independent Non-Executive Director

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Graphic removed
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John Carter
Independent Non-Executive Director

Geeta jonec the Beard in April 2015 as 3 Non-Exetutive
Directar She has more than 28 years' experience in the
housing sector and has recently served as Chief Executive
Cfficer of Thames Valley Housing Assoaciation Lanited {TVHA)
Geeta joined TVHAIN 2008 and in 2013 was awarded an OBE
far her achievements to sodal housing.

Geeara s a Director of Fizzy Enterpnses {2 jont venture

with Silver Arrow, a subsidiary of the Abu Dhabi Investment
Authority) which she launched in 2012, as a branded
market rent proposition She has 23 years' experience

in non-executive rales and has served on the Boards of
two hausing organisations and national and local charives.
Geeta moved to Metropolitan Housing Association as Chief
Executive Officer iIn Qctober 2017

John was appointed a Non-Executive Directar of McCarthy &
Stane in September 2017 He is currently the Chief Executive
of Travis Perkins plc, a position held since January 2014
Having Joned Trawis Perkins in 1978, he was appointed 1o the
Board n 2001 John has been the driving force behind

the growth af Travis Perlans plc, the No 1 suppher of building
materals n the UK, and resgonsm}e for the growth of 20

UK gndd Curopean business brands serving retail and B28
customers with mternational global sourang operatrons

John mangged and integrated a number of key strategic
acquisiions over the past 20 years, induding Keyline in 1999,
Wickes in 2005, and the BSS Group John was previously a
Trustee of the British Research Establishment for three years
from 2013t 2016

Committees
Member of the Risk and Audit, Remuneration and
Naminatgn Committees

Committees
Nane

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts
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Corporate
Governance

Graphic removed

L

John White, Group Non-Executive Chairman

Ta WcCarthy k Stone pic

“| am pleased to present the
Corporate Governance section
of our FY17 Annual Report. We
believe that a solid corporate
governance framework is
essential for upholding our
core business values and
delivering our strategy and itis
my responsibility to promote
high standards of governance
and business practice
throughout the organisation”

We continue to strive to ensure that our practices and
procedures are appropriate for a publicly hsted company
and reflect our commitment to good corparate gavernance
and effective leadership

In this section of the Report we explan how we rmanage our
business and premaote high standards of governance across
the Group We describe cur governance structure and explain
how we have apphied the man principles of the UK Corparate
Governance Code 2016 {'the Code’) and the Disclosure
Guigdance ang Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority (DTR Rules’) over the past year A copy of the Code
can be found on the Financial Reporting Counal’s website
www.fre.org.uk
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Compliance with the Code

The Company has complied with the mam prinaples

of the Coge for FY17 The iollowing paragraphs set out
how we have complied References are o the principles
ofthe Code

A. Leadership

The role of the Board (A1}

The Board 15 responsible for operational control of the Group,
including all strategic. financial, orgamisational, legal and
regutatory matters and the Directors meet regularly (o enable
thern to discharge therr duties The Company Secretary (Group
General Counsel and Compary Secresaryh s responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that
apohcable fuies and regulations are complied with in addiiion,
the Dwectors may take independent professtonal adwice as
required

There s a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved
for Board decisior which 1s kept under regular review

Matters reserved for the Board include:
Approval of the Group's objectives, values and standards
Approval of the business model and strategy

Qversight of the Group’s operations o ensure sound,
competent and orudent management

Approval of major changes to the Group’s structure

and control

Approval of maior land acquisitions

Internal controls and a sound system of Fisk management

Approval of sharenolder commumicanons

In acceraance with the Code, the Board has established three
formai Board Committees Risk anc Audit, Remuneration and

Nominavan The membership of each of the Committeesisin
comphance with the requirements of the Code and the terms

of reference of the Commttees are included on our corporate
website

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Details of the responsibiliies of each of the Committees

and ther actvitles during the year are set out on the following
pages of this Report The Company Secretary acts as Secretary
lo each of the Committees

In addtion, the Board has estabhshed a Disclosure Commiltee,
whose role 1s to ensure tmely and accurate disclosure of
mfarmation that we are required to publish in accordance with
our legal and regulatory obligations 1t meets onan ad-hec
basts and its mermbership 15 the Chief Executive Officer, the
Chief Finanaizal Officer, the Company Secretary and the Director
of Communications

The Board has established a sub-committee called the
Allotment Committee, whose role 15 ta approve the allotment
and i1ssue of shares in the Company within the hmits
authorised by shareholders at each AGM The Allotment
Committee, whose members are the Execuuve Directors
and the Company Secretary, meet oh an ad-hoc basis

The role of the Executive Leadership Team IS to support
the Chief Executive Officer in implementng Group strategy
and managing the day-to-day operanons of the business

It meets each rmonth. As well as the Executive Leadership
Team, the other members of the Executive Beard are the
Land & Planning Director, the HR Direcrer, the Director

of Communicatiens, the Group Marketing & Customer
Experence Director and the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary

The role of the Executive
Leadership Team is to support
the Chief Executive Officer in

implementing Group strategy
and managing the day-to-day
operations of the business

Decistons on investments and development activities are
made by the Group Investment Committee which meets
weekly and is chaired by the Land & Planning Director, with
major nvestment decisions being referred on to the Board
for final approval

The governance structure for the Group s set out on page 79

McCarthy &k Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts 75



Corporate Governance continued

Graphic removed
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Patrick Hole
Group Generai Counsel & Company Secretary

Patrick joined McCarthy & Stone inJuly 2014 Patnck is
responsible for the legal and company secretarial functions
of the Group He 15 a quakfied soliator with more than 20
years' post qualiication experience Patrick was a partner
in a private practice for many years and aiso has a broad
range of In-nouse experience, INcluding nienim roles

at both DTZ and Keepmoat

Committees
Member of the Disclosure Committee

During FY17 there were nine Board meetings and one Strategy
Day The Directors’ attendance at those meetings, as well as
the meetings of the three man Board Committees, are shown
n the table below

Risk and

Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Director' Board  Committee Committee  Committee
Number of
meetings 9 3 3 1
John ‘White 9/% nfa 3/3 171
Clive Fenton 99 n/a n/a 11
jobhn Tonkiss 9/9 n/a nia n/a
Rowarn Baker? H7 n/a n/a n/a
Geeta Nanda 8/9 3/3 2/3 il
Frank Nelson ] 3/3 33 171
Mike Parsans 99 3/3 33 171
Nick Maddock? 212 n/a n/a nia

1 Exchudesohn Lavter who was appainted post yrdr cnd
2 Appanted tothe Board on & January 28 7
3 Resghed on &lanuary 2017

76 McCarthy & Stane ple

Division of responsibilities (A2, A3)

The Board has adopted role profiles for the Charman and the
Chief Executive Cfficer, which clearly set out therr distinct roles
and responsibilities

I, a5 Chairman, am responsible for leadership of the Board
and for ensuring that the strategic direction and objecuves

of the Group are relevant to deliver shareholder value and to
promote the tong-term success of the Group | iead the Baard
N its constructive challenge of the Executive Leadership Team
and ensure that Board distussions are searching and forward-
thinking | am also responsible for promoting high standards
of corporate governance and good business practice

Chve Fenton, aur Chief Executive Officer, 1s responsible for the
day-to-day managerment of ihe operational activities of the
Group and the development and innovaton of the Group's
business With the support of the Executive Leaderstup Team
hie implerments che strategies and objectives agreed by the
Board to deliver operational performance and success

Non-Executive Directars {A4)

The Board currently has faur Non-Executive Directors -
Frank Nelson, Mike Parsons, Geeta Nanda and John Carter -
who have all been apponted during the past five years
Thewr previous experience of the construction indusiry,

the houswn$ sector or prowichng services to the elderly

add valuable skills and input to the Board

Frank Nelson 15 the Senior Independent Director

His responsibilities include the annual appraisal of my
performance He adds supportta the Char and deputises
for me in my apsence and is avallable to commumcate with
shareholders

B. Effectiveness
Board posi and indep e (B1)

The appointment and replacement of the Company’s Directors
1s governed by the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Comparies Act 2006 and the individual service contracts and
terms of appomntment of the Directors The Articles permi a
maximum of 12 Directors

The Board currently compnses the Chairman {who was
independent an appamtment), three Executive Directors
and four Non-Executive Directors All of the Non-Executive
Dyrecrors are independent John Carter 15 considered to be
independent notwithstanding his directorship with Travis
Perkins pic, a supplier to the Group, as the level of business
betwean McCarthy & Stone pic and Travis Perkns plc s not
deemed 10 be material Relevant safeguards are being putin
place to ensure that john will not Influence any consideration
of such business Short blographical details of each of the
Directors are set out on pages 700 73
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ALIS meeting in June 2077, the Namination Committee
considerad the independence of the individual Directors

on the Board at that stage and confirmed that there ware no
Independendce Issues, notwithstanding the fact that two of the
Non-Executive Directors, Frank Nelson and Mike Parsons, had
been induded in the Company's Management Incentive Plan
which was put in place in 2013 and was wound up in Novernber
2015 Their participation in the plan is a reflection of the
different ownership structure of the Company at that ome
Since Admission, the Non-Executive Directors have not

been included in any of the Group's share plans or bonus
arrangements John Carter was appointed after the year end
and his ndependence wes reviewed duning the Nomination
Committee meeting on 8 Novermber 2017

Appointments and cornmitment (B2, B3, 87}

The date of appointrment of each of the Directors 1s set out on
page BT - none of the Directors has served far mare than six
years Mick Maddock, who was Chief Finanaial Gfficer, resigned
with effect from & January 2017 and Rowan Baker, who was
the Group Financial Controller, was promoted to the Board as
the new Chief Financial Officer on the same date John Carter
was appointed to the Board on t October 2017

Ag announced on 8 November 2017, Paul Lester wifl be joming
the Board as a Nan-Executive Director and Charman Designate
on 3 January 2018 and, subgect to his election by shareholders,
will take over as Charmar: from me at the condlusicn of the
Company’s AGM on 24 January 2018.

Appontments fall under the remit of the Namination
Commuies, which feads the process in selecting any new
Directors before making recommendations to the Board The
Normination Committee is working with senior management
to ensure that satisfactory succession plans are in place

The Board is satisfied that each
of the Directors has committed
sufficient time and input during
the year to enable him/her to fulfil

his/her duties as evidenced by the
high attendance at all the Board
and relevant Committee meetings
throughout the year

The Directars’ service coneracts and letters of appointrent

sel out the time commitment expected te fulfil therr roles

The Board 15 sztisfied that each of the Directors has commitied
sufficent time and input during the year to enable fum/her

to fulfil his/her dutres as evidenced by the high attendance at
all the Board and relevant Comimuttee meetings throughout
the year

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appontment are
for three-year terms, which can be renewed for a further
two three-year terms

In accordance with the Code, all of the Directors are required
Lo seekre-election at each AGM The resolutions for the
re-election and election of the Board members will be
ncluded in the separate Notice of AGM

Induction, development and support (B4, B5)}

Cn joining the Board, each Director 1s provided with a full
introduction to the business. In order to assist the Directors
In their orngomg understanding of the Group, same of the
Board meetings are held at the regioral offices to prowde

an opportunity for the Directors to meet tocal management
and ta wisit some of the Group's developments. Papers

are arculated in a tmely manner 1o enable the Directars to
undertake full and detatled consideration of the agenda tems
in advance of the meenng and each of the Directors has access
1o the services of the Company Secretary

in order to assist the Directors

in their ongoing understanding
of the Group, some of the Board
meetings are held at the regional

offices to provide an opportunity
for the Directors to meet local
management and to visit sorme
of the Group's developments

Board evaluation (B6)

An evaluation of the performance cof the Board, i1s
members and Committees was carmned out dunn,

FY17 by the Nominaton Committee and detalls of the
internal evaluation process and findings are included in the
Nominatioh Committee section on page 81 It s anticipated
that the evaluation during FY18 will E!e externally facditated.

C. Accountability

Reporting (CT)

The Statemnent of Directors’ Responsibiliies 1s on paEe 109
The vizbillty statement 1s on page 57 The report of the
independent auditor 15 on pages 112 ta 117 The statement
on going concern 15 an page 108 Detals of the Board's
arrangements to ensure that the nfarmation presented in
this Report 1s farr, balanced and understandable 1s set out
on page 109,

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts n
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Risk management and internal contrals {C2)

Details of the risk management process and the prinapal nsks
facng the Group are set out on pages 54 to 57 The Board

15 responsible for the systern of internal controls, which are
designed (o manage the busmess risks faced by the Group,
and Tor reviewing the effectiveness of those controls Business
targets are set within appropriate imeframes, policies,
pracedures and control pracesses for managing the Group’s
business activiues have been put in place, and key financial
risks are cortroffed through clearly laid down authonisation
levels and segregation of accounting duties

The Risk and Audit Committee,
together with the Internal Audit
function, has identified the principal

risks facing the Group and has
established systems for evaluating
and managing those risks

The Risk and Audit Commttee, together with the Internal Audrt
function, has identified the principal nsks facing the Group and
has established systems for evaluating and managing those
risks These systems have been in place for the whole of the
year urder review and up 10 the date of this Report Further
informarion can be found on pages 54 ta 57

Audit and Auditor {C3)
Detatls of the wark of the Risk and Audit Commmittee and the
auditor are set out on pages 82 1o 85

D. Remuneration
Detalls of Executive Directors’ remuneration and the Group's
approach to remuneration policy are set out on pages 86 to 105

E. Relations with shareholders

Although most direct shareholder contact is by the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, feedback

15 communicated back 1o the other Directors primanly through
reports to the Board and copies of analysts’ presentations

Al of the Directors who were members of the Board at that
trme attended the AGM In january 2017 and 1t1s anucpated
that all the current members of the Board will attend the
AGM N January 2018 and that the rmeatmg will be organised
i comghiance with the Code

On behalf of the Board

John White
Group Non-Execytive Chairman

13 Novernber 2017

rii McCarthy & Stoneglc
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Governance Structure and Delegation of Authority

The Board of Directors
Chair: john White

The Board 15 ulumately responsible for all actvties of the Group It has adopted a schedule of matters reserved for
1ts attennen and has delegated some of its respansibilities to Commuttees of the Board In addition, certain Executive
Committees have been established to oversee some of the operauonal activities of the Group All Committees report
back 1o the Group Board ether directly or ndirectly wiz the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Operating Officer.

Principal Board Committees Principal Executive Committees

Risk and Audit Committee Executive Leadership Feam

|d|
‘CI

Chair: Frank Nelson Chair: Clive Fenton

See pages 82 to 85 for & report from the Supports the CEO In implementing Grotp

Risk and Audit Cormmittee strategy and management of the actnaties of
the Group

Remuneration Comurittee

N N Group Investment Committee
Chair: Mike Parsons
Chair: Gary Day
See pages 86 to 05 for a report from the
Remuneration Committee Responsible for reviewing and approving alt
land acquisitions Major investment decisions
are referred up to the Group Board

Nomination Cermittee

Chair: John White Health & Safety Committee
See pages 80 and 81 for a report from the Chair: John Tonkiss

Norsunation Committes
Responsitle for all aspects of health and safety

across the Group including relevant palicies
and pracedures and regulatory compliance

Disclosure Committee

|

Chair: Clive Fenton

CSR Commitilee
Responsible for umely and accurate disclosure
af all iInformauaon required to be disclosed to
meet its legal and regulatary obligations

Chair: Gary Day

See pages 58 to 67 for areport from the
CSR Cammittee

Alletrment Committee

Chair: Clive Fenton

Responsible for the approval of alictrments of
shares within the imits approved by shareholders

McCarthy &k Stone plc Annuai Report and Accounts ™
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John Whtte, Nominaton Committee Chairman

10 McCarthy &k Stone plc

“Maintaining the right balance
of skills and knowledge is key to
achieving the Group's strategic
objectives. One of the main
activities during the year was
the selection and appointment
of a new Chief Financial Officer”

| am pleased to present the Norminaton Committee’s
report for FY17

Membership and tenure
Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board
The members of the Committee dunng FY17 were

* John White {Charman)

+ Clive Fenton

= FrankNelson

= (Geeta Nanda (appointed on 24 January 2017)
* Mike Parsons

There was one formal meeting of the Committee durng
the year which all the members of the Committee attended
Two further meetings have been held since the year end

Responsibilities and terms of reference

The Nomination Committee’s key duties are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and its Cornmittees,
ensuring that the skills and expenience of the Board remains
appropriate and balanced, to recommend appentrments and
re-glections (o the Beoard, succession planning for the Directors
and senior management, and the annual evaluation process

The terms of reference, which are available on our websste,

were adopred with effect from 11 November 2015
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Activities during FY17

One of the matn activities during the year was the selection
and appointrrent of a new Chief Financial Officer, following
tne announcement in October 2016 of Nick Maddock’s
Intention o resign The Committee approved the process
fo find hus replacement with consideration being given to
bothinternal and external candigates Russell Reynolds, an
ndeperdert external search agency, was appointed to run
the process on pehalf of the Group Following conclusion of
that process, the Committee recormmended Rowar Baker ag
the preferred candidate to the Board, which subsequently
approved har appointment

Duning the year the Commuttee alse carried out the annual
evaluarion process This was done internally and it 's
anticipated that external faciitators will be used to assist
the process In FY18

The Committee also reviewed the succession planning,
especally at the mamn Board and executive and senior
managerment levels The Group's Equality and Diversity policy
and the Committee's terms of reference were also reviewed,

Evajuation process and results

The Committee carned out a thorough. In-house evaluation
of the Board and each of the Risk and Audit, Remuneration
and Nominauon Committees, as well as the performance
of each of the Dwectors This was carned out by way of a
questionnaire as well as one-p-one meetings between

the Charman and the Non-Executive Directors an the
performance af the individual Directors The review of the
Charman’s performance was led by the Semior Independent
Director The effectiveness of the Board was assessed in
respect of its structure, argamsation, reporting and
commurscations Directors were also invited 10 make
recommendations an how the performance and operation
of the Board could be rmproved

The Charman was satisfied with tne performance and
effectiveness af the Board and its Committees One of the
areas highhighted for /mprovernent related to communicat.an
wath regional and sentcr management As a result, more Board
meetings will be held at the Group's regional offices and the
rumber and frequency of presentations from regional
management and function heads will be increased Another
area that was highlighted was the need to focus more closely
0 SUCCESSION planning

Board compasition and succession planning
The current composiucn of the Board 1s set out i the
table below Further detalls are on pages 70to 73

Date of appointment
Director Role tothe Board
John White Chairman 23 September 2013
CliveFenton  Chsef Executive Officer 17 February 2014
JobnTonkiss  Chief Operating Officer 5 November 2015
Rowan Baker  Chief Financial Officer 6 January 2017
Mike Parsons  Non-Executive Director 4 November 2013
Frank Nelson  Non-Executive Director 18 November 2013
Geeta Nanda  Non-Executive Director 1 Aprif 2015

John Carter Non-Executwve Birector 1 October 2017

Although the Board has been completely refreshed it the past
five years, the Board evaluation process identified that the
composition should be kept under review by the Committee in

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

arder 1o ensure that the mix and experience remains relevant
to cur business Following the Board evaluatien process, the
Committee commenced the process to appoint two additional
Naon-Executive Directors to strengthen the current mix

of slils and expenence In june 2017 a beauty parade of three
firms was held (o assist with the recruitment process Zygos,
a firm of independent adwvisers, was selected, subjectto the
Group retaining the right to introduce canddates directly
Fallawing year end, John Carter was introduced and brought
forward for consideration by the Nomination Committee His
candidature was recornmended Lo the Board, who appraved
his appointment in Qctober John brings with him strong
Industry experience, which will help to strengthen the Eoard

As anniounced on 8 November 2017, Paui Lester will be

joining the Board as a Non-Executive Director and Chairmar
Designate on 3 January 2018 and, subject to his election by
sharehalders, will take over as Chawman from me when | step
down at the conclusiar of the Company’s next AGM in january
2018 The Committee undertook a search ta identrfy a suitable
candidate for the role of Charman The Company did not
nstruct an external search agency or use apen advertsing
for the search, given the strength of potential internal and
external candidates who had been identified for the role

The Committee carcluded that, after interviewing a shartlst
of three candidates, Paul Lester was the most approprate
candidate for the role | did not chair or atiend any meetings
of the Cornmittee which related 1o the appomtment of my
SUCCessor

The Group s cononuing 19 develop succession plans for
senior and executive management, which are reviewed and
menitered Dy the Committee.

Retirement and re-election of Directors

In accordance with our Articles of Association and as a
FTSE 250 company, all of our Directors are required to seek
annual re-election by our shareholders Al the Directors
who sought re-election at last year's AGM were re-elected

As part of its evaluation process, the Committee reviewed the
performance of each of the Directors during the past year and
has recommended that all those Directors wishing to cantinue
to stand should seek re-election at the 2018 AGM Thay
ndmidually and as a Group conoinue to provide invaluable
experience, challenge and contribution to the leadership of
the Group John Carter and Paul Lester will also seek election
at the 2018 AGM

Diversity

The Group has an Equality and Diversity Policy, which commits.
us ta zero telerance of unlawful discrimiination and encourages
diversity in our workforce The Comrttee reviewed the Palicy
during the year and will continue to keep this under review 1o
ensure that it remains appropriate far the business

Although the Group has not set speafic gender targets,

as we believe that appointments should be based on merit,
we support the principle of dversity, not just at Board level
but throughout the Group At year end we had two female
members of the Board frepresenting 28 6%) and 65 6% of aur
total workforce were female Further breakdown s provided
on page 61

John White
Nomination Committee Chairman

13 November 2017
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Risk and Audit
Committee Report

B T

“The key responsibilities of
the Risk and Audit Committee
Graphic removed are to review the integrity of
the Group’s annual and haif
year financial statements.
The Committee is confident
that it has carried out its
duties in the year under
review effectively and to

a high standard”
L ] -

fFrank Nelson, Risk and Audit Committee Chairman
The purpose of this report Is to descnbe how the Cammittee

has carried out its responsisities durng the year

In summary, the key responsibiines of the Risk and Audic
Committee are to review the integniey of the Group's annual
and half year financial staterments ard the relationship with
the external auditor, to monitar aur internal controls and risk
management systems and our nternal audit actiities, and
1o provide independert oversight of our business conduct,
inciuding our whistleblowing and ant-bricery procedures

Membership and tenure

There has not been any change {0 the mermbers of the Risk and
Audit Committee during the financial year and up to the date of
this report The members of the Comrnittee are

« Frank Nelsan (Chairmar of the Committee) Senior
Independent Director

* Mike Parsons, Independent Non-Executve Director

» Geeta Nanda, Independent Non-Executive Director

=7 McCarthy & Stons plc
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| was previously Finance Director of Gallford Try plc, the
FTSE 250 housebuilding and construcrion group, for 25
years prior to Joining McCarthy & Stone My extensive
financial expenience, parncularly m the housebullding and
construction sector, have proved invaluable in chainng
our Risk and Audit Commuttee

The Committee as a whole has competence relevant to

our business As stated sbove, | have spent most of my
career in the housebuilding sector, Geeta Nanda has

more than 28 years' experience n the housing sector and
more than 23 years' experience as a Non-Executive Director
and Mike Farsons has spent the last 23 years warking with
businesses providing care and support for elderly peaple

Further details of the background and expernence of the
Comrmittee members are set out on pages 7010 73

Responsibilities and terms of reference
The key responsibiies of the Committee are o

Maornitor the integrity of the financal statements
and any other formal announcements relating
to the Group's financial position and performance

Assess whether management has made appropriate
estimates and judgements and t¢ provide advice to
the Baard on whether the Annual Report and Financial
Staternents are farr, balanced and understandable

Keep under review, and monitor the effectiveness of, the
Group's nternal controls and risk management systems

Monitor and review the effectiveness of the nisk and
internal audit function

Monitor and review the effectiveness of the services of
the axternal audror, including negotiation of the audit fee

Develop and implement the policy on the supply of
non-audit services by the external auditor

Review the adequacy and security of the Group's
procedures on whistleblowing, ant-bribery and
corruption and ant-money faundering

The Committee has formal terms of reference which are
reviewed annually to ensure they remain appropriate No
changes were made to rhe terms of refererce during the
year A copy of the full terms of reference can be viewed
on our website www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/
about-us/corporate-governance
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Activities during FY17

There were three Risk and Audit Cormimitlee meetngs during
the financial year, ergarnised to tie N with the annuat audic
cyde The table on page 76 sets out attendance ofthe
Comrmittee members at those meenngs In accordance with
the Commitiee's terms of reference, meeungs can also be
attended, by imvitation, by other Directors and mempers of
the internal audit end external audit teams, when deemed
appropriate The Chief Financial Officer, the Director of Risk
and Internal Audit, the Group Financial Controller and the
external audit partner attended afl three meetings during the
year The members of the Committee meet with the external
auditor without Executive Directors or management at every
meeting attended by the external auditor

During FY17 the key areas of focus for the Cormittee were
as follows

= in Novernber 2016 we reviewed the FY16 finanaial
staterments and the draft Annual Repart We discussed
the audit with Delortte, cur externat auditor, and reviewed
Its report and s audit work The Commuttee also
considered the gong concern and wiability statements
of the Group We also considered and concluded that the
F¥16 Annual Report and Financial Statemenits gave a farr,
balanced and understandable view of the Group's
performance and positicn

In February 2017 we reviewed the proposed audit fees
and the scope of the external audit in relation to the
FY17 finsnaal statements

In April 2017 we reviewed the FY17 half year results,
ncluding the rewiew undertaken by the external auditer,
kefore recormmending that the half year resuits
announcerment be approved by the Board

« At each meeting we receved reports from the Internal
Audit tearn on Group risks and risk management, and
at the Novernber 2016 and Apri 2017 meetings reviewed
the Group risk heat map

At each meeting we also receved reports on the internal
audit programme and findings of internal audits carned
out during the year

We undertook our annual review of the Group's systems
of Internal controls We continue to monitor their
effectiveness throughout the year

Al each meetng we received reports on the effectiveness
of our whistleblowing and anti-bribery and carruption
procedures and were adwised If any notficatons had
been raised Linder those policies

McCarthy & Stone pic Annual Report and Accounts



Risk and Audit Committee Report continued

During the year we met with the Financral Reporting
Counc {FRCY which conducted Its review of the quality
of Deloitie LLP's audit procedures appled during the
FY16 audit

Significant financial reporting issues

Sigrificant financial reporting 1ssues, jJudgements and areas
of esumauon uncertainty reviewed by the Commitree dunng
FY¥17 were

Shared equity receivables

The Cornmittee reviewed the accounting treatment of future
recevables due under the shared eguity schemes thar have
been used over the years by the Groug The assumptions
used in estmating the value of the future receivables are
reviewed haif yearly and refate to the date of the anucipated
future receipt, house price Inflation, the discount rate and
the new bulid premum

Cost capitalisation of overheads

The Committee recerved a proposal from managerment
analysing the spht of overhead casts relating to design,
planning, commercial, construction, procurement and
hezaith and safety between those that could be attrbuted
to the cost of the developments to inventory and those
that relate to generail business averheads (0 expenses
The assumplions are reviewed annually with the funcuon
heads before bemg proposed to the Comnutiee

Risk management and internal controls
Qur Risk ard Internal Audit functron was established inthe
summer of 2074 with the foliowing key areas of respansibiicy

The design and implermentation of & robust risk
management framework across the Group (o identify,
monor and manage key business risks and to establish
a nisk appetie for each key risk beyond which correcive
action 1s required

The development of an assurance prograrmme to ascertain
whether the controls arcund our key business risks are
designed and operating effectively

Detalls of how the Group manages the risk process are
set out on pages 54 and 55 The Director of Risk and
internal Audht reporis at each Committes meeting on
any changes to the risks faced by the business and any
areas for improvernent

An annual internal audrt plan, focusing on the key risks to the
business, is reviewed and agreed by the Commuttee Its cycle
1s driven pnimarily by nsks idenufied in the nsk heat map A
separate commercial internal audit plan has been put in place
specically (o investigate the management of our construction
activitles A separate sales internal audit plan was estabhshed
and completed in 2017 to specifically focus on the sales
progess of core stock

24 McCarthy & Stone plc

Findings from internal audits and recommended
improvernents are reported to rhe Committee | regularly meet
with the Drrector of Risk and internaf Audit Other member s of
the Committee and the Board will also meet with the Director
of Risk and Internal Audit penodically durng the year

The Beard of Directors recogrises its averall respansibility

for the Group's systern of mternat controls and for momitonng

its effectiveness There 1s an gngaing process for identifying,

evaluating and managing significant risks However, in

reviewing the sffectiveness of nternal cantrols, any internal

control system can only provide reasanable but nat absolute

assurance aganst material misstaternent or lass '

The Board, on the recommendation of the Risk and Audit
Commttee, has remaned satisfied that the system of internal
controls continued to be effective In idenufying, assessing and
ranking the vanious risks facing the Group, and in monitoring
and reporbing progress n miugating the potential impact on
the business Systems have been in place for the year under
review ahd up to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and Fnancial Statemernts The Board has approved the
staterment of the Prinapat Risks and Uncertainties set out on
pages 56 and 57 of this Annual Report

The Board of Directors recognises
its overall responsibility for the
Group's system of internai controls

and for maonitoring its effectiveness.
There is an ongoing process for
{dentifying. evaluating and
meanaging significant risks

External auditor
The Committee 15 responsible for the agpomntment of the
external auditor, is fee and the scope of the annual sudit

Auditor independence and performance

Deloitte LLP has been our external auditor since FYQ3,

the fiest audit of the Company We have had the same Audit
Partner since 2013 but the Audn Director has changed during
that peried In ine with rotation guidelnes a new Audit Partner
will lead the P18 autht The next audit terder will take place
no fater than the summer of 2018

The performance, effectiveness and independence of the
auditor and the work 1t performs are reviewed annually
fallowing completior of the external audit Delfoltte are
required to disclose any significant facts and matters that
may reasonably impact on therr independence or on the
abjecinity of the lead partner and the audit team In addion,
the Committee considers and approves all the fees that the
Group pays for audit, audit-related and non-audit services
from Deloite Detans of the Company's policy on non-audn
services are detaded 1n the following section That poficy was



draftad in ine with the reguirements of the FU Audit Directive
(2014/56/EU) and Audit Regulanon (537/2014) which came
Inta farce i the UK on 17 June 2016,

The Audit Comrmittee assessed the performance of the
exterral auditor and the effeciveness of the external audit
far F¥17 In corming to its conclusion the Audit Commuttee
reviewed amongst other matters

+ Feedback on the effectiveness and performance of the
external audrt from Group, regional management and
the Director of Risk and Internal Audit who were closely
mvalved in both the half year and full year reporung process

Delostte LLP'S fulfilment of the agreed audit plan for FY17

= Reports highlighting the material ssues and accounting
Judgements that arose during the conduct of the audit

Deloitte LLP's chjectmvity and ndependence during
the process

The Audit Commitiee concluded that the audit process as
a whate had been conducted robustly and that the team
selected to undertake the audit had done so thoroughly
and professionally Delaitte LLP's performance as auditor
ta the Company during FY17 was therefore considered 1o
be satsfactory

During the year, the FRC also undertaok a review of certain
aspects of Deloitte LLP's audit of McCarthy & Stone plc for
the year ended 31 August 2016 We have reviewed the FRCs
findings in assessing the performance and effectiveness

of Deloitte LLP's audit work

Taking into account our and the FRC's findings 1n relaticn to
the effectiveness of the audit process and In relation 1o the
independence of our external auditor, the Commitiee 1s
satisfied that Deloitze LLP'S audic continues to be effective and
independent Asa resuli, the Committee has recommended
to the Board that Delaitte be proposed for reappointment at
the 2018 AGM

The Compeny has compled throughout the reporarg year
with the provisions of The Statutery Audtt Services for Large
Compantes Market Investigation {Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processes and audit Comrmittee
Responsiniities) Order 2014,

Policy on non-audit services

It is the Group's practice, whenever possible, to put non-audit
work out to tender The Board only appoints Deloitte LLP

to provide non-audit services if the Directors have satisfied
themselves that the auditor's objectvity and independence
have not been compromised A policy on non-audit services
has been approved by the Committee, whrch iIncerporates
the provisions of the EJ audit reform

The external auditor 15 appointed to provide audit and
audit-related services, induding annual audit of the Group,
Parent Campany and non-dormant subsidiary financial
statements as well as the half year review

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The external auditor Is probibited trom praviching services
which involve

* Bookkeeping and other services relating lo accaunting
records and corperate financial statements

« Design and implementation of knancial
mformation sysiems

= Anyvakuation that could have a materal effect on
the financial staterents

= Tax serwices that depend on a particular accountng
trearment

Recruiting executives or providing adwice on
remuneraron packages

Actuanal services

Management functions

-

Internal audit services

= Legal, broker, investrment adviser or investment
banking services

Corparate finance or rransaction serwices where the
cutcome s dependent on accounting treaiment, or on

a contingent fee basis iIf matenal wo the sudit firm, or the
outcome involves a future or contemporary audn jJudgement
relatng to a material balance in the finanaal statements

Any other work that 1s prohibited by UK ethical guidance

The external auditor may be selected to provide any

other services that do not fall within audit and audit-related
services of that are not prohibted, subject to a competitive
selection process

Fees payable to Deloitte 1n FY171n relation to the intenm
review, year end audit and statutory audits of subsidianies are
detalled in note 6 to the consalidated finanaal statements
There were no non-audit fees paid durning the year

Whistleblowing, frauvd and anti-bribery and corruption
During the year, the Committee receved regular updates from
the Company Secretary on compliance with the palicies across
the business on whistleblowing, anu-bribery and corruption,
fraud and anu-money laundering In addition, the Committee
and the Board reviewed and approved the Group's new
cenfiicts of irterest pohcy

Frank Nelson
Risk and Audit Committee Chairman

13 Novernber 2017
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee Chairman’s Annual Statement

~

L

Maike Parsons, Remuneration Committee Charman

5

Graphicremaved

McCarthy & Stoane ple

“As Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee,

| am pleased to present,

on behalf of the Board, our
Directors’ Remuneration
Report. This report lays

out the core elements of our
policy and its implementation
during FY17"

The Annual Report on Remuneration 1s set out on

pages 94 o 105 It detalls decisions and actions taken by

the Reruneration Committee based on the performance

of the Group: and the Executve Directors, the changin,
corporate governance Jandscape and in 1he context of pay
inthe Group as a whole The Annual Repert on Remuneration
18 subyect ra an annual adwisary vate and 8 resoluncn will be
put to shareholders at the AGM in January 2018 for 1ts
approval The wording of the resolution is set out in the
separate Notice of AGM
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Remuneration policy

In creating our remuneration policy last year, our objeciive
was 10 Create 3 pohcy which supports the Group's strateg:

to create an efficient and scatable business capable of Dur%}dmg
and selling more than 3,000 urits per annum to enable us to
targer top-quartile sector margins and returns on capital over
the mediurm term

QOur remuneration policy was approved by shareholders

at our AGM on 25 January 2017, recenving over 92 8% of the
votes that were cast The polcy s intended to apply for up
to three years and is therefore designed 1o incentivise and
motivate the leadership team to Implement the Comgany's
strategic goats and alse 1o ensure they are algned with
shareholder expectations This has been a guiding principle
for the Committee

We are not proposing any changes to the remuneration policy
far the forthcomeng year A summary of aur Remuneration
Palicy 1s Included at the end of this Remuneratian Repart on
pages 1071 to 104, while the fuil text of the Remunerauon Palicy
can be found on pages &3 to 74 of our FY16 Annual Report
The FY16 annual Report can ke downloaded frem

our website www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk

Remuneration Committee

There has not been any change to the membership of the
Comrmittee during the year and up to the date of this report.
The members are all of the Non-Executive Directors of the
Board, namely

* Mike Parsons (Charman of the Commitiee, and
Independent Non-Executive Directar}

« Geeta Nanda {Independent Non-Executive Director)

= Frank Nelson (Senior Independent Director)

» John White (Non-Executive Director, and Chairman
of the Board)

Other ndividuals, ncluding the Chief Executive Officer and
external adwisers, may be inwited to attend meetings af the
Committee The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to
the Committee

Aswell as the Group's remuneration policy, the Remuneration
Committee’s other main responsibibittes include the
reruneration and terms of engagement of Executive Dirgctors
and the Chairman, averseeing any majar changes to the
Group's emplayee benefit structures, approvel of any
performance-related schemes, share incentive schernes

and deferred bonus arrangerments The Committee provides
a report to the Board on its activities end deastons

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major remuneration events during FY17:

« Continued development of our Board
Nick Maddock resigned as Chief Financial Officer on
11 October 2016 and stepped down from the Board
with effect from & January 2017 Rowan Baker, who was
previously the Group Financial Controller, was promated
to the rofe of Chief Finanaial Officer and joned the Board on
6 January 2017 1would ke to welcome Rowan te the Beard
and once again thank Nick for tus service

The Committee approved the termination arrangements for
Nick and the new terms for Rowan Nick did notreceive any
termination payments, he was not ehgible for the borus
plan mn respect of FY16 or FY17 and his LTIP awards lapsed
on his departure

When Rowan was appointed to the Board, her salary

was ser gt £225,000 - a conservative level, significantly befow
that of her predecessor with the intention that it would be
kept under review and over oime based on performance
would be brought up o a market level Based on her strong
performance and development in the role to date and her
critical rote in delivering the strategy of the business the
Committee determined to ncrease her salary to £285,000
effective 1 Sepiermber 2017, the next planned review will be
in Novemnber 2018 The Committee notes that the increased
salary remains below the lower guartie of the FTSE 250 and
housebuilder peers (the two external benchmarks the
Commetee uses as a guideline when setung pay for
executives)

On her appointment to the role, Rowan's bonus ocpporturily
was set at 100% of salary in cash, recognising that FY17 was
a ransitory year, rather than the policy level for Executive
Directors of 1508 of salary For FY18, Rowan's bonus
opportunity will be increased o 150% of salary with
one-third deferral in ine with the other Executive Directors
Rowan's full rermuneration terrs are set out in the following
Annual Report on Remuneration

The Committee proposes to increase John Tonkiss' salary by
10% from £300,000 to £330,000 effective + Novemmber 2017
The proposed increase recognises his strong performance
and the mcreased responsibiliry following his appaintrnent
to the role of Chief Operating Officer it June 2017

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Repart and Accounts ”



Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

The Comimittee 1s mundful of the sensitivity ro large
ncreases in base pay fevels and consigered 1ts proposed
approach carefully in this context The intention of the
salary increase 1s to bring tne COC and CFO's salar'es 1o
alevel that the Commiteee considers appropriate given
their performance and critical mportance ta the business
The Committee will continue o manior Executive Director
salaries and will consider whether further above average
employee increases are required

Chve Fenton, our CEQ, will receve anincrease of 3 2% n
line with the increase for the average employee populauon

Determination of the FY17 bonus payments

The Group completed its first full year of trading since
joining the Main Market in November 2015 and the
Executive Directors and the broader executive team have
delivered performance in hne with markel expectations
despite continued economic uncertainty followmg the
outcame of the EU referendurn in 2016

The Group delivered a 4% ncrease in revenue to £6609m
(F¥16 £6359m), although underlying operating profit
decreased by 10% to £96 2m (FY16 £107 2mj}at a gross
profit margin of 209 {FY16 21%), reflecung the mix of unis
sold, ncreased costs and our continued Investmentin
regional operattional infrastructure to support our growth
strategy As a result, the threshold of £308 6m operating
profit fequating to 70% of the total bonus opportunity)
was nat achieved and no bonus was awarded against

this measure

During the year the Group invested i land and build

and added a further 75 high-quality sites with attractive
embedded margins into the Jand bank (FY1é 65), equivalent
to ¢ 3,164 addiuonal plots (FY16 ¢ 2,614} As aresult, the
borus target for land exchanges of 3,133 plots was shghtly
exceeded resulting m 55% of this element of the bonus
(accounting for 10% of the total bonus opportunity)

bemng earned

The Group centinued (o maintain a robust finanaal positien
with a net cash batance of £30 7m (FY16 £52 8rn) at the year
end Strong cash generation resulted in a posiove cash
inflow of £49 2m excluding the balance sheet impact of

the in-house part-exchange initative, agaenst a target of
£273m The Executive Directors were therefore awarded
82% of the bonus (sccounting for 10% of the total bonus
opportunity} in relation to this measure

(L] McCarthy & Stone plc

The continued focus on hameowner
satisfaction has led to us in the

twelfth consecutive year being
awarded the Five Star rating for
customer satisfaction by the HBF

The ¢ontinued focus on horneowner satisfaction has led

to us In the twelfth consecutive year being awarded the

Fwe Star rating for customer sausfaction by the HBF This

sustained recognition by our customers of the guahty

of product we deliver resulted i achievernent of the '
customer satisfaction target of 93% (we achieved 93 4%)

and as a result 50% of tha bonus in relatien te this elerment

{which accounts for 10% of the total bonus opportunity)

was earned

The Group continued to maintain a
robust financial position with a net

cash balance of £30.7m at the year
end. Strong cash generaticon resulted
in a positive cash inflow of £49.2m

In respect of FY17, the bonus for the Executive Directors
was therefore 13 7% of the maximum opportunigy This
equates to 29 6% of salary for the CEC and COQ and

19 7% of salary for the CFO The Comrmittee beileves that
these pay-outs reflect the performance of the Group aver
the year

Remuneration approach for FY18

Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The Non-Executive Directors’ fees have not been increased
since Novermnber 2015 it has been agreed that the Non-
Executive Directors will recetve a 3% increase in ther basic
fees with effect trom FY18 The Charman, jobn White, has
waived his increase There will not be any change to the
level of additianal fees paid for the Serior Independent
Director or for Committee membership

FY18 bonus objectives
The annuat bonus plan measures and ther weightings for
FY18 wiil be

s Group profit before tax (70%)

+ Group full year cash flow {10%)

& (Group customer satisfaction (10%;)
* Group land exchanges (10%)
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Changes to the FY18 Long Term Incentive Plan [LTIP}

The Committee reviewed the appropriateness of the LTIP
arrangements and the assocated performance targets

As @ result of this review, the Remuneration Committee
proposes to maintain the current guantum of 150% of salary
for the Executive Directars The appraved policy allows for, but
does not require, an addiional post-vesting holding penod

to apply to the awards Whilst ths prowision was not used for
previous awards, the Committee recognises the importance of
Imking executive pay to lang-term and sustaned sharehalder
vafue and therefore has decided to add a two-year holding
penad for FY18 awards Dunng the holding peried, executives
will not be allowed to sell vested shares (other than for tax
purposes), meamng the overall nme horizon of the FY18
awards wili be five years This approach isin ine wath the
expectatian/preferences of many of our shareholders and
addironally reflects the Government's response 10 the green
paper on corporate governance and executive pay

The Remunerstion Committee decided to retain the

exisung performance measures {earnings per share, return
on capital employed and total shareholder return), which
forus executives on MAXIMISING Feturns ta shareholders
through grawth in sustainable earnings and efficent capital
management Inline with the approved policy and previous
awards as detaled on page 91 and 92, threshold performance
will result In 25% vesung against each elerment, with 100%
vesling at or above the maximum performance target
However, the Committee proposes to amend the weightings
and targets for the FY18 awards, as detaled on page 92 The
dhanges we are proposing do not require formal shareholder
approval However, we beleve that itis iImportant to seek the
views of our shareholders Prior to the publication of our
Annual Report we consulted with our major shareholders and
would like to thank thern for their positive engagement during
the process which helped shape these changes

No ather changes are proposed in respect of the remuneration
elements in FY18

Qur goal has been to be thoughzful and clear in the layout of
this repart and | look forward to your support on the
resolution

| welcome any feedback from the Company’s shareholders

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Chairman

13 Novernber 2017 ?W
Notes WV‘.D /’-—-’

This Report has been grepared in accardance with Schedule 8 to The Large
and Medium-sized Compantes and Groups {Azcounts and Reparts) Regulations
2008 a5 amended in 2013, the provisions of tne UK Corporate Governance Code
and the Listing Rules The Rebort consfsts of two sezfions
- The annual Statement by the Remuneration Cammuttee Charman and
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Tre Anruak Report an Remune-atian wh ch sets oul Eayments maae
ta the Jrectors and eails the lnk betweer Group performance and
resruncredon o FY7
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

At a glance

Introduction
In ths section, we repart on the remuneration outcames for FYT7, which have been impiemented in accordance with our

remureration pohicy

Qur remuneration policy was designed to align remuneratior: of our Executive Directors with Group strategy and ta drive
centinued success within a remuneration framework that meets the shareholder and governance expectations of 3 FTSE
250 company The Remureraton Policy was approved by shareholders at the AGM wn January 2017 and 1s set out in full
on pages 63 to /4 of our Y16 Annual Report

Qur core principles of remuneration are

» To ensure op execulives are atlracted, retaned and motwated to drive the Company forward
« Toincentivise managerment in creauing an efficient and scalable business 1o suppert the growth strategy
= Todeliver long-term sustainable value to shareholders

FY17 outcomes
The cutcomes outhned in this secton reflect the remuneration and perfermance measures and targets in place dunng FY17
and ther level of satisfaction These were r line wits the Remuneration Policy approved last year

The table below shows the total rermuneratior paid or payable to each of the Executive Directars in respect of FY17
These amounts include the bonus areunts payable as detalled n the following table

Total Remuneranan far cur Executhva Directors Y17 FriG
Clive Fenton - CEQ £753.169 £628,024
John Tonkiss - CO0 £462,231 £324,617
Rowan Baker - CFO! £223,594 n/a
Nick Maddock - former CFO? £133,702 £364,933

1 Rowan 8aker became ah oxetud ve Diractos o B-nuary 201/
4 NickMaddock resgned o the Boarc with er'ect from Glanuary 201/

Annual bonus outcomes:

The strategy and KPIs of the Group are primary factors in ensuring that there is alignment between performance and reward The
erformance measures used dunng the year were {a} Group operating profit (70%), (b) Group full year cash flow (10%), {c) Group

and exchanges (109), and (d} Group customer satisfaction {10%)

The table below shows the total bonus payable to each of the Executive Directors inrespect of FY17 outcomes Further details
of how| the performance measures for our annual bonus plan and LTiP algn to our strategy are outlined on page 63 of the FY1g
Annual Report

Annual bonus ourcames for our Executve Directars Fr7 FYi6
Clive Fenton - CEQ £143,412 £61,750
John Tonkiss - COO £38,800 £36,400
Rowan Baker - CFO £29.631 nfa

Nick Maddock - former CFG? - -

1 RowanBdker became an Sxecur ve Director o & lonbary 201/
3 Mk Maddockresigned from tna Roare with eect frorm & January 201/

Equity exposure of the Board

The Executive Directors are required to bulld up over a five-year period, and then subsequently hold, a sharehokiing equivalent to
200% of their base salary As a result of the IPO 1 November 2015, Chive Fenton and John Tonkiss have significant shareholdings in
the Company, providing them with a material stake i the business Rowan Baker, who was appointed to the Board on & Januar
2017, has not yet met her shareholding requirement The table below shows their interest in the Company as a percentage of their
salary as at 3f August 2017

Clive Fenton John Tonkiss Rowan Baker
Shareholding requirement 200% 200% 200%
Value of benefically owned shares 564% 319% 3%
Value offgain on interests over shares {i e, unvested/unexernsed awards) 255% 253% 132%

The table on page 97 shaws the interests of each Executive Director in the shares of the Company at year end
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Implementation of the Remuneration Policy in FY18
For FY18 the oroposed remuneration wifl be as set out below This 1510 accordance with our remuneration pohicy

Base salary

For FY18, the hase salaries for the Executive Directors will be;

Clive Fenton £500,000 [3.2% ncrease with effect from 1 November 2017)
John Tonkiss £330,000 (10 0% increase with effect from 1 Navember 2017)
Rowan Baker £285,000(26 7% increase with effect from 1 September 2017)

The Commuttee has increased John's salary by 10% from £300,000 to £320,000 effective
1 November 2017 to recognise his strong performance and the increased responsibility following
his appointment ta the role of Chief Operaung Officer in june 217

Rowan was promoted to the Board in January 2017 on a salary befow the targeted policy levei The
Committee has increased Rowan’s salary from £225,000 to £285,000 effective from 1 September
2017 to recognise her strong performance and development i1n the role and her critical rode in
delivering the Group’s strategy In accordance with our remuneration policy, the Committee has
flexibifity to increase Rowan’s salary from time to ime as she gains experience in her role The
Committee has therefore agreed the above increase to take effect from 1 September 2017 and will
keep her salary under review,

Pension

The maximurn contribution into the defined contnbution plan or a salary supplement
in heu of pension will be 20% of gross base salary.

BenefTis

Standard benefits will be provided induding private medical insurance, Iife nsurance
and a car or car allowance.

Annual Bonus Plan (‘ABP*)

Cash and deferred shares

For FY18 the maximum bonus opportunity 1s 150% of salary
The performance conditions and their weightings for the FY18 annual bonus are as follows:

+ Group profit before tax {70%)

* Group full year cash flow (10%)

* Group custorner sausfaction {10%)
* Groupiland axchanges (10%)

One-third of any bonus earned will be i the form of deferred shares, which will be
deferred for three years.

The precise details of the targets themselves are deemed to be commercially sensitive
as they refate to the current financial year. The Commuittee therefore does not consider
it appropriate 1o disclese annual bonus targets during the year. However, details of
the performance targets will be disclosed on a retrospective basis In next year’s
Remuneration Report.

The Annuat Bonus Plan {ABP'} cortains clawback and malus pravisions.

Lang Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The performance conditiens for the FY18 LTIP awards are earrings per share (EPSY), returr on
capital employed (ROCE') and refative total sharehelder return {TSR’) against the comparator
housing group and FTSE 250 {exc! Financial Services and investment trustsk. All three measures
are assessed over a three-year performance period.

For the achievernent of threshold performance, 25% of the efement will vest with straight-line
vesting in between to maximum performance. The LTiP contams clawback and malus provisions,
Please see the full Remuneration Policy as set out on pages 63 to 74 1n cur FY16 Annual Report for
further details.

In F¥18 an LTIP award up to a maximum of 150% of salary will be awarded to the Executive
Durectors, As stated in the Chalrman’s letter, the FY18 LTIP wilf have a two-year post vesting
holding perfod during which executives cannot sell vested shares other than for tax purposes.

McCarthy & Stane plc Annual Repart and Accounts "



Directors’' Remuneration Report continued

FY18 LTIP targets The previous LTIP performance measures and targets were set in hne with market practice,
nwestor expectations and the mediurn-term business plan following the IPO In light of the current
economic and political uncertainty, the Remuneration Commuttee concluded that a review of the
current structure was appropriate from a business perspective and necessary in order to maintain
the incentive effect of LTIP awards and hence motvate and retain the Executive Directors and
other senior executives over the near future.

The Rernuneration Committee decided to retain the existing performance measures (EPS, “TSR'
and "ROCE), which forus executives on maximising returns to sharebolders through growth wn
sustatnable earnings and efficient capital management In hine with the approved policy and
previous awards, threshold performance will result in 25% vesting against each element, with
100% vesting at or above the maximum performance target However, the Commuttee proposes
to amend the weightings and targets for the FY18 awards

The FY18 LTIP proposed performance measures, wesghtings and targets are outhned in the table
below alangside those operated in respect of the previous LTIP award in FY17

Performance measures FY17 weightings and targers FY18 weightings and targets
Earmings Per Share (EPS) Weghting, 33.3% Weighting 37.5%
FY19 EPS FY20 EPS
Threshold 21 8p Threshold. 21.8p
Max 27 8p Max: 27.8p
Relative Total Sharehoider Weighting 33 3% Weighting: 25.0%
Return (TSR') Measured against housebulder Measured against two groups (equally
peer group weighted), housebuilder peer index
Threshald equal to ndex and FTSE 250 constrtuents
Max index + 7.5% p.a. Threshold equai to index / median
of FTSE 250
Max index + 7.5% p.a /upper quartile
of FTSE 250
Return On Capital Weighting 33 3% Weighting: 37 5%
Employed (ROCE) Threshold, 22 0% Threshold: 20.0%
Max, 25 0% Max. 25.0%

Changes te FY18 performance measures and rationale for change

Increase EPS weighting to 37.5%

= Profitability is a key driver of the business and EPS as a performance measure motivates
and provides a strong line of sight’ to management as they have a greater influence over
the autcome

+ The EPS targets are set based on the three-year businegss plar and analyst consensus

Increase ROCE weighting to 37 5% and reduce threshold target to 20%

= Managements' focus on capital efficiency remains an important performance indicator of the
business and igs business plan as set out on IPC, Therefore it 1s appropriate to increase the
weighting of this measure

= The Cormmmittee helieves that the maximurn target of 25% ROCE remains a suitably stretching
target and that achieving this within the perfarmance period would represent exceptional
performance and hence justify full vesting of this element of the LTIP. In order to improve
alignment with the Company’s business plan for FY20, the threshold target will be set at
20% The Committee considers this level of performance to be realistic yet challenging,
and representative of the Company’s medium-term business plan

2 McCarthy & Stone plc
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Reduce Relative TSR weighting to 25% and split comparator group into two groups

» Qur largest shareholders have a strong preference for sharehoider return measures and
relative TSR best reflects how the Cormpany s perforrming against its peers Therefore itis
appropriate to retain TSR as a performance measure

« The unique business profile of the Company means that while Brexit had ansmpact on all
housebuilders' performance, other housebuilders have recovered largely as a result of the
Government's help-to-buy scheme which 1s not applicable to the Company, Notwithstanding
this, the Cornmittee feels that housebuilders remain an appropriate comparator group for TSR
but that this shouid be balanced against the broader market by the introducuon of a FTSE 250
comparator group. The use of two peer groups would provide a more holistic assessment of
performance against both a cychcal industry and performance against the broader market
Constituents of our housebullder peer group are set out on page 94,

The Committee beheve that the additional two year holding period and the new weightings and
targets will create the right balance between supporting a successful execution of the three-year
business plan and incentrvising the Executive Directors,

NED fees The fees for FY18 for the Non-Executive Director roles are
+ Chairman £230,000
* Board fee: £54,600
= Semor independent Director's additional fee. £10,000
+ Committee Chairman fee {per Committee) £10,000

McCacthy & Stons pic Annual Report and Accounts a3



Annual Report on Remuneration

Executive Directors' remuneration (audited)

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)

The table helow sets aut the single tatal figure of remuneravon for each Executive Director inrespect of £V17 and FY1e
Further explanations of each of the elements are set aut befow in the fallawing sections of this repart

Base

Annuai

Name Period salary Benefits bonus? TR s Pension’ Total
Chve Fenton FY17 £482,917 £30,257 £143.412 None £396,583 £753,169
FY1&6 £467.617 £27,407 £61,750 None £71,250 £628,024
john Tonkiss FY17 £296,667 £24,626 £88,800 None E£52,138 £462,231
FY16 £229,445 £15,782 £36,400 None £42,990 £324,6%7
Nick Maddock! FY17 £105,769 £8.231 - None £19.702 £133.702
FY16 £288,781 £21,156 - None £54,9%6 £364,933
Rowan Baker? FY17 £151,641 £6,183 £29.631 None £36,139 £223,594

MiceMaddock resigned from tre Boarg with efect froe 6 lanuary 2017
2 Rowan Bokes was aDpO Ned 1o Boord st efiee “om b Janaar /2017 The ama. nits 11 s tanle relate onty (o [~e penad since she- ained the Board or d co not

cover the per od fram = August 2010 "0 5 fanoary 2817

3 Dnerirg of “he annual nenus 0a,3ble 1a Clve  entan ana ta juhn fankiss 150 ~ha ferrm of deferred sharcs Lo the value 0" £47 B0Z and 1 35,500 resoccively 1rese
amo Jnly are incliaed in the ann 12l porys “gires nt=is [able The wrares are deierree For tofee years 70 are not sub ect [0 any performance contdinans Rowar Baker 5

berus s aff tash with ~o defle-red shares
Mo LTIPs were due or eligible rovestr FY17

)
5 wamprses - evduc o Group Persanal Pensivn scherre coneibuiany éro salory » pplements inliey o penision

Base salary

As reparted n the Annyal Regort last year, the base salary for the CEO and the COQ were increased with effect from

1 November 2016 The table

elow shows the base salary for each of the Executive Directors duning the year As Rowan Baker

was only appoinited to the Board on 6 fanuary 2017, her salary prior to that date has not been disclosed Nick Maddock resigned

from the Board with effect from & January 20%7

Exécutive Directar Postian Perad Annual salary
Cirve Fenton Chief Executive Officer 1?19 112 :3311 ég:? ::;i’ggg
John Tonkiss Chief Operating Officer 11?19 112 N _.?11 ;g::? gggggg
Rowan Baker Chief Finangial Officer {turrent) 6.0117-310817 £225,000
Nick Maddock Chief Financial Officer iformer) 1.0%16 - 6.01.17 £300,000
Benefits (audited)

The Executive Cirectors typically receve private medical insurance, ife insurance and cash for car allowance, although
the Committee retains the flexibility to provide other benefits The amounts shown in the table above are the gross
{pefore tax} amounts

Annual honus (audited)
The strategy and the KPis of the Group are primary factors in ensuring that there s alignment between performance and reward
For FY17 the performance conditions and ther weightings for awards under the ABP were

» Group pperating profit {70%)
« Group full year cash flow (10%)

» Group land exchanges (10%)

» Group customer satisfaction (10%)

Under the terms of the FY17 annual bonus, 25% for each element is payable for achieving the ihreshold performance, 50%

s payable for achieving target performance, increasing to 100% for achieving maximum perfarmance Achievemnents between
rthese paints are calculated on a straight-ine basis The maximurm gpporunity for Clive Fentan and jakn Tonkiss was 150% of
salary and one-third of any bonus earned was in the form of deferred shares, which is deferred for three years Rowan Baker
was appointed in the year and her maximum bonus opportunity was set at 100% of salary in cash, recogrising that FY17 was
a transitonal year rather than the maximum pohicy level for Executive Directors of 150% of salary For FY18, Rowan's borus
opportunity will be increased to 150% of salary with one-third deferral in ine with other Executive Directors

The bonus awards payable (0 the Execuuve Directors in respect of FY17 were agreed by the Remuneration Committee, having
reviewed the Company's results and the extent to which the performance conditions were met The results are shown in the
following table As at 13 MNovember. no awards have been granted in respect of FY18

4 MeCarthy & Stone pic
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Performance targets Annual bonus vatue achieved
Percertage of
Weighting Maximum maximum
of gach Performance weighting Actial perfarmance Crve Jahn Rowan
Performance condiions candition targets required pertarget performance acheved Fenton Tanklss Baker
Underlying Threshold £108 6m 17.5%
operating 700% Target £113.6m 35.0% £96 2m 0.0% - - -
profit Maxirmum £123 6m 70.0%
Threshold £2.0m 2.5%
Cash flow 10.0% Target £27.3m 5.0% £49,2m 82.0% £59.694 £36962 £12,334
Maximum £61.5m 10.0%
Land Threshold 2,781 2.5%
exchanges 100% Target 3,733 5 0% 3184 550% E40039 £24792 £8.273
s Maximum 3,446 10.0%
Customar Threshold 910% 2.5%
satisfacton 10 0% Target 93 0% 50% 33 4% 60.0% £43,679 £27046 £9024
Maximum 95.0% 10.0%
Total 100.0% 19.7% £143,412 £88,800 £29,631

LTIP awards (audited)

During =¥T7 LTIP awards of 150% of salary were granted o Clive Fenton and Jobn Tankess, and 106% of salary ta Rowan Baker
The awards were made as nil-cost options and the number of shares over which each nik-cost option was awarded was calculated
by reference to the closing price of the snares as denved from the Daily Gfficial List of the London Stock Exchange on the day
befare the date of the award

These ril-cost aptions will vest depending on performarce against a challenging shiding scale of Earrengs per Share (‘£PS7, Return
on Capital Employed (ROCE) and relative Total Shareholder Returr (TSR') against a bespoke group of housebwlders The TSR
comparator group index comprises the unweighted average TSR of the ‘ollowing housebuiders Barratt, Bows, Bellway, Crest
Nicholsor, Persimmaon, Redrow and Taylor Wimpey Al three measures are assessed over a three-year performance period and
are equally waighted The LTHP contains clawback and malus provisions

The perforrmance conditions and targets for the FY17 LTIP awards are set out below For the echievernent of threshold
performance, 25% of tne elernent will vest with straighi-ine vesung m between to maximum performance

Measure Weighting Threshuid performance Maximum performance
£PS 1/3rd 21.8 pence 278 pence
FY19 ROCE 1/3rd 22% 25%
Relative TSR 1/3rd £qual to Index Index + 7.5% p a.

The following LTIP awards were made during FY17

Manimurm
Nymiger Basis of % of award percertage of

Grant aof shares award granted Face value vesting at the face value Perfarmance
Executive Director date awarded (% of basic salary) of award2 threshold that could vest pengds?
Clve Fenton 221216 471916 150% E726,750 25% 100% 3years
John Tankiss 221216 292,208 150% £450,000 25% 100% 3years
221216 40,584 n/a £62.500 25% 100% 3years

Rowan Baker'
270117 105,520 79% £176,957 25% 100% 3years

Rowarl 5aker was grat tog anLNP gwarg n Decomber 231 pror (0 deirg promoted (0 7he Board She was swardeo 31op up L1IP swarg m Jsnuary 20 7 ofiowing
e eapaintreen, as CTO The face value of the second award was cote datec 1sig the rlose g share price on 260 ,anuery 2017 being LF 67/ The combined ~wards
represert J6% of her basc salary

2 The facevale 1§ e alculered gsing re o lastag soare proe an 2 Derember 20 54F1 54)and on 26 .anaary 20 7f£1677)

3 The performarce oeriad runs tor three years fram the date of gra~: Relatve TS w Hl be meosyed from 22 Jecemnber 2016 over athree year pencd "PSano ROCE
wil be rreasured ar 3 Augrist 2019

As at 13 November, no awards have been granted in respect of FY*8
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Pension entitlements (audited)

The Group anerates a Group personal pension scheme under which Executive Directors are enutied (o 1 eceve contnbunions

of up to 20% of salary The Group does not currently operate a defined Senefit scheme

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration

The Company's Articies of Association restrict the annual fees (hat may be paid to the Non-Executive Directars in aggregate

to £10m This amount may only be increased by ordinary resclution of the shareholders

Single total figure of remuneraticn (audited)

The tabte belaw sets out the simgle totel figure of remunerauon and breakdown Tor each Non-Executive Director

Nan-Executive Directars! Perigd Fees Benefis? Total Rale
Johnwhite FY17 £230,000 £2,670 £232,670

Al £200,082 £2,324 £211,417 Group Mon-Executive Chawman
Frank Nelson FY17 £73,000 £107 £73,107

FY16 £68,360 - £68,360 Senior Independent Director
Mike Parsons FY17 £63,000 - £63,000

FY16 £60,322 - £60,322 Independent Non-Executive Director
Geeta Nanda FY17 £53,000 - £53,000

FY16 £52,283 - £52,283 Independent Non-Executive Director

1 ahn Carler was appon' 84 dtwef year end so has nu rec2ived any remunersooen for b Y £
?  Benefirs redare (0 oursiae afnolicy ravel expecditure

Non-Executive Directors’ fees
The Mon-Executive Diwectors fees which appied dunng P17 were

Role Fees
Charman £230,000
Nan-Executwe Director's Baard fae £53,000
Senior Independent Director's additional fee £30,000
Committee Chairman’s additional fee (per Committee) £10,000
The Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to parbiapate in the Graup's Perision Scheme, ABP LTIP or the Sharesave Plan
Directors’ sharehoildings and share interests (audited)

Directors’ interests in share awards (audired)

The cutstantng NTeresis i share awards for 1he Execulive Directors a5 at 31 August 2017 are shown in the 1able below

The Non-Executive Directors are not perrmitted ta partidpate in any of the Group’s share plans or incentive arrangements

Prrectors Number Vested during Lapsed during Exercise Vesting

Plan Dateof grant of share awards the year the year price (€] date Expiry date
Clive Fenton - CEO

LTIP 251115 263888 - - atl 251118 2511 25
L7P 221216 471916 - - atll 221219 221226
Sharesave 01215 10,752 - - 1674 280119 280719
john Tonkiss

LTIP 251115 155,555 - - nil 25118 251125
TP 221216 292,208 - - il 221219 2122
Sharesave 101215 10752 - - 1674 280119 28.0719
Rowan Baker

LTP 251115 22,222 - - nil 25118 251125
LTIP 221216 40,584 - - nil 221219 221236
LTIP 270117 105,520 - - alll 370120 270127
Sharesave 161215 10,752 - - 1574 280119 280719
Nick Maddock'

LTIP 251115 166,666 - 166.666 il lapsed lapsed
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - 10,752 1674 lapsed tapsed

1 “ickMaodgekiel the Campany on efan ,ary 281} ang b s ol 1P & ¢ Nharesave ooticns lapser or that date

There were no outstanding ABP share awards as at 31 August 2017

9% McCarthy & Stonwe pic




STRATEGIC REPQRT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors’ shareholdings (faudited)

The Executive Directors are required to buld up over afive-year penod, and then subsequently hold, 2 shareholding equivalent
10 200% of their base salary At the end of FY17 Clive Fenton and John Tonkiss had mer therr shareholding requirement. Rowan
Baker, who was appomnted to the Board on 6 January 2017, has nat yet met her sharenolding requirement, but she is aware she
will need to ncrease her sharehofding to meet this requirement by 6 january 2022 Non-Executive Directors are nat subject to
shareholding requrements

The table below shows the interests in shares in the Company, Including unvested awards, for each of the Directors as at
31 August 2017 No options were exercsed during the year There has not been any change since the year eng

Shares Shares Shares
Shares subjectto not subject to Options. Options Optlons beneftcially Sharenolding
benefaalty performance performance vested but unvested unvested owned as reguirement
Directar owned conditions condelons unexercised {LTtPs) (Shatesave) %of salary! maet?
Executive Directors
Clive Fenton 1,651,345 - - - 735,804 10,752 564 1% Yes
John Tonkiss 578,719 - - - 447,763 10,752 315 3% Yes
Rowan Baker 3,789 - - - 168,326 10,752 2,8% No
Nick Maddock? 825,361 - - - nfa n/a nfa nia
Nan-Executive Directors
John White 1,650,192 nta n/a n/a n/a n/a - n/a
Frank Nelson 173,270 nfa n/a n/a nia n/a - n/a
Mike Parsons 173,270 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - n/a
Geeta Nanda - n/a nia nfa nia n/a - n/a

1 Thisis pasers on a dosing share orice of £ 555 and the year-ena salar es of the Fxerulive Directors Shares Used far The abnve calculanor exd sde unvested ang
unexerc spC optians They indiude s *sres where the “xecut ve Director nas ornefic al ownershin, shares cepe~aently acguiren In fne mar<e7 and those aeld oy
a spause of dvl panner of dependent chid Lnder the =ge of “Bysars

2 “hck Maddock left the Company orr & Jarvary 2017 Tre berefic aly owned srares represent his + old ng on nns dale of resignaton His 117 and Shareseve opuor s
lapsed on that date

Payments to past Directors (audited)
There were no caymentsin the financial year.

Payments for loss of office (audited)
There were no payments in the financial year No payments were made to Nick Maddock for oss of office

External directorships

Executive [wrectors may hold positions i other companies as Non-Execurive Direcrors and retain their fees

Chive Fenton, John Tenkrss and Rowan Baker do not hold any external directorships

Comparison of overall performance and pay

The graph below shows the vaiue of £100 invested in the Company's shares since hsung compared with the FTSE 250 index
The graph shows the Total Shareholder Return generated by both the movernent in share value and reinvestment over the
same periad of dwvidend income

As the Company is currently a canstituent of the FTSE 250, tha Committee considers this 15 an appropriate index The comparson
1s fram the date of hsting on 11 Novernber 2015 to 31 August 2017

N B

Graphic removed

L |
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Chief Executive Officer’s historic remuneration
Tha following table shows the taral single figure for the role of Chief Executive Officer as well as the annual bonus and LTIP vesting
level achieved far each of the perods cavered by the graph on the previous page

FY1Y 16
CEO total single figure £753,169 £628,024
Annual bonus payment |evel achieved (% of maximum opportunity) 19.7% 10.0%
LTIP vesting level achueved (% of maxuwmum appartunity)! 0% 0%

1 Neaward -5 veste dunder the LTIP

Statement of considerations of employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
The policy for ail employees is determined m terms of best practice and ensuring that the Group Js able to attract and retam
the best people This prinaple s followed n the development of our policy

The remuneration strategy of the Company has been designed to ensure all employees share :n Its Success through
performance-related remuneration and share ownershup On 1P0 the LTIP was introduced for Executive Directors and
other selected members of sentor management Awards under the LTIP will provide alignment between seeor leaders
and our shareholders based cn overall performance of the business

Far all employees, the Company has adopted the Sharesave and the Share Incentive Plan (SIP') Under these Plans, all employees
have the apportunity 1o purchase shares in the Company subject to certain restricttans

The Cornparty does not USe remuneration companson measurements nor have employees been consulted directly on the policy
I setng the remuneration poicy for Cirectors, the pay and condiions of other employees of the Group are iaken mnto actcount,
including any base salary increases swarded

The Commuttee 1s provided with data on the remuneration structure for management level uers below the Executive Directars,
and yses this nformarcn to ensure consistency of approach throughout the Group

Change in Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration pared with employ
The following tabile dlustrates the change in CEQ salary, benehts and bonus between FY15 and FY17 compared with other
employees i the Group faken as a whole

% change FY16to FY17

Base salary Benefits Annual bonus
Chuef Executive Officer 2% 10% 132%
Other Group employees 3% 14% 14685

Reilative importance of spend on pay
The table betow shows the relatve importance of spend on pay in comparison to profit distributed by way of dividends

Fra? Fr16 % changes
Overall spend on pay (ncluding Executive Cirectors £80.0m £69.3m 13%
Profit distributed by way of didends £29.0m £24.2m 20%

There were no distributions by way of share buybacks dunng the year
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Consideration by the Directors of matters relating te Directors’ remuneration

The Board has delegated to the Commitiee, under agreed terms of reference, responsipibty for the policy and for deterrmimng
specfic packages for the Executive Directors and other selected members of the semor management team Priar to the
establishment of the Committee, remuneration decisions were made by the Board The Company consults with key shareholders
n respect of the policy and the intreduction of new incentive arrangements

The members of the Committee during FY17 and up to the date of this Report are Mike Parsons (Chairman), John White,
Frank Nelson and Geeta Nanda

The terms of reference for the Committee are avallable on the Company’s website www.mecarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/
about-us/corporate-governance, and fram the Company Secretary at the registered office

Qur mair responsibilues are to

+ Determine and agree with the Board the broad Policy for the Executive Directors and other selected members of the senor
management (eam

+  Undertake periodic reviews (o assess the appropriateness ang relevance of the Policy ensuring shignment with best pracuce
principles of the UK Corporate Gavernance Code

= (Consider the relatve importance of the Group’s expenditure on pay compared to the Group's prefits, dividends and tax paid

+ Review any major changes in empleyee benefit struciures throughgut the Company or Grouo and to agmmnister zll aspects of
any share scherme

The Committee receives assistance from the HR Director and the Company Secretary, wha will attend meenngs by invitauon,
except when issues relatln%to their own remuneration are being discussed The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Firancial Officer
and the Chief Operating Officer attend by inviration on occasion

Adviser to the Rermuneration Committee

Followng a setection pracess carned cut by the Board prior to and then followng the 1P of the Company, the Commuttee has
engaged the services of PricewaterhouseCoopers (Pw(} as independent remuneration adviser

During FY17 PwC has provided adwice, primarily in respect of the rernuneration policy and LTIP awards.

PwC alsc provides certain other non-audit services 1 respect of 1ax and internal audit tothe Group The Commiitee is sausfied
that no conilict of Interest exists or existed in the prowsion of these services and that the adwvice recewed from Pw( 1s objective
and independent PwC s a member of the Remureration Consultants Group and s a signatory 1o 1ts valuntary code of conduct
which is designed o ensure objectve and independent advice 1s given to remuneration committees

Freed fees of £36,00C{FY16 £24,000) were paid to PwC during the year in respect of remuneration advice given ta the Committee
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Shareholder engagement and statement of voting at the AGM
The Commuttee believes itis very mportant o rmaintam an open dialogue with shareholders on remuneration matters

Shareholders' views were sought and considered when we set the remuneration palicy 1ast year as well as consuling on the
changes [a the iIncentve arrangements as outhned earlier in this report The Committea commies (o consulting with our major
shareholders . respect of any futlre changes to the remuneration poiicy and any rmaterial changes to ncenuve arrangements

We gul resolutions to approve the remuneration policy, as set out n last year's Annual Report, and to approve the FY15

Annual Report on Remuneration to aur members at our AGM in january 2017 The voung outcome of thgse two resalutions were

Total votes cast
FY17 Resaiugon Vares for voles against g withheld) B
Directors' Remuneration Policy:
Nurmber of vores cast 320)84,871 2aN3722 344,898,593 3,773,564
Percentage of votes cast 92.8% 7.2%
Annual Report on Remuneration:
Number of votes cast 345,465,429 1,642,446 347,107,875 1.564,283
Percentage of votes cast 99.5% 0.5%
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Summary of remuneration policy
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The following table sets out the elements of remuneration permitted under the remuneration palicy which was approved by
shareholders in January 2017 The full policy is set out in the FY16 Annual Report on pages 63 o 74

How it supports the

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Elerment of Company’s short and Perfarmance
reruneration iong-term strategic ohjectives Operabion Maxithurm oppertunitles melrics
Basesalary  Provides a base level of Set on appointment and The Committee ensures None,
rermuneration to support reviewed annually or when that maximum salary
recruitment and retenticn there is a change in position fevels are set in ine with
of Executive Directors with or responsibility. companies of a sirmilar
the necessary experience size to McCarthy & Stone,
and expertise to deliver When determining an operatng in a similar sector,
the Group's strategy. apprapriate level of salary,
the Commuttee considers, The companies it the comparataor
* Remuneration practices group are the constituents of
within the Group the FTSE 250 and sector peer
* The general perfermance orgamisations of a similar size,
of the Group
+ Salaries within the ranges The Committee intends to
paid by the companies in review the comparator groups
the comparator group each year and may add or
used for remuneration remove companies from the
benchmarking group as it considers appropriate
» Any change in scape, Any changes te the comparator
rele and responsibilities group will be in the section
= The ecenomic environment headed Implementation of
Remureration Policy, in the
Indwiduals who are recruted or -~ fallowing finanaial year
promoted to the Board may, an
occasion, have their salaries set In general, salary increases for
below the targeted policy level Executive Directors aren ine
untll they beceme established with the mcrease for employees
in their role, In such cases
subsequent increasesin salary The Company sets out in the
may be higher than the general section headed implemertation
nises for employees until the of Remuneration Policy Executive
target positioning 1s achieved, Director salaries for that year
and the following year
Benefits Provides a benefits Executive Directors typically The maximum s set at None,
package in ine with recerve private medical insurance,  the cost of providing the
practice relative to its life Insurance and a car or car benefits described,
comparator group to altowance The Committee
enable the Company retains the flesabibity to provide
to recruit and retain other benefits
Executive Directors
withthe experience The Committee recognrses the need
and expertise to deliver to maintain sustable flexibikty i
the Group's strategy. the benefits provided to ensure it
15 able to support the objective of
attracting and retaiming personnel n
order to deliver the Group strategy.
Addizional benefits may therefare
be offered such as reiocation
allowances on recruitment.
Pensions Provides a pension provision  The Company offers a Group The maximurmn contribution None,

in hne with practice relative
to 1ts comparator group to
enable the Company

ta recruit and retain
Executive Directors with the
experience and expertise to
deliver the Group's strategy.

Persanal Pension scheme. The
Executive Directors are entitled
to receive a masximum employer
contribution into the Group
Personal Pension scherme or

a salary supplement in heu of
pension of 20% of basic salary
perannum,

into the Group Personal Pension
scheme or a salary supplement in
lieu of pension s 20% of gross basic
salary

The Company sets out in the
section headed Implementation

of Remuneration Policy, in the
following financial year the pension
contributions for that year for each
of the Executive Directors,
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

How it supports the

Element of Ccompany’s short and Performance
remuneration lorg-term strateght ohectves. Qperauan Mainian opportunties maleies
Annualand The ABP provides a The Carnmittee determines The maximumbonus  An award under the ABP Is
Deferred significant incentive to the bonus to be awarded (including any partof  subject to satisfying financial
Bonus the Executive Directors  fallowing the end of the the bonus deferred and strategic/operational
Plan (ABP')  linked to achievement  relevant financial year, into shares} deliverable performance/personal
n delivering goals that under the ABP does performance conditons
are closely aligned with  The Company will set out notexceed 150% of a  and targets measured aver
the Greup's strategy in the secticn headed participant’s annual a period of one financial year
and the creation of Implementation of base salary
value for shareholders, Remuneration Policy, Amirmurn of 50% of the
n the following financial Percentage afbonus  bonus shall be based on
In particular, the ABP year, the nature of the maximum earned financial performance
supports the Company's targets and their weighting for levels of measures, The Committee will
cbjectives allowing the  for each year, performance determine the bonus to be
setting of annual targets * Threshold, 25% of  delivered following the end of
based on the business  Detalls of the performance maximum bonus the relevant finanaal year
strategy at the time, conditions, targets and their + Ontarget. 50% of
meaning that a wider {evel of sausfaction for the max;mum bonus The Committee 15 of the

range of performance
metrics can be used
that are refevant

and achievable

The Commuttee has
discretion to defer part
of the benus earned in
shares under the ABP.

The advantage of
deferral is:

+ Increased ahgnment
between Executive
Drrectors and
shareholders created
through deferred
shares and the
ncreased equity
stake of management
inthe Company
Vesting of deferred
shares are subject

o an Executive
Director’s continuing
employment, which
provides an effective
lock-in

L3

year bemgreportedonisset  «  Maxmurn 100%

out In the Annual Report of maximum bonus

on Remuneration

The annual bonus will

The Committee can determine  be paid in cash and
that part of the borius earned  deferred shares

under the ABP 5 delivered as
an award of shares.

The maximum value of
deferred shares i1s 50% of
the bonus earned.

The portion of bonus earned

to be deferred into Company
shares for the year being
reported on waill be set out in the
Annual Report on Remuneration,

The main terms of these awards

are:

»  Minimum deferral period
of three years, during which
no performance condibons
will apply

s The participant’s continiied
employment at the end of the
deferral period unless he/she
is a good leaver

The Committee may award
dividend equivalents on those
shares to the participants to the
extent that they vest.

The Committee has the
discretion to apply a holding
period of two years post vesting
of deferred shares.

The ABP rontains clawback and
malus provisions. Please refer
to page 69 of the 2016 Annual
Repart for further detaits.

opinien that given the
commercal sensitivity ansing
in relation to the detailled
financial targets used for the
bonus, disclosing precise
targets for the ABP in advance
would not be in shareholder
interests Targets, performance
achieved and awards made
will be published at the end

of the performance period so
shareholders can fully assess
the basis for any pay-outs
under the ABP

In exceptional arcumstances
the Committee retains the
discretion to!

* Change e performance
measures and targets anc
the weighting attached to
the performance measures
and targets part-way
through a performance year
if there s a significant and
materal event which causes
the Committee to believe
the original measures,
welghtings and targets are
no longer appropriate

= Make downward or upward
adjustments to the amount
of bonus earned resulting
fror the application of the
performance measures, If
the Committee believes that
the bonus cutcomes are not
a fair and accurate reflection
of business performance

Any adjustments or discretion
applied by the Committee

will be fully disclosed in the
follawing year's Annual report
on Remuneration
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Element of Company’s short and Parformance
remuneration lang-term strategic objectives Operation Maximum oppertunities melrics
LTIP The purpose of the LTI®  Awards are granted annually ~ Normal annual The performance conditicns

15 to Incentivise and
reward Executive
Drrectors in relation te
long-term performance
and achievernent of
Group strategy.

This will bettar align
Executive Birectors’
nterests with the
long-term interests of
the Groupand actas a
retention mechamsm,

The use of relative TSR,
measures the success
of the implementation
of the Group’s strategy
n delivering a return
above our peer group.

The use of three-year
EPS and ROCE, ensures
Executive Directors are
focused on sustainable
long-term financal
performance

to Executive Directors in the
form of a conditional share
award or & nil-cost option

Details of the performance
conditions for grants made
in the year and the future
financial year are set out
in the Annual Report on
Remuneration.

Awards will vest at the end of

a three-year perod subject to

+ The Executive Director's
continued employment at
the date of vesting

+ Satisfaction of the
performance coenditions

The Committee may award
dividend equivalents on
awards to the extent that
these vest.

The Commuttee has the
discretion to apply 2 holding
period of two years post
vesting of LTIP awards

The LTIP contains clawback
and malus provisions.
Please refer to page 69 of
the 2016 Annual Report for
further detatls,

maximum value of
150% of annual base
salary based on the
market value at the
date of grant set in
accordance with the
rules of the LTIP

In exceptional
circumstances the
Committee may grant
an award with a
maximum of 200%
of annual base salary
* 25% of the award
wall vest for
thresheld
performance
100% of the

award will vest

for maximum
performance

There is straight-
line vesting between
these points.

far the FY17 LTIP awards are
cumulative EPS, ROCE and TSR,
The weightings of which are
outlined on page 95

The Committee may change
the balance of the measures,
or use different measures
for subsequent awards,

as appropriate,

No material change will
be made to the type of
perfarmance conditions
withaut prior shareholder
consultaticn,

in exceptional circumstances

the Committee retains the

discretion to.

* Vary, substitute or wave
the performance conditions
applying to LTIP awards if
the Committee considers
it appropriate and that
the new performance
cond:tions are deemed
reasonable and are not
materially less difficuit
to satisfy than the
original conditions

* Nake downward or
upward adjustrments to
the amount vesting under
the LTIP resulting from
the application of the
perfermance measures if
the Committee believes that
the outcomes are not a fair
and accyrate reflection of
business performance
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

How it suppaorts the

Elernent of Company’s shortand Performance
remuneracon long-term strategic objectives Operation Maximum oppartunities metrics
Allemployee The SiP and Sharesave  Executive Directors are eligible  The maximum leveis In accordance with the
share plans are all employee share  to particpate in both the SIP of participation set by Jegislation the Company may
-SiP and ownership planswhich  and Sharesave, legislation fromtime  impose obgective perfarmance
Sharesave  have been designed 0 ume, condimens and/or lengin of
1o encourage all The Executive Directors are service/hours warked/level of
employees to become  entitled to participate in any remuneration te determine the
shareholders in the other all empioyee arrangement level of awards made under
Company and thereby  implemented by the Company the SIP,
align therr interests
with shareholders,
Minimum The Commttee has adopted formal sharehalding guidedines that will encourage the Executive Directars 10 build

shareholding up over a five-year period and then subsequently hold a sharehclding equivalent to a percentage of base salary,

requirement

Adherence to these guidelines is a condition of continued participation in the equity incentive arrangements,

This requirement ensures that the interests of Executive Directors and those of shareholders are ciosely aligned

Currently the requirement 1s for ail Executive Directors to build up a shareholding equal to 200% of salary.

The Committee retains the discretion to mcrease the sharehalding requirements.,

Executive Directors’ contracts and letters of appeintment for Chairman and Nan-Executive Directors

Executive Directors

Notice perlogs

Date of Nature Comp!
Name Service contract of contract From company Director Tor early termination
Chve Fenton 30 january 2014 Rolling 12 months 12 months At the discretion
John Tonkiss 21 January 2014 Ralling 12 months & manths ofthe
Rowan Baker 6 January 2017 Ralling 12 manths 6 months Committee

Non-Executive Directors

Name Date of letter of appointment
John white 24 September 2013
Frank Nelson 11 Novernber 2013
Mike Parsens 28 October 2013
Geeta Nanda 4 March 2015
jahn Cartar 18 September 2017

The Committee's policy for setting notice pertods is that a 12 month period will apply for Executve Directors

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company (incdudwmg the Chairman) do not have service contracts The Non-Cxecutive
Direciors are apponted by letters of appointment Each independent Non-Executive Director’s term of office runs for a
three-year period which can be renewed for two further three-year terms The terms of the Non-Executive Directors’
positions are sUbject to their re-eiecuon by tne Company's Sharenolders at the AGM and te re-election at any subsequent
AGM at which the Non-Executive Birectors stand for re-glection

All Directors will be put forward for re-election by shareholders or an annual basis

The service cormtracts and detters of appaintment of the Directors are available for inspecuon at the Company’s registered

office during nerrmal office hours
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Hllustrations of the application of the Remuneration Paolicy

The charts nelaw illustrate the remuneration that would be pawd o each of the Executive Directors, Dased on salaries at the start
of FY18, under three different performance scenanos (1) mimmurr, {1) ontarger, and {+) maximurn The takle below these charts
sets out the assumptions used to calculate the elements of remuneration for each of these scenarios The elements of
remuneration have been calegersed info three components (1) ixed, (1) annual bonus (deferred bonus), and (i) LTIP

Chief Exacutive Officer (Clive Fentor) (£°000) Chief Operating Officer {(John Tonkiss) (£'000)
Maxmum [ 30% E | 3s% |21 Maxmum [30% | 3% | 35% | 1410
On-target [ 460 | Z7% ! 27% | 1.380 Qn-target [46% ] 27% { 27% | 95

Mipimum 630 Mimimum | 100% 420
Actual 81% 753 Actual 21% 462

Hrxed #Borus ELTIP M Fixed M Bonus MLTIP

Chief Financial Officer (Rowan Baker} (£'000)

Maximum ‘ 0% I 5% ‘ 35% ‘ 1216
Cn-iarget ‘ 465 | 27% \ 7% | 789

Minimum 351

Actual Wanave not noiuded the "Ariual” bas for Jowan Ba<er

as shewas orly 3 Directar for nart of the year

MFxed ®Bopus WLTIP

Element Description Mimimum Target Maximum

Fixed Salary, benefits' Included Included Included
and pension

Annual bonus  Annual bonus (including  No annual vanable 50% of 100% of
deferred sharasy maximurm bonus maximum benus

Maximum opportunity
af 150% of salary

LTIP Award under the LTIP? No multiple year vaniable  50% of the 100% of the
Maximum annual award maximum award maximurn award
of 150% of salary

Noles

* Basedan Y17 penafirs paymen(s as per the simgle Digure Table T-e actual benefics paud for FY18.wil] only be kngwn atihe end of (he reandal year See page 34 for “he
Single Freure "able and the accempaymg notes

2 n armr&mrn wirh hie ~eg ulations share pr e gzowth has now oeen induded In wderios, divedenc en 1 valents have no: oeen adoed e (e deferroc shares aro LIF awards

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Chairman

13 Novernber 2017

W VA JM/ZA__——
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Directors Report

The Directors present therr report for the financial year ended
31 August 2017

Corporate governance statement

The informatien that fuifils the requirements of the corporate
governance statement for the nurposes of the FCA's Disclosure
Gudance and Transparency Rules can be ‘ound m the
corporate governance information on pages 74 ta 105 {all

of which forms part of this Director s’ repars) and in this
Directors’ report

Cross-references to other sections of the document
Disclosures that are 'n other sections include

Subect matter

Employee diversity a2nd inclusivity
Employee involvernent
Greenhouse gas emissions

Likely future developments

Section and page reference

Strategic report, page 63
Strategic report, page 63
Strategic repaort, page 60
Strategic repaort,
pages 56 and 57

Dividends

An intenm dradend of 1 8p{FY16 10p) per ordinary share was
paid on 9 June 2017 1o those shareholders on the register on
28 April 2017 Subject ra shareholder approvat ar the 2018
AGM, the Directors are proposing a final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 August 2017 of 3 6p (FY16 3 5p) per
ordinary share This brings the total dwidend for the year to
54p (FY16 4 5p)

Directors

The names ot the Directors who were Directars at year end
and up to the date of this report are an pages 70 (@ 73 Nick
Maddock served as a Director unbi! 6 January 2017 when he
resigned from the Board Rowan Baker was apponted to the
Board on 6 January 2017 john Carter was appointed Lo the
Board on 1 October 2017

Detalls of the Directors’ imterests in the share caprital of the
Company are set out i the Directors’ Remunerabion Report
on page 97

The powers given to the Direciors are contained in the
Company’s Artcles of Association {the ‘Articles), subject
to the Companees Act 2006, and any directions grven by
members in general meetings

The Board, wha Is ulumately responsible for the management
of the business of the Company, may exercse all powers to
borrow maney, to pay intenm dividends, to morrtgage or
charge any of 1ts undertakings, to 1Ssue securities and to give
security for any debg, hability or cbligation of the Company

to any third party
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The appointment and replacement of directors 1s governed
by the Articles and the Board may appoint any persen to
be a director (so long as tne total rumber of directors does
not exceed the limit prescribed in the Articles, which 1s
currently 12)

Under the Arucles, any such director shall hold office only
untit the next AGM and shall then be elgible for election by
the members In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code
alt directors are required to retire and, if they 5o wish, the:

may stand for annual re-election All current directors wil

be seeleng re-election atthe 2018 AGM

The Articles may be amended by a special resolution of the
shareholders

Articles of Association

The Artidles of Assoriation may be amended in accordance
with the orovisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way of 3
special resolution of the Company’s shareholders

Share capital and control
Details af the Company's share capital are on page 137 in note
25 ro the consolidated financial statements

A 3% August 2076 there were 537,314,069 25 ordinary shares
of 8p norminal value inssue Following approval at the AGM,
the quarter share was bought back and cancelled on

25 January 2017 No other shares have been bought back
and cancelled

Cuning the year 15,365 new crdinary shares have been 1ssued
and allotted 1o satisfy early exercises of options under the
Group's Sharesave Pran by good leaver employees, who are
entitled to exercise their pro-rata options within six months
of leaving the Group

The Company has one class of shares ordinary shares of 8p
nomingl value, each of which carries the rght to one vote at
general meetings of the Company and to an equaf proportion
of any dividends declared and pad

Shares may beissued with such rights and restrictions as the
Carnpany may, by ardinary resolution, decide or, if there s no
such resolution or so fai as it does nor make specific provision,
as the Board may decide

There are no restrictions on the transfer of our ordinary shares
and there are no shares carrying special nghts with regards (o
control of the Compary The Company 1s not aware of any
agieements between shareholder s that may result in
restriceions on the transfer of shares or on voting ngnts There
are no spedfic restrictions on the size of a holding or on the
exercise of voling nghts which are governed by the Artidles of
Assgoetion and prevaling legislagon Ne persan has any
specal nights of control aver the Company's share capital and
all issued shares are fully paid
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Resolutions to allot, issue and buy back shares
Shareholder authonty will be sought each year to authorise
the Directors to allot new shares and to disapply pre-emption
rights and to make market purchases of our grdinary shares,

We intend to renew our powers toissue and buy back shares
at each AGM AL our AGM an 25 January 2017 the Directars
were authorised tossue shares up to a maximum normnal
amount af £14,328,360 and empowered to 1ssue shares on a
non pre-emptive basis up to a maximum nominal amount of
£2,149,256 for general use and a further £3,149,256 for use
N connection with an acguisiion or ather capital investrment

The Directors were also authorised 1o buy back up to
53,731,406 shares This authorily has not been used
The Dwrectors are seeking renewal of this authonty at
the forthcoming AGM, in accordance with relevant
nstitutional gudelines

Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 August 2017, we had been natified, in accordance
with the rules set out In the FCA's Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules sourcebook, of the following interesis in
our ordinary share capital

Number % Interest
of shares nuoting
Name of natlfylng entity/nature of halding. disciosed rights
Anchorage Capital Master
Offshore Limited (indirect) 134,695,393 25,07
Prudential plc group of
comparnies (indirecty 55,140,163 10.26
The Golkdman Sachs Group,
Inc findirecty® 52,870,054 9,84
Aviva plcand
subsidiaries (indirect) 3024245 0.57
Aviva plcand
subsidiaries {directy* 31,165,914 580
Canada Pension Plan
Investment Board (direct) 29,084,092 5.41
Royal London Asset
Management Limited (direct) 27,045,491 5.03

1 Indudes contracts for aifference ({CfDs)renresenting 48,785 237 vatng nghts

2 Includes nghs ;o recall 1,059,084 foancd shares

3 Includes open stock loan of 80,314 shares and wapns/Cf0s reprosenting,
42,091,714 vating nghts

4 Includes righe io recall 4,111,585 inanad sharas,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Inthe period from 31 August 2017 to the date of this report,
we receved the following notifications

Numberof  %linterest fn

Name of nutifyfing entity/mature of holding sharesdisdosed  voting nghts

Anchorage Capital Master

Qffshare, Ltd {indrect)’ 146,595,070 2617
Prudent:al pic group of

companies (Indirect? 70,235,186 1307
The Geldman Sachs Group,

in¢ (indirectf 54,462,421 10,14
Awviva plc and nis subsidiaries (direct) 14,851,688 276

1 Ircludes Pnancial instruments representing 48,785,237 votlng rights (9 08%)
2 Includes financial nstryments reprasanting 235,415 viting rights (0 04%})
3 Indudes financlal Instruments representing 44,433 955 voling nghts (8 27%)

information provided to the Company under the Disctosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules is publicly avalable via the
regulatory mformation service and on the Company’s website

Significant agreements with change of control
provisions

The Campany has in place a revolving credn facility

dated 19 December 2014 {as amended by an amendment
letter dated 10 February 2015 and further amended by a
supplemental agreement dared 23 May 2016} The revalving
credit faality and our jomnt venture with Somerset Care relating
o YLMS both contain termination pravisions that could be
tnggered in certain crcumstances, INcluding if any person
or group of persons acung in concert gain controf of

the Company

There are no agreemenits between the Group and its Directers
and employees providing for compensation for loss of office or
employment {(whether through resignation, purported
redundancy or otherwise) in the event of a takeover g

Directors’ insurance and indemnities

The Group mantains Directors and Officers hability insurance
which provides cover for any legal action brought sgainst

the Directors

The Group has also granted sndemniies to each of the current
Directors of the Company and its main trading subsidiary to
the extent permitted by law Qualifying third-party indemnity
provistons were In force dunng the year ended 31 August 2017
and continue to remain In force

Pelitical donations

By way of a speaal resolution approved at the AGM on
25 January 2017, shareholders authorised the Company
to make political donations and pelitical expenditure up
to a maximum of £100,000 Durning the year the Group
did not make any political donations or incur any political
expenditure The Directars are seekang renewal of the
autharity at the forthcorning AGM, In accordance with
relevant nstitutional guidelines

Financial instruments

Detalls of the Group's financial Instruments and 1ts exposures
to price tisk, credit nsk, hquidity risk and cash flow nsk are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements on pages 13910 143
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Directors Report continued

Going concern

The Directers have assessed the Group's business actvoes
and the factors likely to affect our future performance in ight
of current ang anticpated econoric condittans The Directors
are confident that they are sausfied that the Group has
adequate resources N place to continue In operaticnal
existance for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
aporoval of the financial statements For this reason, they have
continued to adopt the going concern pasis in preparing the
Annual Report and financial statements

The Directors are also required to provide a broader
assessmertk of viability over a longer penod, which can be
found on page 57

In making the going concerp statement and the viability
statement, the Directors have taken into account the ‘Guidance
on Risk Maragement, internal Contrals and Related Finanaial
and Business Reporting 1ssuad by the Financial Reporting
Counctlin September 2014

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Each person wha 1s a Director of the Company as at the date
of approval of this report confirms that

(@ sofar as the Director 1§ aware, there s no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor Is unaware,
and

() the Director has taken &l the steps that he/she oughtto
have taken as 3 Director n order to make himself/herseif
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of thar information

Annual General Meeting

The 2018 AGM will be held on Wednesday 24 January 2018

Full details are contained in the Notice convening the AGM,
which 1s being sent to shareholders with this Annual Report
On behalf of the Board

Patrick Hole
Company Secretary

13 Novernber 2017

i f//f%
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Directors’ Responsibilities

Financial statements and accounting records
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulabions

Company law requires the Directors to prepare finanaal
statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors are required to prepare the Group financdal
statements in accordance with Internaucnal Financial
Reporting Standards (1FRS's} as adopted by the European
Union and Artide 4 and have elected to prepare the
Company financial statemenis 1n accerdance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praciice (United
Kingdom Accountirig Standards), ncluding FRS 102, the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United
Kingdom and Republic of irelzng, and apphcable law

Under compary law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are sausfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company and of their profit or foss for that perod

In prepanng the Parent Company financial statements,
the Directors are required to

« Select surtable accounung policies and then apply
them consistently

= Make judgements and accounting esumates that
are regsonable and prudent

= State whether apphicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statemeants

* Prepare the financial staterments on the gaing concern
biasis unless itis Inapproprate (o presume that the
Company will continue in business

n preparing these financal statements, International
Accountng Standard 1 requires that directors

+ Properly select and apply accounting policies

s Present informaton, including accounting pohoes,
& manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information

= Provide addivonat disclosures when compliance with
the specific requirements 10 IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of paricular
transactions, other events and conditans on the
enuty's inanciai positton and financial performance

» Make an assessment of the Company's ability to
conunue as a going cancern

The Directors are respansible for keeping adequate accaunting
records that are sufficient o show and explain the Company’s
transactons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial positon of the Company and enable

thern to ensure that the financial statements comply with

the Companies Act 2005 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevenuon and detection of fraud
and other rregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corperaie and financial information incduded
on the Company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom
gaverning the preparatian and dissernination of financial
statements may differ from legisiation in other junsdictions.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Board confirms that the Annual Report and Financaial
Statements, taken as a whale, s farr, balanced and
understandable and provides the Informanon necessary
for sharehplders to assess the Posltlon, performance,
strategy and business model of the Company

Responsibility statement
The Directors confirm that, to the best of each person's
knowledge

= The financal statements, prepared in accordance with
interngtional Finanasl Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union, give a true ang fair wew of the
assers, habilties, finanaial pasition and profit or loss of
the Compary and the undertekings induded in the
consohdation taken as a whole

« The Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and
the position of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the pnincipal risks and uncertanties
that they face

This responsiility staternent was approved by the Board of
Directors on 13 Navember 2017 and is signed on its behalf by

Clive Fenton Rowan Baker
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
13 November 2017 13 Novernber 2017

e 7
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Independent Auditor's
Report to the Members
of McCarthy & Stone plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opiion

Tre financal statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 August
2017 and of the Group's orofit for the year then ended

The Group financal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Internanonal Financial Reporong Standards
{IFRS's) as adopted by the Curopean Union and IFRSs as 1ssued by the Internatianal Accounting Standards Board {IASB)

The Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepred Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard apphicabie in the
UK and Republic of ireland’

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
ine Group finanaal statements, Article 4 of the IAS Reguiation

We have audited the financal statements of McCarthy & Stone ple (the ‘Parent Comparty’} and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) which
comprise

The Conschdated Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Consohidated and Parent Statements of Financial Position

The Conschdated and Parent Statements of Changes in Equity

The Canschdated and Parent Cash Flow Statements

The statement of accounting policies

The related notes 1 1o 34 of the Group statements and 110 11 of the Parent statements

The financial reporung framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financal statements s apphicable law
and IFRSs as agopted by the Furapean Umon The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of
the Parert Company financiat statements s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounung Standards, including FRS 102 The
Finanaal Reporung Standard apphicable n the UK and Republic of Irefand” (Urited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounung
Practice)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with international Standards on Auditing {JK) (15A's (UK) and applicable law Qur
responsibilities under thase standaids are further described In the Augior's responsibilities far the audit of the financial
statements section of our report

We ate independent of the Group and the Parent Comrpany in accordance with the ethical requirerments that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the *RC's Ethical Standard as apphed 1o Iisted pubiic interest entities, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical respansibitities In accordance with these requirements We confirm that the non-audit services
prohioited by the FRC's Fthical Standard were not prowided ta the Group or Parent Company

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Summary of our audit approach

The key audit matters that we identified n the current year related to cost capiafisation of overheads and certain shared

equity recevables We have rdentified fewer key audit matters in the current year, due to the non-recurnng nature of two

key misks identified in the prior year arsing from the Ininal Public Gffering (1IPO) being the accounting treatment apphed in
respect of ransaction costs and Incentive scheme arrangements

The materigiity that we used nthe current year was £4 6m (FY16 £5 2m) which was determined on the basis of 53 of
pre-tax profit

We have performed full scope audits on the Group's four largest entmies McCarthy & Stone ple, McCarthy & Stane
[Develepments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited and McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living) Limited

We have performed an audit of select account balances on McCarthy & Stane (Home Equity Interests) Limited and McCarthy
& Stone (Equity Interests) Limited and desktop review procedures over highly immatersal subsidiaries

"z McCarthy & Stone plc
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Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement

We have reviewed the Directors’ statement re%ardmg the appropnateness of the going concern basis of accounung contained
within note 1 to the financial staternents and the Directors’ statement on the longer-term wiability of the Group contained within
the Strategic Report section on page 57

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw actention 6 in relation re

+ The disctosures on pages 56 and 57 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated

» The Directors’ confirmauon on page 55 that they have carned out a robust assessment of the principal nsks facing the Group,
incluing those that would thregten its business model, future performance, sobvency or hguicty

The Directors’ statemert in note 1 to the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate o adopt the
going concern basis of accountng in preparmg them and their idenofication of any material uncertaintres to the Group and
the Parent Company's abriity lo continue o de so gver @ penad of at leasl twelve months from the date of approval of the
financisl statements

The Directors’ explanation on page 57 as to how they have assessed the praspects of the Group, over what period they

have dore so and why they cansider that pericd 1o De appropriate, and their statement as o whether they have a reasonable
expectaron that the Groun will be able to continue N operation and meet s abilies as th? fall due over the period of
their assessment. Including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualfications or assumpticns
whether the Directors’ statements relating to going concerr and the praspects of the Company requsred in accordance

with Listing Rule 9 8 6R{3} are matenally ‘nconsistent with our knowledge obtained i the audn

We corfirm that we have notting material to adg or draw attention ton respect of these matlers

We agreed with the Drrectors’ adoption of the gong concern basis of accounting and we did not identify any such material
uncertainties However, because not all future events or cordiions can be predicted, this statement 1s not @ guarantee as to
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
staterments of the current period andg include the most significant assessed risks of matenal musstatement {whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified These matters included those which had the greatest effect on the averall audtt strategy, the aliocation
of resources in the audit, and direcung the efforts of the engagernent team

These matters were addrassed in the context of our audit of the finanaal statements as a whole, and in formimg our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matlers. The accounting treatment of Incentive schemes was
included as & key audit matter in our prior year repert But has not been included in 2017 due to now being immatenal o the
financial statements Similarty the treatment of transaction costs on IPO was specific to our 2016 audit only and so 1s not inciuded
this year

Key audit matter

Cost capitalisation of overheads

How the scope of our audlt respanded to the key audlt matter Keyobservations

We did not identify

We challenged the reasonableness of the

Refer to page 84 (Report of the Risk and Audit
Commuttee) and pages 128 and 129 (Criticad
occounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty)

Inventory comprises land, work iIn progress

and firished stock The value of inventory as at

31 August 201715 £760 4m {FY16 £685 8m)and

15 the most significant item on the Consohdated
Staterment of Financial Posiuon Overhead costs
capiahised at 31 August 2017 amount to £23 2m
(FY16 £257m)represenung 51%{FY16 4 9%) of
stock additigns Amounts released to ¢ost of sales
totalea £20 7m (FY16 £13 2m}

Management perform a detaled exercise 1o
analyse by department the proportion of costs
relaung directly to site development versus general
business overheads

We consider the allocauon and recogriien

of overhead costs INto INventory to represent an
area of sk and an area where potenal fraud
rould occur as it requires a significant level of
judgement ident fied In

+ Identifying which costs, based on therr nature,
should be capitalised into inventory rather than
expensed

allocation and the accuracy of costs capitaised
for each category of inventory Our work involved
the following

Assessing the design and implemeriation of
relevant coritrols surrounding the formulation
of the percentages appled

Liaising with semor departmental management
to understand the process employed in
determining the cost allocation

Performing sensitivity analysis on the
proportion of costs capiahsed 1n the year

Checking the mechanical accuracy of the
calculations to sdenufy any anomalies

Performing tests of detas over a sample of
costs absorbed to assess whether these are
valued and allocated correctly

Performing a recalculation based on the final

percentage allocation and audited cost Inputs
o establish whether the amounts capralised

are accurate

any 1ssues 10
report in the
course of our work
Accordingly, we are
sausfied as to the
reasonableness of
the allocation

and accuracy of
costs capitalised

n the year
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Key audit matter

How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit matter Key observations

Cost capitalisation of overheads connnued

» Deterrmining the proportion of Planning, Design,
Commercial, Construction ang Health & Safety
costs incurred i bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, as per IAS 2
‘inventories’

The judgement above impacts the carrying

value of tnventory in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Pasition and the gross margin recognised
on each apartment sold

Shared equity receivables

Refer to page 84 (Report of the Risk and Audit
Lommuttee), poges 128 and 129 {Cnlical accounting
udgements and key sources of esumation unceriainty}
and page 136 (financal stotement disclosures)

During the year the Group offered shared equity
based arrangements to buyers The present value
of total shared equity receivables as at 31 August
2017 15 £28 9m (FY16 £29 3m) Ofthis amount,
£19 3m {FY15 £18 9 was attnibutable (o the New
Shared Equity Scheme

The Group's assessment and suppocting calculation
of the New Shared Equity Scheme is dependent

on anumber of assumptions, which are inherently
Judgementat due to therr forward-looking nature
Key assumptions inciude

= Property price projections

« Expected maturity date

« Discount rate

= New bulld discounts and property
sale premiums

The above assumptions are dependent on
management’s ability ta estimate market actmty,
future trends and Auctuations Changes tathese
assumptions could result n a matenal change

in the value of the recewable recognised within

the Consolidated Statermnent of Financial Position
and the associated movements recorded n the
Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income

We critically assessed the accuracy of the inputs
and the reasonableness of the assumptions
apphed in the Group's fair value model of the
New Shared Equity Scheme Our work involved

We did nat identfy
any 1ssues o
reportinthe
course of ur work

the following Accordingly we are
sausfied as to the
« Assessing the design and implementation reasonableness
of relevant controls aver the determination of the carrying
of the assumptians applied valuatian of shared
equny recerables
v Consuiung with our mternat Real Estate recognised

specialists to challenge the rates and
methodologies applied through comparison
with the market

Obtaining relevant sector data (e g Office for
National Statistics and the latest indices) to
challenge the reasanableness of house price
nflaton and new build premiums

Performing tests of detall o assess the
integrity of inputs and recalculate the related
fair vaiue adjustments

Performing sensitvity analysis over the
assumptions both indnadually and coflectvely to
understand whether material differences arise
as a result of changes In these assumptions

Comparing the cash recewved on redemplion
during the year as an indicator of whether
carrying value reflects far value

Checking the mechanicat accuracy of the fair
value calculation and assessing the adequacy of
disclosure in the finanual staterments in
accordance with the requirements of 1AS1
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
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Our application of materiality

We define materialty as the magnitude of misstatemenrt in the financal statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person wouid be changed or mfluenced We use matenality both 1 pfanning the scope
of our audit work and n evaluating the results of our work

Based on our professional udgerrent, we deternined materiality for the Group financal statarments as @ whole to be £46m
which 15 based on 5% of pre-tax profit for the year

Bre-tax profit has been chesen as the basis for mater ality as this 1s the measure by which stakehaolders and the marke: assess the
wider performance of the Grouo

We determine performance materialty at a level lower (nan materiality to reduce the probabdity that, in aggregate, uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceen the materiality for the financial statements as a whole Group performance materialiy
was sel at £3 2m (FY16 £3 6m), represenang 7% of Group materiality for the 2017 audn

We agreed wirh the Risk and Audit Comemuttee that we would report to the Cornmittee all audic differences in excess of £0 2m
{FY16 £03m), as well as differences below that threshold that, n cur siew, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds We also
report 10 the Risk and Audit Cornmittee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the
finanasl statements

An overview of the scope of cur audit

The Group has operations across the Urited Kingdarm, split between three geographic divissons and nine regional off.ces
All subssicharies of the Group are managed from the head office in Bournemouth and are subject to a common conirel
envirgnment Qur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and 1ts envirorment, including
Group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of matenal misstatement at the Group level

Based on that assessment, we focused our audit scope on the four largest entities in the Group McCarthy & Srone ple, McCarthy
& Stone (Developments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited and McCarthy & Stone {(Extra Care Lving)
_imited These enuues represent the principal entimes and account for 98% (FY{6 98%) of the Group's net assets, 100% (FY16
100%) of the Group's revenue and 98% (Fv16 98%) of the Group's profit before tax They were also sedected to prowde

an approprate basis for undercakong audic work wo address the nsks of matenigk misstatement denafied above

2% 2%

Profit Net

Revenue before tax assets

@ Full audit scope ® Full audit scope # Full audit scope
® Spectfied audit procedures @ Speafied auar procedures ® Specified audtt precedures

Cur audit work on these entities was executed at levels of materiahty applicable to each indimdual Company ranging fram £3 5m
to £4 1m which were lower than Group matenality

We nave performed an audit of selact account balances on McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) crmited and
McCarthy & Stone (Equity Interests) Limited and desktop -eview procedures over highly immatenal subsidienies

At the Parent entity level we also tesied the consolidation process eng carned out analytical procedures ta confirm our conclusion
that there were no significant psks of materiat misstaternent of the aggregated fimancal information of the remaining companents
not subject (o audit or audi of speafied account balances

The Group audit s performed centrally and includes coverage of all mine regional offices within the Group As part of our audit we

wvisit a sarnpie af three regional offices each year on a rotauonal basis with reference ta size and complexity amaong other factors
The purpose of these wisits 15 to conduct procedures over selected controls that are in place at each regional office
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Other information
The Diectors are responsitle for the other informanion The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our audior’s report thereon

Our opimior an the financtal statements does not cover the other nformacon and, except to the extent atherwise
explaly stated «n our audrar’s report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respansibility 1s to read the other informacon and, i doing so,
consiger whether the other iInformation 1s materally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained
in the suditor otherwise appears to be materially misstated

If we Idert:fy such matenizl Inconsistencies or apparent mater:al misstatemerts, we are required (o determine whether
there 15 a material misstatement i the financal statements or @ material misstatement of the other nformation I, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a matersal misstatement of this other Informatian, we are
required to report that fact

In this cantext, matters that we are specifically required to report to you as uncorrected material misstatements of the other
informauion nclude where we conclude that

Fair, balanced and understandable - the statement given by the Drrectors that they consider the Annual Report and Finanaal ,
Statements taken as a whole 1s fa, balanced and understandabie and provides the informauion necessary for sharenolders

to assess the Group's performance, business madel and strategy, 15 materially Inconsistert with our krnowledge obtained In

the audit

Risk and Audit Commitize reporung - the section deseribing the work of the Risk and Audn Committee does nat

appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Committee

Directors’ statement of complance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the Directors’ statement requireg

under the Lisung Rules refating to the Company's comghance wath the UK Corporate Governance Code COPtaNINg Provisions

specified for review by the auditor i accordance with Listing Rule 9 8 10R(2} do not properly disclose a departure from a

relevant provisicn of the UK Corporate Governance Cade

Wwe have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Responsibilities of the Diractors

As explained more fully n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilioies, the Mirectors are respansible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfledt thal they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Dwrectors
determine 1s necessary Lo engble the preparaton of inancal staternents that are free from mateniat misstaternent, whether
due to fraud or error

In preparing the financsal statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Campany’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable matters relfated o going concern and using the gong concern basis of
accounuing unless the Crectors either intend to iquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, ar have no
reahstic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a wncle are free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opimion Reasonable assurance
5 8 high level of assurance, but s not a guarantee thatan audit congucted n accordance with 15As (UK) will always detect a
matenat misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered marenial if, iIndividually
ar in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic dedisians of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements A further description of our responsibiities for the audit of the finanaal statements 1s located on
the Financial Reporting Council’s website at wwwe.fre,org.uk/auditarsrespansibilities This descripuon forms part of our
auditor’s report

Use of our report

This report s made salely 1o the Company’s members, as a bady. m accardance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
20G6 Our audit work nas been undertaken so that we rmight state to the Company's members thase matters we are required
1o state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpase To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accegt o
assume respansibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as 2 body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opimions we have formed
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Repart on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

Inour opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prapared in accardance with the

Companias Act 2006

In cur opinton, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

+ The nformation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements
+ The Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applcable legal requirements

In the fight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the Parent Company and ther environment olatained in
the course of the audit, we have not dentified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Direcrors’ Report

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repert to you I, in our opinion

* We have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

+ Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Farent Company, or returns sdequate for our audit have not been
receved from branches not visited by us

= The Parent Company financial statements are not In agreement with the accountng recards and returns

We have nothing te report In respect of these matters

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report ifin our opinion certain disclosures of Directors’ rermureration
have not been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repor £ [a be audited 15 not -+ agreement with the accounting

records and returns
We have nothing to reportin respect of these matters

Other matters

Auditor tenure

Followsng the recommendation of the Risk and Audit Committee, we were appointed by the shareholders on 25 January 2017
10 audit the financal statements for the year ending 21 August 2017 The perioc of total uminterrupted engagement including
previous renewals and reappointments of the firm s 9 years, covering the years ending 31 August 2009 to 31 August 2017

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Risk and Audit Committee
Cur audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Risk and Audit Committee we are required to provide in
accorgdance with ISAs {UK)

@yz} ks

Gregory Culshaw ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

13 Novemnber 2017
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Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 August 2017

27 2018
Notes £m £
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 660.9 635.9
Cost of sales {530.2) {493 5)
Gross profit 130.7 1364
Other operating incosme 8 8.9 85
Administrative expenses (38.8) {44 7)
Other operating expenses (6.6} (5.1
Operating profit 94.2 951
Amartisation 2.0 {1
Exceptional adrmimistrative expenses 6 - (100)
Undertying operating profit #.2 107.2
Finance income g 1.6 27
Finance expense 10 (B30 49)
Profit before tax 6 921 929
Income tax expense n (17N (1941
Profit for the year from continuing operations and total comprehensive incorne 744 735
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 74.2 731
Non-controlhng interest 0.2 04
74.4 735
Notes * 1o 34 form part of the financa statements shown sbove M rading derwes from contnuing operations
Earnings per share
Rasic {p per share} 12 13.8 133
Diluted (p per share) 12 13.8 13.9
Adjusted measures
Underlying operating prafit 5 96.2 1072
Underlying profit before tax 6 941 105.0

s McCarthy & Stona plc




STRATEGIC REPORT CCRPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statement

of Financial Position
As at 31 August 2017

2007 016

Hetes £ £m
Assets
Nan-current assets
Goodwill 13 .7 4.7
Intangible assets 14 27.6 29.6
Praoperty, plant and eguipment 15 2.4 29
Investments in joint ventures 17 0.4 0.4
Investment properties 0.2 [+
Trade and other recervables 19 3241 327
Total non-current assets 104.4 107.5
Current assets
Inventories 18 760.4 685.8
Trade and other receivables 19 8.5 75
Cash and cash equivalents 28 40.7 19,0
Total current assets 810.6 8123
Total assets 915.0 9158
Equity and labilities
Capital and reserves.
Share capital 25 43.0 430
Share premum 26 101.6 100.8
Retained earnings 600.1 553.,5
Equity attributable to awners of the Company 744.7 £57.3
Non-controlling interests 1.0 0.8
Total equity 745.7 698.1
Current liabilitfes
Trade and other payables Fal 85.4 9B.7
UK corporation tax 6.7 8.4
Short-term borrowings 23 - 1.3
Land payables 22 a7.4 493
Total current Habilities 159.5 167.7
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 23 8.0 52,5
Deferred tax hability 20 18 1.5
Total liahilities 1693 2217
Total equity and liabilities 5.0 919.8

Notes 1 to 34 form part of the finanaal statements shown above

These finanoal statemers were approved by the Board on 13 November 2017 and signed onits behalf by

Clive Fenton Rowan Baker
Director Director
r/-\ -

] ;f ot e
[ — )
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Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 August 2017

Mon-

Share Share Retamed caaraliing Tatal
capital  premium  earmings Toeal nterest aquicy
Nates Em £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 September 2015 k] 56.4 1043 5418 0.7 5425
Profit for the year - - 3 731 04 735
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 731 734 04 735
Transactions with owners of the Company:
\ssue of ordinary shares 49 10428 {194 903 {03 500
Capital reduchon of share capital and share premium (343.00 (564) 3994 - - -
Share-based payments 3 - - 1.5 15 - 15
Share 1ssue related costs - “0) - 4.0 - (4.0
Drvidends - - (54 (54 -~ {54)
Balance at 31 August 216 43.0 100.8 5535 6973 0.8 6981
Profit for the year - -~ 742 742 0.2 744
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 742 742 0.2 744
Transactions with owners of the Campany:
Share-based payments 31 - - a9 0.3 - 0.9
Dwidends 25 - - {Z85) (28.5) - (28.5)
Share issue related costs - tax credit - o8 - 0.8 - 0.8
Balance at 31 August 2017 43.0 101.6 6001 7447 1.6 7457

Nates 1 to 34 form part of the financial statements shown above
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Consolidated

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 August 2017

2mM7 2016
Notes £ £m
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities 28 (3.8) 183
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant ang equipment (0.7} 5
Purchases of Intangible assets (0.4} (04)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.1 01
Net cash used in investing activities (1.0) {18
Financing activities
Proceeds fromissue of share capital - 860
Repaymen; of long-term: borrowings (45.0) {35.0)
Dmdends paid {28.5) {54
Net cash {used in}/ from financing activities (73.5) 45.6
Net ([decrease) / iIncrease in cash and cash equivalents {78.3) 621
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 118.0 569
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 40.7 1190

Notes 1 to 34 form part of the finangal statements shown above
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

1, Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies appled in the preparanion of these consoidated finarcal statements are set out below
These policies have been consisteptly applied 1o all the years presemted. unless otherwse stated

Basis of preparation

McCarthy & Stone plc is a Company incorporated in England and Wales under the Comparnies ACt The Group financial statements
consolidate those of the Company and its substdiaries (together referred to as the Group) and include the Group's interest in
jontly controlled entities. The Parent Company financial staternents present nformation about the Company as a separate entity
and net about the Group

The Group financial staternents have been prepared and approved by the Directors i accordance with International Financal
Reporong Standards as adoptad by the European Union {EU IFRSY) and nave been prepared under te nistoncat cost convention
as modified by financial assets and financiat labilities (including derivative mstruments) at far value through profit or loss

Going concern

The Group mee(s L5 day to-day working capital requirements through cash in hand and its bank faclities The Group's forecasts
and projections, taking into account reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to
operate within the level of 1ts current facilines After making enguines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Groug
has adequate resources ta continue in pperationat existence for the foreseeable future The Group therefore conunues to adopt
the goihg cancern basis n prepaning its financial statements Further information on the Graup's borrawings is given in note 23

Basis of consalidation

The consoldated financal staements incorporate the resuits of the Company and its subsidianes For the purposes of
consoiidanon, subsidiaries are enoties over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
sa as to obfain benefits from its acivites

whare necessary, adustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to bring the sccounting pohoes used nig line
with those used by the Group All ntra-Group transacuons, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation

Non-controling interests in subsidiaries are entfied separately from the Group's equity theremn The interests of non-controlling
shareholders may inmally e measured atfair value of st the Non-controiling IMeTests’ proporuonate share of the far vaiue of the
acquiree’s wenufiable net assets The choice of measurement s made on an dcquistiion-Dy-acgquisition basis Subsequent to
acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling mierests 1s the amount of hese tnterests atinmal recognimian plus the
non-controling interests” share of subsequent changes in equity

Goodwill

Goadwil! arising i a business combinatian 1s recogrised as an asset al the date that control 1s attained (the acquisinon date)
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlhing interest In the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest OF any} in the entity over the net of the acquisinon-date
amounts of the idenufiable assets acquired and the habilmes assumed

Gondwill is not amortised but 1s reviewed for impairment at feast annually For the purpose of iImpairment testing, goodwll

s gilocated to the Group’s cash-generating unic (CGU") expected to benefit from synergies arsing from a business combination
The CGU to which gaodwall has been attrbuted s tested for mpairment annually, o more frequently when there 1s anindication
that the CGU may be impaired Ifthe recoverable amount of the CGU s less than the carrying amount of the CGU, the imparment
loss s allocated first ta reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then o the ather assets of the unit
pra-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset inthe CGU

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured 2t fair velue of the consideration recewed of recevable and represents gmounts receivable for goods
supphed stated net of discounts, 1 ebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty

The Group recognises revenue when ali the following conditions are sausfied

= The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods

* The Group retans neither continuing managerial Involvement ta the degree usually associsted with ownership nor effective
control aver the goods sold

The amount of revenue can be measured relably

It 15 probable that the econormic benefits assocrated with the transactron will flow to the ennity

The costs incurred of 1o be incurred mn respect of the transaction can be measured rekably
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STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Significant accounting policies continued

Revenue recogmised in the Consoiidated Statemnent of Comprehensive Income out not yer invoweed 15 held on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Postbor within “Trade and other receivables’ Revenue irvoiced but nat vet recognised n the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income 1s held on the Consolidated Statermnent of Financial Posiion within *Deferred revenue’

Revenue is dassified as follows

Unit sales

Revenue represents the consideration received from the sale of leasehold mnterests in refirement apartments and freehotd
'rterests in hauses, cottages and bungalows and 1s recogrised onlegat completion Where the Group commils on compiebon
to orovide an additional cash amount above an offer given by athird-party part-exchange provider, this addinonal cash
amaunt 15 recognised as a deduction from revenue Cash incentves are considered (o be a discount from the purchase price
offered to the acquirer ard are therefore accounted for as a reduction of revenue

Frechold reversionary interests (FRIis’) and house manager flat freehold interests {‘HMFIs’)
FRIs ard HMFIs n respect of developed sites are periodically sold to third parties Reverwe arising from these sales s
recogrised only to the extent that the underlying ieasehold interest in the reprerment apartment has been contractually sold

Other operating income
Orher operating iIncome indudes Management Seivices income, net rental income, profits ansing from the disposal of
Jndeveloped land sites, VAT refunds and profits ansing from the realisation of shared equity recevables

Finance incorme
Revenue 1s recogrised as Interast accrues, using the effective interest rate method, beng the rate used Lo discount the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financizl nstrument

Cost of sales
Costs directly arinbutable to the unit sales are included within cost of sales This includes the cost of bringing the inventary
N0 use and regional marketing costs that are directly attriputable to sales, including show flat running costs and estate agent

referral fees

The gain or loss arsing on the sale of part-exchange properties are ratincluded in revenue and are recorded as g reducuon o
cost of sales as they are seen as a sales incentive

Burld-related rebates are recorded as a reduction to cost of sales

Tram 1 Seprember 2016 the Group has refined ts esumate of umr cost when uriis are sold and the cost s released intq the
Cansohdated Statement of Comprehensive Incame Cost of sales 1S now recogrised on a uni-by-umit basis, by reference to the
forecast future margin across the development Theimpact of the change in estimate on gross profit and mventory for the year
ended 37 August 2017 15 an increase of £4 1 (0 8% of cost of sales) being a 0 6% iIncrease to gross margin

Exceptional items

exceptional irems are defined as items of Income ar expenditure which, it the apinion of the Directors, are materai, non-recurnng
and unusual i nature or of such sigrficance that they require separate disclosure Fxelusion of these balances allows review of
the underiying trading position of the Group These are detaled lurther in rote 6

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownershin (o the tessee All other leases are classified as aperating leases
Rentals payable under operaung leases are charged [o Income on a straight-ine basis over the term of the relevant lease

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a stakeholder retirement benefit scheme

Areurement benefit scheme 1s a pust-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions INC @ separate
entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts Obligations for contributions to benefit schemes are
recogrised as an expense ip the Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the years dunng which services are
rendered by employees
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Significant accounting policies continued
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tox

Tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit diflers frorn net profit as reported in the
Consoidated Staternent of Comprenensive Income because it excludes items of ncome or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it fui ther excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible The Groug's hability for
current tax is calculated using rax rates that have been enacted or substantively enactec by the year end

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payabie or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabihities in the financ:al statements and the correspending tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and 1s
accounted for using the balance sheet liabilty method Deferred tax hatahties are generally recogrused for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probabile that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be unlised Such assets and liabilivies are not recogrised o the
ternporary difference arises from the mitat recogrinon of goodwill or from the mital recogmpon {other thar in a business
combination) of gther assets and habrhties in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accaunting profit

Deferrea tax kebilives are recogrsed for taxable temporary differences ansing on mvestments in subsidiaries, where the
Group 1s unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it :s probable that the termporary difference wiil not
reverse in the foreseeabte future

The carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
115 na longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 1o allow 31l or part of the asses to be recovered in the
! foreseeable future

Deferred tax s caiculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the fiability 1s settied or the asset
1s realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted by the year end Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
Conschidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, except when it retates (o 1temns charged or credited in other
comprehensive ncome, in which case the deferred tax 1s alse dealt with in other comprehensive ncome

Deferred tax assets and labrlities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax labilities and when they relate 10 iIncome taxes 'evied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
. 1o settle 115 current tax assers and liabilities on a net basis
Tangible and intangible assets

Property, plent and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised Impairment loss

Depreciatior s recogrised so as to write off the cost of assets less thew residual value over therr useful Iives, using the
. straight-ine method, on the followng bases

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3-10years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset s determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
' carrying amount of the asset and 1s recogrised N income on the transfer of the nsks and rewards of ownership

The Group has no class of tangble fixed asset that has been revalued On transimion ta IFRS the net book values recorded at
1 September 2012 have been applied and these are based on histaric cost or fair value recogrised at the date of acqursition

Intangible assets - brand

Separately acquired brands are shown at historical cost Brands have a firte useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amorusaton Amortrsanon 's calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate the cost over their useful hves, estimated at
20 years
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1. Significant accounting palicies continued
Internally-generated intangibie assets - research and development expenditure
Coses assocated with mamniaining computer soflware programmes are recognised as an expense as neurred Development
c0sts that are direcrly artributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unigue software products controlled by the
Group are recognised as iIntangible assets when all the followtng cniterta are met

= Itistechnically feasible to complete the software product so thai 1@ wilf be avalaole for use
* Managerment ntends to complece the software product and use o1 sell it
* There is an ability to use or sell the software product
* It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probabie future economic benefits
« Adeguate technical, inancal and other resources to complete the developrment and to use or sell
the software product are available
= The expenditure attnibutable to the software product duning sts development can be reliaoly measured

Directly artributable costs that are capitalised as part of the saftware product incluge the sofiware development employee
costs and an appropriate partion of relevant overheads

Otner developmeant expenditure that does not meet these Criteria 1s recognised as an expense as incurred Development
costs previously recogmsed as an expense are not “ecognised as an assel 10 a subsequent year

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortisea over (neir esiimated useful ives, which go not
exceed ten years

Development expenditure relating to software nas been capitalised and i1s detarled n note 14 to 1 he financial statements

Impairment of tongible and intangible ossets excluding goodwilf

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amourts of 15 tangsde and mtangible assers to determine
whether there is any iIndication that those assels have suffered an impairment loss I any such sndication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset 1s esumated to determine the extent of the \mpairment loss (if any) Where the asset does
nat generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates [he recoverabie amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount s the tigher of {1} far value less costs 1o sell, and (1) value I use In as5e58ing value N use, the
estimared future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current rmarket
assessments of the time value of money and the risks speafic 10 the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted

If the recoverable amourt of an asset (or CGU)Is estmated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset {or CGUY s reduced to its recoverable amount Animpairment toss 1s recogrised immediately tn profit or loss, unless the
relevantasset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the imparment Joss i treated as a revatuation decrease to the
extent that the revaluation balance 1s greater than the impairment loss

Joint ventures
The Group has a number of contractual arrangements with other parties which represent joint ventures These take the form
of agreermnent to share cantrot aver these entiles [aint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

The Group dassifies iis interests i Jaint arrangements as either jomnt operatons {If the Group has nghts to the assets, and
obligatons for the habilities, relating to an arrangement) or joint ventures {if the Group has rights only to the net assets of an
arrangermenty When making this assessment, the Group considers the structure of the arrangements, the legal form of any
separate vehides, the contractual terms of the arrangements and other facts and arcumstances

Inventories

Inventories are stated ai the lower of cast and net realisable value Cost comprises direct matenals and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred In bringing the inventories to therr present location and condition
The cost of sites in the course of construction and finished stock comprises the cost of iand purchases, which are accounted
for from the date of contract exchange, when the Group obtains the effective control of the site, building coses and attributable
canstruction overheads Net realisable value represents the esumated selling price less 2fl esumated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred n marketing, seling and distribution, completion and disposat

Part-exchange properties are stated at fair value, established by iIndependent surveyors, less a provision for costs 1o sall

Land nventanes and the assonated fand payables are recogmised in the Consohdated Statement of Financial Position from

the date of unconditional exchange of contracts Where, through deferred purchase credit terms, cost differs from the nominal
amount which will be paid in setthng the deferred purchase terms lability, the inmal cost of the land 1s discounted to fair value
The land payable 1s then increased to settlement value over the period of finanaing, with the finanang element being charged
to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as a finance cost
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterments continued

1. Significant accounting policies continued

Options purchased in respect of land are capitahsed intially at the cost of the option Regular reviews are completed for
imparment 11 the value of these options and prowisions made accordingly to reflect loss of value The mparrment reviews
consider the perind elapsed since the date of purchase of the option given that the optior contract has not been exercised at

the review date Furthermore, the mpairment reviews consider the remaining ife of the aption, taking mnte account any concerns
ovar whether the remaining time will allow successful exercise of the option The carrying cost of the option at the date of exercise
15 iIncluded within the cost of land purchased as a result of the option exercse

Expenanure on land witnout the benefit of detailed planming consent, ether through purchase of freehofd land or non-refundable
deposits paid on land purchase contracts subject to detaled planning consent, are capraiised mtially at cost Regular reviews

are completed for impairment in the value of these investrnents, and provision made to reflect any irecoverable element The
mpairment reviews consrder the existing value of the land and assess the likelihaod of achieving detaled planning consent and
the value thereof

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an orginal maturity of three months or less,

net of outstanding bank overdraits

Financial instruments
Financial assets and finanaial habilities are recognised in the Group's Cansokdated Statement of Finanaal Position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrurment

Financial assets

Al finanoal assets are normally recognised and derecognised on the date that an agreement has been entered Into where the
purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the finanaal asset within the umeframe
established by the market concerned They are iniially measured at fair value plus transactian costs, except for those firancial
assets classified as at far value through profit or foss, which are nitally measured at fair value

Financial assets are classified mito the following specified categories finanoal assets at ‘far value through profit or loss' (FVTPL),
‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘avallabie-for-sale’ (AFS) inancial assets and ‘toans and recevables’ The classification depends
on {he nature and purpose of the financial assets and 1s determmined at the time of initral recopnition The Group held no fnancial
assets classfied as held-ta-maturity or AFS during the repoerting peniods presented herem

The effective interest method 15 a method of calcutating the amortised cost of 2 debtnstrument and of allocating interest Income
over the relevant period The effecuve interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recerpts (including all
fees and points paid or recerved that form an integral part of the effectve wTterest rate, trransaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected Ife of the debt iInstrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter periad, to the net carrying amount
onnitial recognition

Income 15 recognised en an effective interest basis for debt instrument s other than those financial assets classified as at FYTPL
Classes of financial asset

Financiof ossets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held for trading or is designated as at FYTPL

A financral asset1s dassified as held for tracing if

+ It has been acquired princpally for the purpose of selling in the near term

*  Oningal recogmition it1s a part of a portfolio of dentfied financial instruments that the Groug manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking

= Itis aderivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A financial asset other than & financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FYTPL upon initial 1ecogmision if

* Such desigration ebminates or sigrificantly reduces a measurement or recognition INconsistency that would
otherwise arise

= The financiat asset forms part of a group of inancial assets or financial liabilities or both, which 1s managed and its
performance s evaluated an a fair valug basis, n accordance with the Group's documented nsk managemant or
imesiment strategy and information about the grouping is provided nternally on that basis

= ltforms part of 3 contract containing one or mare embedded dervatives and 1AS 39 Finenco! Instruments
Recognition and Measurement’ permits the entire combined contract (asset or hability) to be designated as at FVTPL
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1. Significant accounting policies continued
Financal assets at FYTPL are stated at farr value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recogrised in profit o
loss The net gan or loss recognised in profit or 10ss incorporates any divdend or mterest earned on the financial asset and
s included in the other operating inceme hne weam in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Fair value 1s
determined in the manner described in note 30

Tre Group uses dervative financal instruments to reduce expostre to interest rate mavements The Group does not ssue
or hold denvative financigl instruments for speculative purposes

Shared equity receivables

Shared equity interests anse from sales incentive schermes under which the Group acquires a contractual entitierment ta recelve
a proportion of the proceeds of sale of an aparument These nterests are normally protected by 2 legai charge over the 1elevant
apartment and/or a restrictiar on title

The value of the shared equity recesvables changes in response to an underlying variable and therefore 15 accounted for as a
derwanive The shared eguity recevables are nittally recogrised at farr value, being the esirmated future amaunt recervabie by
the Group, discounted to present value The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into account the Directors' view
of future house price movements and the expected timing of receipts The Directors revisit the future anticipated cash receipis
from the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the artucioated future receipt and the iniual faw vatue 1s
credited 1o finance income/expense

Loans and receivables

Trade recewvabies, loans and other recenvables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not guoted In an active
market are classified as loans and recevables’ Loans and recewvables are measured at amortised cost using the effecuve
interest method, fess any impairment Interest :ncome Is recognised by applying the effective iInterest rate, except for
shori-term recenvabies when the recognition of interest would be immatenal

Financial liabdities and equity
Debt and eguty instruments are classified as aither financial habilties or as equity ' accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity nstrurment 1s @y contract that evidences a residual interest it the assets of an enuty after deductng all of its latnities
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recogrised as the prareeds received, net of direcl 1Ssue costs

Financial liabilities
Financial labiities are classified as ‘other financial labiinies’

Other financial liabilities
Other finanaal hsbihties, nduding borrowings, are imtally measured at fair vaiue, net of transaction costs

Otner financal iabilities are subsequently measured at amorused <ost using the effective interest method, with Interest expense
recogrised on an effective yield basis

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial iability and of aflocating interest expense
over the relevant perigd The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts esumated future cash payments through the
expected Ife of the financal habihity, o, where approoriate, a shorter pertod, to the net carnyng amount on rnal recogrition

Land-related promissory notes
Land-refated promissory notes are treated as financial nabilities and are classified as land creditors or barrowings depending on

the substance of the contractual arrangernents

Share-based payment schemes

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the far value at the date at which they are
granted and 1s recagrised as an expense over the vesting pertod In valumg equity-settled transactions, na account 1s taken of
any non-market-based vesting conditions and no expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ulimarely vest as a result of a
fallure to sausfy a nor-market-based vesting condition

The cost of casti-settled ransacnons is measured at fair value Fair value 1s estimated initially at the grant date and at each
reporting period end thereafter until the awards are settled Market-based conditions are taken nte account when determining
fair vaiue

Further detalls regarding the schemes are set out in note 31
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Outlook for adoption of future standards {new and amended)
There have not been any new standards and amendments adopted for the first ume for the finanaial year ending 31 August 2017

At the date of approval of the finanqial statements, the following standards and interpretations which have not been applied by

the Group i the financal statements were in issue but ~ot yer effective {and in seme cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

= |FRS 9 Fnancal Instrurments’was issued in final form mcorparating the imparment, classification and measurement requirerents
In July 2014 and is scheduled to replace 1AS 38 ‘Fnencial Instrurments Recogrution and Measurement’ for the Group from

1 September 2018 The Group continues ta assess the impact and applicauon of the new standard However, we do nat currently
expect the standard to have a material impact on our reported results and financial positian

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customners’ was issued in May 2014 and amended in September 2015 This standard sets out
requirements for revenue recogmtion from confracts with customers under a five-step madel to apportion revenue against
performance obligations within a contract The Group continues to assess the impact of the standard and has identified two key
areas, part-exchange propernes and FR! revenue, where the standard will impact the tming of recognition and presentation

of balances i the financial statements

Part-exchange properties - Currently under IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ the income and costs assooared with part-exchange properues

are recognised on a net basis within cost of sales Under IFRS 15 the requirement will be to present the non-cash corsideration
receved frarm a customer within revenue measured 3t far value The subseguent sale of the property receved from the
customer n part-exchange will be accounted for as a separate contract, with the revenue and costs being recognised in other
operatng ncome and expenditure The net mpact or the Graup for FY17 (FIFRS 15 was adopted would be a decrease Lo cost of
sales of £* 0m and net decrease in other income of £10m

FRI reverue - Under the Group's current accouniing pohicy, revenue ansing from the sale of FRI is recogrised only to the extent
that the underlying leasehold mterest in the retirement apartment has been contractually sold Under the new IFRS 15 standard,
revenue would hikely be recognised at the point of sale to the third party Trus would accelerate the recognition of revenue and
elminate the deferred income balance currently held on the balance sheet

The fulbimpact of this change on revenue and marginsis sult being assessed by the Group

The above iterns will have no impact on the Group's cash flows This standard will be applicable to the Group from 1 Septernber
2018

IFRS 16 ‘Legses was published i January 2016 and 1s expected to be effective for the Group from 1 Septemger 2019 This standard
15 areplacement of the current leases standard IAS 17 Teases’ and brings significant changes to the accounting of leases by
lessees IFRS 16 requires the recogrition of a right-of-use’ asset and a corresponding lease hiability on the Balance Sheet of the
lessee In the income Statement, the existing operating lease changes, the majonty of which s currently recognised within
operating profit, will be replaced by a depreciation charge agawmst the right-of-use’ asset Additionally there will be an interest cost
inrelauon to the lease habity which will be recognised within finance costs The IASB has included an optional exernptien, for
fessees, for certain shart-term leases and leases of low-value assets, hewever, this exernpuon can anly be appled by lessees The
impact this standard will have on the Group continues to be assessed However, we do not currently expect the standard to have
amatenal impact on our reported results and financal position

Amendments ta IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows'was 1ssued in january 2016 and will be applicable to the Group from 1 September
2017 The Amendment requires enhanced disclosures of changes in financing habilities

Amendments to IFRS 11 ‘Acquisitions of interests i joint Qperations”

Amendments to JAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and 1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’

Amendmenrts ta 1AS 1 ‘Presentction of Financial Statements’

Amendments to IAS 27 ‘Equity Method in Separate Ananaal Staterents’

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Safe of Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associote of joint Venture”

Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments’

Annualimprovernents 10 IFRS 2012 - 2014 Cycle”

The potential impact of the above standards and interpretatons s stili being assessed by the Group

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the Diractors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions aboul the carrying amounts of assets and llabiiiiies that are not readily apparent from other sources
The estimates and associated assumptlions are based on historical experence and other factors that are considered to be relevant
Actual results may differ from these esumates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 0n 2n ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period In which the estimate 1s revised If the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
penods if the revision affects both current and future periods

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

No critical judgments have been made in the process of apphying the Group's accounting policies that have a matenal effect on the
amounts recognised In the financial statements
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions the Group makes about the future, and other mejor sources of estimation uncertamnty at the
and of the reporting perad, that nave a significant nsk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assers
and hambures at the year end and within the next financial year

Fair volue of shared equity receivables
Sharec equity recavables are recognised at the fair value of future anucipated cash receipts that takes nto account the
Directors’ view of an appropriate discount rate, a new bulld prerum, future house price movements and the expecred

uiming of receipls

Shared equity receivables are reviewed at each reporting date using a variety of esumates that anucipate future cash flows
from the assets Further information regarding the assumphions and sensitvity effects of a reasonable possible change can
be seen within note 30

Cost capitalisation of overheads

Imventary ncludes a proporuon of design, pracurement, construction, health & safety, commercial and planming costs
Costs associated with these funcuens are reviewed oy management to attribute those costs relaning directly 1o the cost
of the developments to mventary and those that relate to general business overheads to expenses The assumptions
used are reviewed zrnually by the function heads before being proposed to the Risk and Audrt Carmmittee

Cost capitabsation invelves estimates af the proporton of costs that are directly attrbutabie to sites The key source of
estrnation uncertainty in this area relates to the percentage of ume spent by our regions on directly attributable sie
aclivities The percentage of their tme whith s capitalised ranges between 70-93% for the various functions Overhead
costs capitabsed at 31 August 2017 amount to £23 2m {2016 £257m)

Change of estimate

From 1 September 2016, the Group refined its estimate of uni cost wher urits are sold and the cosris released to the
Consaohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income Cost of sales 1s now recognised on a unit-by-unit basis, by reference to the
forecast future margin across the developrmenl The impact of the change in estimate on gross profit and mventory for the year
erded 3% August 2017 1s an increase of £4 1m (0 8% of cost of sales)

4. Revenue

Conymnying Operarons.

Yearended 31 August
2017 2016
£m £m
Unit sales 631.8 608,2
FRI revanue 294 277
660.9 6359

Allunit sales revenue arose from the sale of properries and is atiributable to continuing aperations All revenue was generated
within the UK No individual customer s significant to the Group's revenue in any period All revenue 1s explamed within note 1

Proceeds received on the disposal of part-exchange properties, which are not included in revenue, were £116m (2016 £nil)
These are recogrised on a net basis within cost of sales on the basis that they are incidental to the main revenue-generating
achvities of the Group The net profit on dispesal of these properties was £0.7m (2016 £nil)

5. Segmental analysis

IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ establishes standards for reporung information about operating segments and related disclasures,
products and services, geographic areas and major customers Operating segments are components of an enterprise about
which separate financial Information s available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decsion-maker in deaiding
how to allocate resources and in assessing performance

The Group canducts its acivities through a single operating segment Consequently. no detailed segrment nformation has
been presented

None of the Group’s customers represented more than 10% of the Group's revenue generated from the bulding of rerirement
apartments for any reporting period presented nerein
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6. Profit before tax
Profit before tax has been armved at after charging/crediing)

Continung operations
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016
Notes £m £m
Amartisation of ntangibles 14 2.4 25
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 14 11
Operating lease rental expense 27
Land and buldings 14 09
Plant and machinery 2.5 23
Cost of inventories recogmised as an expense 4571 4360
Staff costs 7 92.6 790
Change In fair value of denvatives - 03
Share-based payments charge to profit and loss N 0.9 1.5
Movement in inventory provision {nduding part-exchange properties) 1.2 (0.3)

Reconciliation to underlying operating profit and profit before tax
The following tables present a reconaliauon between the statutary profit measures disciosed on the Consolidated Statement
of Cormprehensive Income and the underlying measures used by the Board to appt aise performance

Exceptional tems are items which, due o their one-off, non-trading and non-recurring nature, have been separately classified
by the Directors i order to draw them to the atrention of the reader

Adjusted costitems are itemns which are materiat and are presented separately within the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income The Directors are of the opinion that the separate presentation of these items prowides helpful
information about the Group's underlying business performance Amortisation of brand has been adjusted N order to reconcite
the underlying operaung profit and underlying profit before tax given the Directors do not believe these costs reflect the
underlying trading of the business

Exceptionals

Excephionat Ag)usted cost
Administrauve  Amertisabon
Staturory costs ot brang Underiying
Year ended 31 August 2017 Notes. £m Em £m Em
Operating prafit 94.2 - 2.0 96.2
Finance income 9 1.6 - - 16
Finance expense 10 {3.7) - - 3.7
Profit before tax 921 - 2.0 941
incorme tax expense M7n - (0.4} {18.1}
Profit for the year from continuing operations and totak
comprehensive income 4.4 - 1.6 76.0
Earnings per share
8asic (p per share) 13.8 - 0.4 14.2
Ciluted (p per share) 138 - 0.4 14.2
Excepthonal Adjusted cost
Admiusiratve Amortisation
Statutory costs afbrand Underhying
Year ended 37 AUEUSt 2016 Notes £m £m £im £m
Operating profit 95.1 100 21 107.2
Finance income g 27 - - 27
Finance expense 10 4.9 - - {4 9)
Profit before tax 92.9 0.0 21 1050
Income tax expense (194) 7 49 (20.5)
Profit for the year from continuing operations and total
comprehensive ncome 735 9.3 17 84.5
Earnings per share
Basic (p per share) 139 1.8 04 161
Ciluted (p per share) 13.9 18 0.4 161

The exceptionat administrative costs in 2016 primarily relate to the transacuon fees and other costs of hsting (£8 5m) Other rosts
recognised within exceptionals relate to redundancy and restructuring costs (£0 9m), Management Incentive Plan payments
{£0 4rm) and refinancing and other costs (£0 2m)
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6. Profit befare tax continued

Auditor’s remuneration
Continumg operatians

Year ended 31 August

2017 2016
£m Em
Fees payable to the Group's auditor
Annual audit 0.2 0.2
Transaction related audit and advisory services - 07
0.2 09
There were no other non-audit fees payable to the Grouo's auditor in the year
Audit fees in relation to joint ventures audited by the Group's auditor were £3,000 (2016 £3,000)
7. Staff costs
staff costs for the year include Directors’ emoluments, which are detailed pelow
Cantinuing operations
Year ended 31 August
a0m7 2016
£m £m
Wages and salanes 0.4 67,4
Social security costs 8.0 FAl
Cther pansion costs 2.6 21
Share-based payments 0.9 1.5
Terrmination payments 0.7 09
92.6 79.0
The average number of persars, nduding Executive Directors, employed by the Group during the year was as follows
Continuing aperations
Year ended 31 August
207 e
MNumber Number
Office management and staff 902 %00
Heouse managers 1,024 827
Construction staff 219 241
2,145 1,968
Staff costs include an average of 823 persons employed duning the year from YLMS (2016 679), a 50% owned subsidiary held
by the Group
AL 31 August 2017 the Group employed 2,264 people (2016 2,094}
Directors’ emoluments
Amounts recogmsed n respect of Directors’ emoluments
Continuing operations
Year ended 31 August
2017 2016
Em £m
Wages and salanes 1.7 1.5
Social security costs 0.2 0.2
Share-based payments 6.3 0.6
QOther pension costs’ 0.2 0.2
2.4 25
Inclsees salary supplemerts ir | eu of pensior
The emaluments of the highest paid Directar was £10m (2016 £6 9m), induding pensicn contribunons of nil 2016 N}
The number of Direciors in the Caompany pension plan was two (2016 two)
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8. Other operating income

Contlnuing operations.
Year ended 31 Angust

217 2016

Em £m

Net rentalincomg 0.3 0.6
Other income 77 59
Non-core business revenue 0.9 21

Land sales profit / {loss} - a1y
3.9 85

QOther income anses on the services provided by Group subsidianes to Manage certaim developments Non-core business
revenue relates to Gther income such as cusiomer exiras

9. Finance income

Continuing operations

Year ended 31 August
2017 2018
' £m Eewr
Change in fair vzlue of shared equity recewvables 1.5 25
Interest income received 01 02

. 1.6 2.7

10. Finance expense Canthuoing operations
year ended 31 August

2017 2016
£m £m
Loans and cverdraft fees 341 36
Promissary note interest and fees a1 0.5
Amartisation of refinancng 1ssue costs 0.5 0s
Fair value movement on Interest rate cap - 0.3
3.7 4.9
11, Tax
7 2M6
Nates £m £m
Carparation tax chacges
Current year 17.7 18.6
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.3) o4
' Deferredtax charges
| Current year ¢ 0.3 1.2
i
12.7 19.4
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11. Tax continued
The tax charge for each year can be reconciled to tne profit per the Consolidated Statement of Comprenensive Incormne as follows

2017 e

£m £m

Profit before tax on continuing operations 221 929
Tax charge at the UK carporation tax rate of 19.58% (2016. 20.00%) 18.0 186

Tax effect of

Expenses that are not deductible in determiming taxable profit 0.1 15
Income not taxable in determining taxable profit {0.1) [(}A}]
Adjustments in respect of previous perods {0.3) 04)
Share aptions timing difference 0.2 -
Other reconciling iterms {0.2) 02
Tax charge for the year 7.7 194

Repuctions In the rate of corporation tax to 19% and 18% from 1 April 2017 and 1 Aprit 2020 were substantiaily enacted

on 18 November 2015 Afurther reductior @ the corporation tax main rate from 1 Apnl 2020 1o 17% was fully enacted on

15 September 2016 The deferred tax assets and labilines at 31 August 2017 have been calculated based on the appropriate
rate at which the asset/habilRy wilt unwing

12. Earnings per share
Basic earrings per share Is calculated as the profit for the financial penod attributable to shareholders of the Company divided

by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the period The actual weighted average number of ordinary shares
during the full ')_Irear ended 31 August 2017 was 537 3m for the basic and 537 6m for the diluted calcuiatons, gving a statutory
earnings per share for the year ended 31 August 2017 of 13 8p for basic and 13 8p for diluted

m7 2016
Profit attnbutable to shareholders (Em} 74.2 731
Weighted average no of shares {m) 537.3 5256
Basic earnings per share {p} 13.8 139

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average numier of shares :n 1ssue 15 adjusted to assume the conversion of alf
potenually dilutive ordinary shares At 31 August 2017, the Company had two categories of potentaily cilutive ordinary shares
3 8m il cost share opuons under the LTIP and 4 1rn 167 4p share options under the Sharesave plan

A calculation s done to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value based onr the aggregate of
the exercise price of each share pption and the fair value of future services to be supplied to the Group, which 1s the unamor trsed
share-based pa:yments charge The difference between the number of shares that coul have been acguired at fair value and the
total number of aptions is used in the diluted earmings per share calculation

2017 016
Profit used to deterrmine diluted EPS (£m) 74.2 731
Weighted average number of shares {m) 5373 5256
Adjustments for
Share aptions - LTIP {rm) 0.3 03
Shares used to determine diluted EPS (m} 537.6 5255
Diluted earnings per share (p) 13.8 13.5
13. Goodwill
£m
Caost
At 1 Septernber 2015 and 31 August 2016 and 2017 a7
Carrying amount
At 1 Septemnber 2015 and 31 August 2016 and 2017 .7

Neo impairment lossas have been recognised in any of the reporting per.ods presented herein
Goodwill arose as a result of an acquisition in 2009 of the assets and habilives of Monarch Reaiisations 1 plc (in hguidanon)

As the goodwill relates to the business as a whale, it has not been allocated to a specific CGU For key assumptions in detesrmining
recoverable amounts in goodwall impairment testing, refer to note 16
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14. Intangible assets

Brand Software Total
Em Em Em

Cost
At 1 September 2015 414 39 45.3
Additions - 04 02
At 31 August 2016 414 43 45,7
Additions - 04 0.4
At 31 August 2017 1.4 47 486.1
Amortisation
At 1 Septernber 2015 (132 0.4) {136)
Charge for the year 2.1 {0.4) (2 5)
At 31 August 2016 153) {08) 161}
Charge for the year (20) 04 24
At 31 August 2617 {17.3) 1.2) {18.5)
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2016 261 35 296
At 31 August 2017 241 3.5 27.6

srand assets represent the McCarthy & Stone brand name purchased as part of the business combination in 2009
Brand assets have 11 years and 7 months of usefut life remaining

All amortisation charged 1s recognised i adrninistrative expenses ' the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income

15. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures,
fitnngs and
equipment Total
£m £m

Cost
At 1 September 2015 6.0 6.0
Additions 1.5 15
Disposals {c.3) (0.3}
At 31 August 2076 7.2 72
Additions a7 0.7
Disposals Q.1 {0.1}
At 31 August 2017 7.8 7.8
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 September 2015 3.4 {3.4)
Charge for the year {11} 1.y
Ebminated on disposals 0.2 02
At 31 August 2016 4.3) 4.3)
Charge for the year an an
Elminated on disposals - -
At 31 August 2017 {5.4) (5.4)
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2016 29 28
At 31 August 2017 2.4 24
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16. Impairment testing

During the pariods reparted in the finanaal statements, no mparments have peen recogrised against the Group's assets
For each reported pened, manggerrent have performed ar impairment review of gocdwill, being an ingefinitely lived asset
The Group only has one CGU, beng the McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Limited’s business, which was acquired in 2009

The key assumguens for the value In use calculations are those regat ding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
10 earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortsation (EBITDA} used as a proxy of free cash fiows beyond the budgeted
years as well as the level of capital expendaure required to ramntain the existing business into the future These assumptions

are reviewed and revised annually in light of current economic conditions and the future outiook for the business Management
estimates discount rates Lsing ore-[ax rates that reflect current market assessments of the ime value of money and the risks
spedific to the busness, rates used for 2017 are 70% (2016 8 4%)

The forecast peried employed In the impairment assessment was three years lollowed by an assessment of cash flows and
growth inte perpetuity The growth rates used are based on management's assessment of the cash flaw forecasts aver the
medium term Due o the headroom within the calculation no further growth has been assumed within the perpetuity calculation
These are based on conservative estimates of the Group’'s abiity to participate in the growth expected in the :noustry Changes in
selling prices and direct costs are based on past pract<es and expectations of future changes in the market

The value of goodwill recagnised in the financiaf statements has been compared o the derived value In use with no mpairment
charges ansing The Group has conoucted a sensiivity analysis on the key assumptions which are materal 1o the imparment
assessment incluging the discount rate, the casn flow projections and the terrminal growth rate ard concluded no material
sensitvity exists In these calculations

No imparrment charges were recorded or ilerns of property, plant and equipment throughout the period covered by these
financial statements

17. Iwvestment in joint ventures

The Group has a 50% ownership interest . Kindle Housing Lirmited, which manages affordaole nousing Kindle Housing Limied
has 100% ownership interest of ordinary shares in each of Kindle Housing (Worthing) Limited, Kindle Housing (Christchurch)
Limited and Kindle Housing (Exeter) Limited, which rent affordable housing to tocal key worker employees As a resuh the Group
alse has a 50% ownership interest i these comparies, all of which are registered in England arid Wales

The Group accounts for itsnterests in these companiies using the equity method of accounting

The share of the assets, labilues, ncome and expenses of the jointly controlled entities 1s not materiat

18, Inventories

2017 2016

£m £m

Land held for development 148.6 236.5
Srtes in the course of canstruction 341.2 2010
Firushed stock 238.7 2483
Part-exchange properties 319 -
760.4 685.8

Days in iInventory amounted to 582 days in 2017 {2016 574 days)

loventory days are calculated by taking year end inventory (excluding part-exchange properues) oivided by cost of inventories
recoginised as an expense

19, Trade and other receivables

2017 2016
£m Em

Trade and other receivables due in less than one year
Trade recewables 21 15
Other debtors and prepayments 74 60
9.5 75
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19. Trade and other receivables continued

2017 2016
£m £mn

Trade and other receivables due in greater than one year
Secured mortgages 3.2 34
Shared equity recewables 289 293
32. 327

Trade recewables and secured mortgages disclosed apove are classified as loans and recervables and are measured at
amortised cost

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and cther receivables and non-current receivables approximates
their farr value

20. Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax habilities recognised by the Group

Accelermedtax  Other temporary Unredieved

depreciation differences tax losses Total

£m Em £m Em
At 1 September 2015 - 3 - {0.3}
Income statement charge - 12 - 2}
At 31 August 2016 - (15 - {15)
mcome statement charge - 0.3 - 03)
At 31 August 2017 - {1.B} - {1.8)

Deferred wax assets are represented by positive values and deferred tax habiliues are represented by negative values in
the table above

Deferred tax assets of £0 1m mrrelation to capital losses carned forward were not recognised as there s uncertainly as
tawhether these losses could be utihsed by the Group prior to expiry {2016 £01m) These losses have no expiry date

21. Trade and other payables 2017 2016

£m £m

Trade payables 227 268
QOther taxes and social security costs 19 19
Accrued expenses 426 514
Other creditors and deferred income 18.2 186
254 98,7

Trade payables and accrued expenses pnncipally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongomng casts
The average credit penod taken for trade purchases was 20 days dunng 2017 (2016 21 days) No matenal interest costs have
been incurreg in retation to such payables The Group policy 1S to ensure that payabites are paid within the pre-agreed credit
terms and to avoid incurrng penaltes and/or Interest an late payrments Other creditors indude sales taxes, property taxes,
sodial security and employment taxes due to local tax authornties The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade
payables approxmates therr far value

No trade payabies are purchased on extended payment terms

22. Land payables 2017 26

£m Em
Land payahles 67.4 49.3

tand payables relate to payment due in respect of land which has been purchased under an unconditional contract
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23, Borrowings

. 2017 206

Short-term borrowings £m Em

Promissory notes - 11.3

. 017 2016

Long-term borrowings £m Em

Loans 10.0 550
Unamortised 1ssua osts (2.0} (2.5}

8.0 52.5

Ouistanding at 31 August

2017 2016
Maturity £m £m
Revolving Credit Facility May 2021 10.0 55.0

The Group has in place a £200m revohang credit faciity (RCF) imualy with a five-year term, maturing December 2079 In May 2076,
an amendment was made (e the RCF agreement to improve the commeraai terms and exiend the faolity's marunty date from
19 Decermnber 2019 1o 23 May 2021

The narminal yerest rate of the £200m RCF s 1, 3 or 6 manth LIBOR + 1.6% (2016 1, 3 or & month LIBOR + 1.6%) depending on
rhe length of the drawdown As at 31 August 2017, £10m (2016 £55m) was drawn The RCF 1s secured by a floating charge over
the assers of McCarthy & Stone ple, McCarthy & Stane Retirernent Lifestyles Limited, McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Lirmited,
weCarthy & Stone (Exira Care Lving} Limited and McCarthy & Store Total Care Management Limned

24, Net cash 2017 2018
£m Em
Loans 8.0 63.7
Add back unamortised 1ssue costs 2.0 2.5
Cash and cash equivalents {40.7} {119.0)
Net cash (30.7} {52.8)
Add back land-related promissory notes - 113)
Net cash excluding land-related promisscry notes {30.7) 64.1)

Net cash 1s a non-GAAP measure and s calculated as cash and cash equivalents less long-term and short-term borrowsngs
{excluding unamortsed debt 155ue costs and lfand-related promussory notes)

25. Share capital
The Company has one class of ardinary shares which carry ne right to fixed income  There 1s no fimit to authorsed share capital

. 2017 2016
Allotted and issued ordinary shares £000 £'000
8p each fully paid, 537,329,434 ordinary shares (2016. 537,314,069} 42,986 42,985

- 2007 2016
Allotment of shares during the year Number 000 Number D00
At 1 September 537,314 1,905,550
Issuance of new shares in relation to the Management Incentive Plan - 43,707
Consohdation of share capital - (1,461,943
Issuance of new shares in relation to pnmary proceeds from the IPQ - 50,000
Issuance to satisfy early exercises under Sharesave plan 15 -
At 31 August 537.329 537.314

Issuance of new shares in relation to Sharesave {'SAYE') plan

During the year 15,365 ardinary shares were 1ssued to satisfy the early exerase of options under our December 2015 SAYF plan
by seven "good leaver” employees  The shares were all issued at 167 4p each, being the exercise price of the SAYE options granted
on 10 December 2015
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25. Share capital continued

Dividends on equity shares

The interim dvidend of 1 80 (2076 1 0p) was approved by the Board on 4 Apnl 2017 and paid on 9 june 2017 1o all ordinary
shareholders on the register of members at the close of business on Friday 28 April 2017 The ex-dividend date was 27 April 2017
The final dnvidend proposed by the Board 1s 3 6p {2018 3 5p) per share resuliing In a total ordinary drdend for the year of 5 4p
{2016 4 5p) kwilf be paid on 1 February 2018 to those shareholders who are o the register at 5 Janual y 2078 subject w0 approval
at the Company's Annual Generai Meating The ex-dividend date s 4 [anuary 2018 These financial statements do not reflect the
final dwidend payment

26. Share premium reserve

2017 2016
£m £m
Share premium 101.6 100 8

The share premum reserve represents the consider ation that has been recewved in excess of the nominal vafue of shares In ssue
Mavements in share premium are presented within the Consolidated Statement of Changes n Equity

27, Operating lease arrangements

017 208
Ern &m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense during the year 39 32

At year end the Group had outstanding commmiments for future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operanng
leases, which fall due as follows

2017 2018

Em Em

Within one year 4.3 39
in the secand te fifth years wclusive 69 87
After five years 11 28
o) ding i for future minimum [ease payments 12.3 154

Operaung lease payments typically represant rentals payable by the Group for its office properties and cars Rent reviews and
break clauses apply to leased property agreements

28, Notes to the cash flow statement 2017 2016
Notes Em £m
Profit for the financial year 74.4 735
Adjustments for
Income tax expanie 1" 177 184
Amortisation of intangtbles 14 2.4 25
Share ophon charge N 0.9 15
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 14 1.1
Interest expense 10 37 45
Interest income 9 {1.6) 27
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 98.6 100.2
Decrease in trade and ather recervables a1 22
(Increase} in Inventories (85.9) {39.5)
Increase in trade and other payables 5.4 375
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 18.2 40.4
Interest received 0.1 0.2
Interest paid {2.9) [Z5H
Income taxes paid {19.2} 182
Cash (used) / generated by operations (3.8} 183
Net cash (outflow) / Inflow from operating activities (3.8) 183
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 40.7 119.0
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23. Notes to the cash flow statement continued
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term bank deposits with en eriginal matunity of three
months or less, net of puistanding bank averdrafts The carrying amount of cash énd cash equivalents approximates far value

The increase 10 INventores comprises movements In inventaries {including part-exchange properues), offset ty the repayment
of promissory notes

The increase in trade and other payables ncludes the movernent it land payables

29, Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates a stakeholder defined contribution retirement berefit scheme which is open e all employees

Other than amounts that are deducted from employees’ remuneration and accrued pending payrment 1o the benefit scheme,
no further abligations fall or the Group as the assets of these arrangements are held and managed by third parties entirely
separate from the Group

The benefit scheme charge for the year represents contr butions payable to the benefit scheme and amounted 6 £2 6m for
fhe year ended 31 August 2017 {2016 £2 1m) Unpaid contributions amounted to £0 3m as at 31 August 2017 (2016 £0 Zm)

30, Financial risk management
The Group's firencozl instruments comprise casn, bank loans and averdrafts, trade receivables, ather financal assets and trade

and cther payables

Categories of financial instruments 2017 ws
£m £m
Financial assets
Firancial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Shared equity recevables 2839 293
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 40.7 119.0
Trade and other receivables 2.7 22
72.3 1505
Financial liabifitles
Amortised cost
Trade and other payables 772 920
Land payahles 67.4 493
Loans 8.0 525
Land-refated promissory nates - 13
152.6 2051

Capital risk management

The Group manages Its capital {being debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity} to ensure entities within the Group have 3
strong capital base m order to continue as going concerns, to maintain investor and credror confidence and to provide a basis
for the fiture development of the business while maximising the return to stakeholders

The revolving credit facility imposes financial covenants, which 1s normal for such agreements, ail of which the Group 1s compliant
with The Group manages a robust mternal forecasting and review process to ensure it operates within these capital
requirements

The Group does not routinely make additional 1ssues of capital, other than for the purpose of raising finance for the management
of the cost of capital of the Group or to fund significant developments designed to grow value in the future

Share-based payment schemes allow senior employees of the Group to participate in the ownership of the Group i order to
ensure the semor emplayees are focused on growing the value of the Group to achieve the aims of all shareholders

Financial risk management

The Group's Ainance function 15 responsible for all aspects of corporate treasury It co-ordinates access o finanaal markets
ard moniors and manages the financal risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal reports which analyse
exposures by degree and magnitude The risks reviewed nclude market risk Including currency risk, fair value nterest rate risk
and price risk), credit nsk, hauidity nsk and cash flow interest rate nisk

The Board is responsible for managng these risks and the policies adopted are as set out on the next pages
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30. Financial risk management continued

Housing market risk management

The Group's activities expase It primarily [o macroeconomic nisks such as deflaton and the cyclical nature of UK property prices
A deterioration m the economic outlook could hiave a sigmificant impact on the Group's financial performance and the Group has
the following procedures which mitigate s market-related operational risk

» The Group tIosely monitors industry indicators and assesses the potential impact of different economic scenarios

« Decsions o allocate new capital toland ane build are managed centrally through the Group Investment Committee,
membership of which includes the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financiat Officer, the Chief Operating Cfficer and the
Land & Planning Director

«  The Group aums to mantan & national and product spread of devalopments to ensure that +1s not rekant on one partcular
{ocation, development or product

» The Group undertakes a weekly review of sales, reservations and incentives at regronal and Group level

The vaiue of the Group's house price linked financial assets 15 sensttve 10 UK house prices since the amount repayable s
dependent upon the market price of the property to which the asset is inked At 31 August 2017 1 UK house prices were 5%
lower for a ane-year period and all other variables were held constant, the Group's house price nked financial assets would
decrease in value, excluding the effects of tax, by £1 1m (2016 £1 1m) with a corresponding reduction in both the result for the
year and equity

Credit risk management

Creghi nsk refers (o the nisk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial foss to the Graup
The Group has a low exposure to credit risk due to the nature and legal framewark of the UK housing industry As stated in the
Group's accourtting policy for revenue recognit:on, 3 sake 1s only recogmised upon legal completion and this is accomparied by
full cash receipt i wirtuaity all cases

in certain arcumstances the Group offers sales incentives resulting in a long-term debt being recognised under which the Group
will receve 3 proportion of the resale proceeds of a property The Group's equity share s pratecied by a registered entry on the
title and usualiy represents the first nterest in the property Areduction in property values feads to an increase in the credit risk
of the Group In respect of such sales

The credit risk relating to shared equny recervables 1s deemed immaterial 3s the value 1S recoverad though subsequent disposal
of the refated asset As a result, management consider the credit guality of these receivables to be good in respect of the amounts
outstanding, resulting in low credit risk Expasure to house price sensitvity 15 built into the fair value calcutation

Trade receivables consist of alarge number of customers, spread acoss different regions Ongoing credit evaiuation is performed
on the financal condrtion of rade recavables

The Group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure ta any single counterparty or group of counterparties having sirmlar
characterisucs The Group defines caunterpartes as having similar characterstics if they are related entites There is no material
concentration of credit sk in respect of one iIndmidual customer

The carmying amount recarded far finanaial assets w the financal statements s net of impairment losses and represents the
Group’'s maximum exposure ta credit sk No guarantees have been given in respect to third parties In addition, for contracted
rental agreements deposits or advances may be held to mitigate risk The Group also holds legal recourse and can exercise its
right to recaver rental equipment from non-performing customers

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficuity iIn meeting obligations associated with financial liatuiities The
Groug's strategy In relaton to managing hquidity risk s to ensure that the Group has sufficent cash flow fiquid funds to meet
allits potentiat liabitbies as they fall due The Group produces cash ow forecasts to monitor the expected requirernents of the
Group agamst the avalable faclites The principal risks with these cash flows relate (o achewing rhe level of sales volurnes and
prices m hine with current forecast
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30. Financial risk management continued
The maturiy of the financal habilives of the Group at 31 August 2016 and 2017 are as follows

2016

Carrying Contractual

value cash Maws. Within 1 year 2-5years S+years

£m E£m £m £m £m

Loans 55.0 64.7 20 627 -
Gther financial labilities carrying interest 11.3 114 114 - -
Finanaal labibties carrying no interest 141.3 1413 1413 - -
Total 207.6 2174 154,7 62.7 -

2047
Carrying Contractual

valua cagh Within 1 year 2-Syears S+ ywars

Em £m Eon £m £m

Loans 10.0 15.2 14 13.8 -
Financial iabibties carrying no interest 144.6 144.6 144.6 - -
Total 154.6 159.8 146.0 13.8 -

Other financial habikuies carrying interest are promissory nates, which attract availabsiity and discount fees Finanaial habilities
CETyng No INterest are trade and other payables and land payables The uming and amount of future cash flows given i the
table above 1s based on the year end position

Interest rate risk management
Interest rate nsk reflects the Group's exposura 1o fluctualons Lo interest rates N the market The risk arses because the Group's
RCF 15 subect 1o floating interest rates based on LIBOR

i the year ended 37 August 2017, 1f UK interest rates had been 0 5% higher or lower, as thes 1s a reasonably possible change, and
all sther vanances were held constant, the Group's pre-tax profit would decrease/increase by £0 5m {2016 £0 5m} Calculations
have been based on borrowing values at each month end

Fair vaiue of financial instruments
Vajuation techniques and assumptions appfied for the purposes of measuring fuir value

Fair value of financial instrurments carried at amortised cost
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial habihtres recorded at amorhsed cost in the
finanoial statements approxirnate their far values

Bank and other loans
Fair value 15 calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest flows

interest rate swaps
At each pericd end, the Directors appont a valuer to perform an external valuaticn of the fair value of each interest rate swap or

cap outstanding

Valuation of Levels 1, 2 and 3 financial assets and liabilities

*  The fair values of finandal assets and financal atltes with standard terms and condions and traded an actve hguad
markers are determined with reference to quoted market prices (includes isted redeemable nates, ifls of exchange,
debentures and perpetual notes)

« The far values of other financal assets and financial liabilities (excuding dervative Instruments) are determined N accordance
with generally accepted prioing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market
wransactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments

* The fair values of denvative Instruments are calculated ysing quoted prices Where such prices are not available, a discounted
cash flow analysis is performed using the apphcable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optonal
dernatives, and opton pricng models for opuonal dervatives Foregn currency farward contracts are measured using quoted
forward exchange 1 ates and yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching maturines of the contracts interest rate
swaps are measured 3t the present value of future cash flows esumated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves
derved from guoted interest rates
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30. Financial risk management continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The following table provides an analysis of financial Instruments that are measurea subseguent to nical recognition
at far value The grouping mic Levels 1 to 3 1s based on the degree to which thair fair value 15 observable

« Level 1 far value measurements are those derived from quoted prices {unadjusted)in acuive markets for identical
assets ar habhues

+  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived fram nbuts other than quoted prices ncluded within Levei 1
that are observable for the asset or habiity, erther directly {| e as prices) ar ndirectly (| e derved fram prices)

» Level 3 far value measurements are those derved from valuation techmaues that include nputs for the asset of
hability that are rot based on observable market data (unobservable iInputs}

The finanaal mstoumergs held by the Group that are measured at fair value ol relate to financal assets measured at faw
value through grofit and loss {FVTPL) using methods associated with Level 3 The sensitivities are not materiai on assers
held at far value

2016
Level1 Levei2 Level 3 Tatal
£m Em m E£m
Financial assets at F¥TPL
Shared equity recevables - - 25.3 29.3
Total financial assets designated at FVTPL - - 29.3 293
2017
Lewett tevel2 iwweh3 Total
Em £m £m £m
Financial assets at FVTPL
Shared equity recewvables - - 28.9 28.9
Tetal financial assets designated at FVTPL - - 2.9 289

There were no transfers petween Levels 1, 2 or 3 in the year

Finanaaf assets comprise shared equity loans secured by way of a charge on the property and an interest raie cap

Financial assets are recorged at fair value, being the estimated amount receivabie by the Group, giscounted to present day values

For shared equity receivables the fair value of future anticpated cash receipts takes nto account the Directors' views of an
appropriate discount rate, a new buid prermiurn, future house price movements and the expectad timing of receipts These

assumptions cover 3 variety of different schemes and the range of assumpuions used are stated below The assumpuions are

reviewed at each period eng

Assumptions 2017 2006
Discount rate 3.8t044% 47t05.1%
New build premium 5% 5%
House price inflation 0Ota 5.75% Dto 40%
Timing of receipt Stoldyrs 5Sto12yrs
2017 2m7

increwse Detrease

assymptions azsumptions

Sensitivity-effect on value of other financial assets (less)/more

by 1% 71 year by 19/ 1yRar
£m £m

Discount rate (2.3) 2.6
House price inflation 23 {2
Turming of receipt (0.4) 0.4

The far value of the shared equity receivable 15 based on the external avallable data The sensitvity-effect of @ 1% change
is representative of our best estimate of a reasenably possible change

The Direcrors review the anuiapated future cash receipts from the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the

antiapated future receipt and the wutal far value 15 credied o finance incotme
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30. Financial risk management continued

Az nibal recogniton, the fair values of the assets are calculated using a discount rate appropriate ra the class of assets that
reflects market conditions at the date of entering into the transactien The Directors consider at the end of each reparting penod
whether the mitial market discount rate still reflects up to date market conditicns If a revision s required, the fan values of the
assets are re-measurad at the present value of the revised future cash flows using this revised discaunt rate The difference
between these values and the carrying values of the assets 15 recorded aganst the carrying value of the assets and recogrnised
girectiy m the Consobated Staterment of Comprehensive Income

The following tables present the changes in Level 3 instruments for the years ended 31 August 2016 and 2017

2016

Shared

equity Interest
recevables rate cap Total
Em £m
Opening balance 28,0 03 283
Additions 05 - 05
Dispasals (17} - 7
Revaluation gains or (losses) recegmised 1n the Income statement 25 03y 2.2
Closing balance 293 - 29.3
2m7
Sharad
equity nterast
receivables rate cap Total
Em £m £m
Opening balance 29.3 - 29.3
Additions 0.8 - 0.8
Disposals 2.7 - (2.7}
Reviluation gains recognised i the income statement 1.5 - 1.5
Closing balance 28.9 - 28.9
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31. Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment plans
The Group operates a number of share-hased payment schemes as set out befow

Long Term incentive Plan {'LTIP)

The Group's LTIP 1s open to key managemert at the discrenion of the Board Awards under the scheme are granted in the form

of mi-priced share options LTIP awards will normally vest, and LTIP Qpuens become exercisable, on the third anmversary of the
date of the grant of the LTIP award to the extent that any applicable perfarmance conditions have been satsfied LTIP options

will remain exercisable for ten years after the date of the grant Awards are 1o be sertled by the issue of new shares or acquisiton
of shares :n the market The performance conditions for the 2016 and 2017 LTIP grants are garnings per share (EPS), comparative
total shareholder return (TSR and return on capral emplayed (ROCE) The TSR performance condition is @ market-based
condiion n order 1o value the TSR performance condiions against the FTSE 250 and peer group, & Monte Carlo simulation
maodel s reguired which can simulate correfation between companies

waie Total
Date of grant 21 December 2016 25 November 2015
Options granted 1,933,352 1,930,624
Fair value at measurement date’ (£) 1.32 212
Share price on date of grant (£} 1.56 232
Exercise price {£) - -
Vesting period 3years 3years
Expected dividend yieid nfa n/a
Expected volathty 29.21% 26 07%
Risk free interest rate 0.23% p.a. C.8% p.a
Valuation medel Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
and Mante Carle and Monte Cario
Movements in the year:
. Options at beginning of the year - 1,816,636 1,816,636
| Granted during the year 1,933,352 - 1,933,352
| Exercised during the year _ _ ~
i Lapsed during the year (57143) {308,326) (365,469)
Expired in the year - - -
Options at the end of the year 1,875,209 1,508,310 3,384,513

Exercisable atend of the year - - -

Thus is the average “air val se of the farr vatues for the three trarches of the JTIP awares d.nng 2017
The weighted average of the average price for the LTIP award is nil

Expected volatiity was determined by calcufating the average historical volatdity over a pertod commensurate with the expected
Iife of the award for the LTIP based on the FTSE 250, which McCarthy & Stone are a constauent of postiPQ

Sharesave plan (‘SAYE')

The SAYE plan 1s an all-employee savings-related share optian plan Employees are invited to make regular monthly contributions
1o a SAYE scheme operated by Link Asset Services On completton of the comtract periad (three or five years} employees are able
to purchase ordinary shares in the Company based on the average closing niddle market price over the three days prigr

to the award, less 20% discount There are no performance conditions
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Weighted average
SAYE Total exercrse price
Date of grant 10 December 2015 10 December 2015
Options granted 2,912,247 1,197.514
Fair value at measurement date {£) 068 075
Share price on tate of grant () 234 234
Exercise price (F) 1.674 1.674
Veshing period 3years Syears
Expected dwidend yield 26 20% 28.16%
Expected volatiity 26.07% 26.07%
Risk free interest rate 8% p.a 12%p.2
Valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
Movements in the year
Options at begining of the year 2,653,028 1,161,675 3,814,703 1.674
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised dunng the year {15,365) - 15,365} 1674
Lapsed during the year (740.448) {234,829) (975,277} 1.674
Expired in the year - - - -
Options at the end of the year 1,897,215 926,846 2,824,061 1.674

Exercisable at end of the year

Expected volatility was determined by cafculaung the average historical volatiity over a peniod commensurate with the expected

Iife of the sawvings term for the SAYE options, based on the FTSE 250, wiich McCarthy & Stone are a constituent of gost-IPO

Share Incentive Piun {'51P'}

The SIF allows all employees to purchase partnership shares each manth from pre-tax pay, which are then held in trust These
shares can oe sold or taken from the SIP ar be left within the trust for as long as the plan remains open All plan shares and any
other assets held by the trustees will be held upon trust for the partcpants; there 1s therefore no impact to the Group’s financial

statements in respect of this plan

Annual and Deferred Bonus Plon (ABP’)

The ABP mncarporates the Company’s executive bonus scheme as well as a mechanism for the deferral of bonus into awards
over ordinary shares The Committee can deterrine that part of the bonus under the ABP s provided as an award of deferreq

shares, which takes the form of a £nil cost option The maximum value of deferred shares 15 50% of the bonus earned All

empioyees {including the Executive Directors) of the Group are eligible to parboipate in the ABP at the discretior of the Board
A 31 August 2017 three Executive Direclors were pariiopatng in the scheme For the year ended 31 August 2017, one-thirg of
the bonus earned by the CEQ and COO i the financial year, totaling £0 1m, will be deferred in the form of deferred shares for
three years, during which no performance conditions will aoply The amount deferred will be recognised over the three-year

deferral period

Total Share-based payment schemes

Analysis of the income charge 22: o
Equity-settled and cash-settied share-based payments

Management Incentive Plan - 04

Equity-settled share-based payments

SAYE 0.5 04

LTIP 0.4 0.7

0.9 1.1

0.9 1.5
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32. Subsidiaries

Company Class of 2017 2016
Name Principal activity number shares kil %
McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Limited Helding Company 06622183 Qrdinary 109 100
McCarthy &Stone Retrement Lifestyles Limited Developer 06622231 Ordinary 100 190
McCartiy & Stane [Equity interests) Lirmited Property Investment 05663330 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone {Home Equity Interests) Limited Property Investment 05984851 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Investmentt Properties No 23 Limited*  Property Investment 06496130 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stene (Total Care Living) Limited* Property investment 06069509 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Alnwick) Limited® Property Investment 0751781% Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone {Extra Care Liveng) Lirmited Property Investmerit 06897363 Ordnary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Limited Property Investment 06897301 Ordinary feo 100
McCarthy & Stone Rental interests No. 1 Limited* Property Investment 06897272 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Management Services Lirnited Developrment managernent 07166051 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Lifestyle Services Limited* Holding Company 07165986 Ordnary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Finanoial Services Limited* Finanaal Services 07798214 Ordinary 10 100
Keyworker Properties Limited Property Investment 04213618 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Store Estates Limited* Property Resale 07165952 Ordinary 100 100
YourLife Management Services Limited Development Management 0715351% QOrdinary 50 50
McCarthy & Stone Properties Limited* Dormant 01925738 Ordinary 100 100
The Planning Bureau Limited* Dormant 02207050 Ordinary 160 100
Ortus Homes Limited* Dormant 08658235 Crdinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Resales Lrnited* Property Resale 10716544 Ordinary 100 nfa
Linden Court Lirmited™ Darmant 04322139 Qrdinary 100 n/3
* Thase UK subsidiaries wil take advantage of the audie exemnpt an set out withint secuer 4794 of the Cormpamas Ac: 2006 for tha year anded 31 August 2017
The dormant companies have taken advantage of the secton 394A exempuon from preparing ndvidual accounts
Each of the above sharehoidings gives the immediate Parent Company 100% voting rights, with the exception of YourLife
Management Services Limited where the parent has 50% voting nghts, but the power tc appoint the majority of the Directors
Accordingly, this gives the Group power over the relevant activities of this entity
The registered address of all of the above subsidiaries s 4th Floor, 00 Holdenhurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BHE 8AQ
33. Related party transactions
Balances and transactions betweer: the Parent Company and its supsidiaries, which are related parties, have been
eliminated en consolidation and are not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and other related parties
are disclosed below
Remuneration of key management personnel
The key management personnel are the Executive Leadership Tearm The remuneration that they have recewed during the year
15 Set out below n aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Refated Party Disclosures’
2017 2016
Em £m
Short-term employee benefits 27 25
Socal securty (asts a4 a3
Share-based payments 0.4 09
Pension contnbutions 0.3 0.2
Terminatron payment - 0.4
38 43
Aggregate emoluments of the hughest paid Director 10 Q9

I 2016, as part of the Management Incentrve Plan shares totaling 33,098,147 were 1ssued to key management personnel,

prior to share consohdation Note 25 details movernents in share capital withan the year

34, Events after the balance sheet date

There were no everis after the reporting period that required adjustment or disclosure in the finanaal statements
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Parent Company

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 August 2017

2047 W

Notes £&m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 4 4394 439.4
Total non-current assets 439.4 439.4
Current assets
Jrade and other recenables 5 779 104.3
(ash and cash equivalents - -
Jotal current assets 779 104.3
Total assets 517.3 5437
Equity and liakilities
Capital and reserves
share capital 43.0 43¢
Share premiym 101.6 100.8
Retained earnings 3674 3543
Total equity 6 512.0 538.1
current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7 5.3 56
Total current liahilities 5.3 5.6
Total liabilities 53 5.6
Total equity and liabHities 517.3 5437

Notes 1 to 11 form part of the finantal staternents shown above
There were no recognised gains and losses for the year other than the profic for the year 2016 ml}

The Campany has elected 1o take the exemption under section 408 of the Cormpamies Act 2006 nat ta present the Parent
Company profit and loss account The Company recorded a profit for the year of £07m (2016 £1 7m)

These financial staternents of McCarthy & Stone plc {06622199) were approved by the Board on 13 November 2017
and signed on its behaif by

clive Fenton Rowan Baker
Director Director
o~ ~
‘r}‘,q,‘-"x\d\ﬁ;iuﬁ , )
‘u” g . ~ *&/
[ T
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Parent Company

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 August 2017

Share Share Retained
capltal premium earnings Tatal
Notes £m Em £m £m
Batance at 1 September 2015 3811 56.4 {2.5) 4350
Profit for the year - - 17 17
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1.7 17
Transactions with owners of the Company
Issue of ordinary shares 6 4.5 1048 - 109.7
Caprtal reduction of share capital and share premium 6 (3430} {56.4) 3994 -
Share-based payments 3 - - 13 11
Share issue related costs 6 - (4 0) - (40)
Dwvidends 5 - - (54 54
Balance at 31 August 2016 43.0 100.3 394.3 538.1
Profit for the year - - 07 o7
Tatal comprehensive income for the year - - 07 0.7
Transactions with owners of the Company
Share-based payments 9 - - 09 09
Dividends 6 ~ - {285) (28 5)
Share sssue related costs - tax oredit - 043 - 0.8
Balance at 31 August, 2017 43.0 101.6 367.4 512.0

Notes 1 to 11 form part of the tinancial statements shown above
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2017 016
Notes £m Em
Net cashinflow from uperating activities 8 28.5 54
Investing activities
Amounts owed in respect of share issuance 6 - (86.0}
Net cash used 1n investing activities - (86 0)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 6 - 860
Cividends paid & (28.5) {5.4)
(28.5) 806

Met cash from financing activities

Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes 1 to 11 form pai t of the financial statements shown apove
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

1. Accounting palicies

McCarthy & Stone ple 1s a public Imited haihty Camipany incarporated in England The Registered Office 15 4th Floor, 100
Holdenhurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BHS 8AQ Tre following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing
with the tlems that are considered matenal In refation to the financial statemenis, on an ongoing basss and in accordance with the
Companes Act 2006

Basis of preparation
The separate Company financial statements have been orepared Jnder the nistonical cost accounting rules and in accardance
with FRS 102, The Financal Reporung Standard appiicable in the United Kingdom ana the Repubiic of Ireland

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company 1s exemnpt from the requirement to present Its own profit and
loss account The Cornpany recorded a profit for the year of £0 7m (20%6 £17m)

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in Group undertakings are included in the Statemenit of Financial Position at cost less any provision for impairment )

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits wath an griginal maturity of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts

Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled ransacuans with employees s messured by reference to the fair value af the date 2t which they are
granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting per«od 1N valuing equity-settled transactions, no account 1s taken of any
non-market-based vesting conditions and no expense s recogrised for awards that do not ulnmately vest as a result of a failure to
sausfy a non-market-based vesting condinon

The cost of cash-settied transactions 1s measured at fairvalue Fairvalue 1s esumated wmitially at the grant date and at each
reporting percd end thereafter unul ehe awards are settled Market-based conditions are taken into account when degermining
far value

Further detars regarding the schemes are set out i note 31 to the consolidated finanaal statements

Dividend distribution
Gmdend distributions to McCarthy & Stone's sharehiolders are recogrised in the Company's finanaal statements i the periods
in which the final dvidends are approved at the Annual General Meeting, or when paid in the case of an interim dividend

Financial instruments
Financia! assets and financial babtlities are recogrused in the Company’s Statement of Finangial Position when the Company
becomes a party 10 the contractual provisions of the INstrument

Financiol assets

Al financial assets are normally recognised and derecogrised on the date that an agreement has been entered into where
the purchase or sale of a finanaial asset 1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the
urneframe estabhshed by ihe market, concerned They are inmialty rneasured at fair vatue, plus transaction costs, except for
thase financal assets dassified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are intally measured at farr vaiue

Fnancal assets are classified as loans and recenvables' The dassification depends on the nature and purpose of the financal
assets and s deterrmined at the time of imoal recognition

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other recevables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an acive

market are dassified 25 loans and recevables’ Loans and receivables are measured al amorised Cost using the effertve

Interest method, less any impairment Interest income 1s recogrised by applying the effecuve interest rate, except for !
short-term receivables when the recogmuion of interest would be imrnatenial
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1. Accounting policies continued
Financial assets are classified as Toans and recewvables’ The classification denends on the nature and purpose of the financial

assets and 1s determined at the ime of ntal recognimon

Loens and receivables

“rade recawables, loans and other recewables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
marker are classified as foans and recewables’ Loans ana receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any imparrment Interest nceme 1s recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term recevables when the recogntion of interest would be mmatenal

Financiol linbilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as erther financal iabiiues ar as equity in accordance with the substance of

the contractual arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity Instrument 1s any contract thar ewgences a resigual nterest in the assets of an enuity after deductng all of its
llabilisies Equity instrumants 1ssued by the Company are recogrised at the proceeds recewved, net of direct Issue costs

Financiai liabilities
Financial habilities are classified as ‘other financal habiites’

Other financial llabilities
Other financal habilities, including borrowings, are smivally measured al fair value, net of transaction casts

Other financial labihiues are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective iInterest method, with nterest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis

The effective interest method 15 a method of calculaung the amorused cost of 8 financial habihty and of allocating interest
expense over the refevant period The effective incerest rate 15 the ate that exactly discounts estirnated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial iability, or, where apprapriate, ashorter period, to the net carrying amaount on

mitial recogrition

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable 1o the 1ssue of new ordinary shares ar options are

shown in equity as a deducuon from the proceeds

Related parties
The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same Group Where appropriate,

transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opimon of the Directors, separate disclosure s necessary to
understand the effect of the transactions on the financial statements

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are descabed in note 1, the Directors are required to make
Judgements, estimates and assumplions about the carrying amounts of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis ReVISIoNs to accounting estimates are recognised
inthe period In which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periads if the revision affects both current and future perods

There are no specific critical judgements or key assumptions the Company makes about the future, or cther major sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting pertod, that are deemed to have a significant nsk of resulting In a matenial
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and hiabilities at the year end and within the next financial year
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued

3. 5taff costs
The Company had no employees during the penod cavered by these finangal staternents Costs relating to ume incurred by
Directors for Group actwities are recharged 1o McCarthy & Stone nlc

4. Investments in subsidiaries

m7 2076
Cost £m £m
T September 4394 4197
Additions - 197
At 31 August 439.4 4394
Net book value 4394 4394

Investments in subsidiary undertakings relate to a 100% ownership interest in McCartny & Stone (Developments) Limited

The Group's subsidiary undertakings for the period that are sigmficant for the period and traded during the period are fisted
m note 32 1o the conschaated finanaal statements

5. Trade and ather receivables

2017 016
£m Em

Amounts fatling due within one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 713 1043
UK corparation tax 0.6 -
s 104 3

Amounts repayable from McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2 2%
(2016 2 2%) at the year end date

6. Shareholders’ funds

The moverments of the share capital, share premium and equity reserve accounts are disdosed in note 25 and 26 to the
consohdated financtal staterments

Drvigends within the year are disclosed within note 25 (0 the consolidated financial statemenis

7. Trade and other payables

w17 2016
£m £m

Amounts falling due within ¢ne year:
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 53 5.6
5.3 5.6

Amounts payable to McCarthy & Stone (Developments} Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2 2% (2016 2 2%)
at the year end date
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8. Notes ta the cash flow statement

2017 016
Notes £m Em
Profit for the financial year 07 17
Adjustments for
Interest Income 1.9 (2 6)
Share option charge 2.2 11
Income tax expense 0.2 04
Operating cash flows before movements in warking capital (0.1} 0.5
Decrease / {increase) i trade and ather receivables 5 7.0 08)
(Decrease) / increase 1 trade and other payables 7 {0.3) 34
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 26.6 3.2
Interest receved t.9 26
Tax paid - G4
Cash generated by operations 28.5 5.4
Net cash inflow from operating activities 28.5 5.4

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances

9. Share-based payments

Fallowang the PO of the Company in Nevemnber 2015, the Companry entered into new share incentive plans Details of share
awards granted Oy the Company to employees of subsidiaries, and that remain outstanding at the year end over the Company's
shares, are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financat statements

The Company recogmsed an expense of £ 9m relating to equity-setlled share-based payment transactions in the year
12016 £11m}

10, Financial instrumtents
The Company tias the following financial instruments

2017 016
£m Em
Financial assets
Loans and receivables measured at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables 71.3 104 3
Cash and bank balances - -
773 104.3
Financicl liobifities
Loans and payables measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 53 56
53 - 56

The Compary has no gervative fimanaial nstruments  The fair value of the financial mstruments is equal to therr carrying values
11. Related party transactions

The Company is exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are wholly owned within the Group
See note 33 to the consolidated financial statements

Remuneration to key management personnel has been disclosed within note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
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Warning to
shareholders

the blue and offered shares that often turn out to be worthless
ar non-exsstent, or an nflated price for shares they gwn These
cails come from fraudsters cperating in ‘hosler rooms’ that are
mostly based abroad While high profits are promesed, those
wiho buy or sell shares in thus way usually ase therr money
These callers can be very persistent and extremely persuasive
They may even claim to be calling on behalf of the Compary

The Financal Conduct Authorty (FCA'Y has found most share
fraud vicums are experienced nvestors who lose an average
of £20,000, with around £200rm lost in the UK each year

Protect yourself

Yau are adwised to be extrernely wary if you are offered
unsolicited investment advice, discounted shares, a premium
price for shares you own, or free company or research reports
You should take these steps before handing over any money.

Get the name of the person and organisation
contacting you

Check the Financial Services Register at
http://www.fca.org.uk/ to ensure they are authorised

Use the details on the FCA Register to contact the firm

Call the FCA Consumer Helpline on: 0800 111 6768 if there
are no contact details on the Register or you are told they
are out of date

Search the FCA's list of unauthorised firms and individuals
to avoid doing business with.

REMEMBER: if it sounds too good to be true, it probably is!

if you use an unauthorised firm to buy or sell shares or
other investments, you will not have access to the Financial
Ombudsrman Service or Financial Services Compensation
Scheme {FSCS)if things go wrong

Report a scam

If you are approached abiout a share scam you should tell the
FCA using the share fraud reporung form at
www.fca.org.uk/consumers/report-scam-unauthorised-firm
where you ¢an find out about the latest investment scams

You can also call the Consumer Helphne on 0800 1116768

Ifyou have already paid money to share fraudsters you should
contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040
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STRATEGIC REFORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Historical
statistics
FY17 FY16 Y15 Fy14'
Legal cornpletians 2,302 2,29¢2 1,923 1,677
Gross average selling price £273k £264k £245k E222k
Reverue £660.9m £6359m £485,7m £387,8m
Profit before tax £92.1m £92.9m £80.9m £571m
Sharehalders’ funds £908.9m £919.8m £762 3m £4772m
ROCE 16% 20% 20% 17%
Tangibie gross asset value £645,7m £574.1m £513 5m £451 2m
Tangible net asset value £676.4m £626.8m £469 1M £402 3m
Basic earnings per share 13.8p 13.9p 13 5p* n/a*
Diadends for the year ? 5.4p 45p nit il
Number of shares inissue 537,329,434 537,314,069 n/a® n/a*
Number of shareholders 863 705 n/a® n/at

F¥15 and FY” d Ainancial sezremerts were pead ced oricr 1o our stock bxcharge hsing ahic cokolace o Novernnes 2075

~

_xcludes (~ree remmeraabun 5

3 “hedwcends miesnect afany [ rancislyear are fre intenm div dend which mas peen paic 3nd the ezt dividena wes b has ber- pronoesens
Divirdends were it pe g 1n FYE ar bVi4

he figure for tre FY” 5 -PSwas recakeulaied » he FYS Annuat Report and adp.s oo o refec. he 4 1 concolidat on of our share capital [Rac ook place 1In -¥16
prior years hava no™ peen adjusted

5 The Compat /s share copital at 3 Augesse 2075 a0 37 Augnst 2014 was 1905,949,4%  ord nary sheres of 20p es0m As part of the proparstior for bsomg, the nominal
value of the snares was reduced -o 2p, acdriorai shares were aliofrec anc 're snares were consof da od or a4 1 basis becomirg ordinary seares of 8p nominal val e

r The 1 mber of shareholders prior (o wur i ing on 11 Novernber 2015 has not teer aisclosed on (e grounds af ireaievance

Cautionary statement regarding forward-laoking statements

Some of the iInformation in this document may contain pro};ectnons or other forward-focking statements regarding future events
or the future finanaat performance of McCarthy & Stone plc and its subsidianes (the Group} You can identify forward-looking
statements by terms such as ‘expect, believe’, ‘anuapate’, ‘esumate’, intend’, 'wilt, ‘could’, 'may’ or ‘might’, the negative of such
terms or ather similar expressions McCarthy & Stone pic (the Company) wishes to caurion you that these statements are only
predictions and that actual events or results may differ matenally The Company does not intend to update these statements
to reflect events and cIrcumstances occurring after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events Many
factors could cause the actual results to differ materially from those contained in projections or forward-looking statements of
the Groui:), ncluding among others, general ecanomic conditions, the competitive enviranment as well as many other risks
spefﬂﬂcal y related to the Group and #s operanions Past performance of the Group cannot be relied on as a guide to future
performance
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General
L] .
l nfo rl I Iatl O n McCarthy & Stone pic s a pubbic Company hrited by shares and

registered In England and Wafes, registered number 06622199
Our registered and head office 1s situated at

4th Floor

100 Holdenhurst Road

Bournemouth

Dorset

BH8 BAQ

Telephore 01202 292480

Corporate website www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk
Consumer website www.meccarthyandstone.co.uk

Email investor-relations@mccarthyandstone.co.uk

Qur ardinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange
{prermum listing) and we are in the FTSE 250 Index

Lega] Enuty identfier {LEl;
213800CEJ40QS5YPUBZI7

International Securiies Idenufication Number (SIN}
GBOOBYNVDO82

Ticker Symbol MCS

Advisers
Legal adviser Registrar
Allen & Query LLP Link Asset Sefvices
The Registry
Financial adviser 34 Beckenham Road
Rothschuic Beckenham
Kent BR3 4TU
Financial and corporate
¢ommunications Statutory auditar
Powerscourt Deloitte LLP
Banker
HSBC Bank pic
Joint corporate brokers
Deutsche Bank
Peel Hunt

Contact detaifs for our registrars, Link Asser Services

Calls from the UK 0871 664 0300 (talis cost 10p per
rminute, plus any network extras,
lines are open Monday to Fnday
from 9amto 5 30pm, excluding
UK public hoiidays)

Calls from cutside the UK +44 208 639 3399

Email enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk
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3 Divisions & 9 Regions

N N

Scotland

Unig 11000, Academy Park
Gower Street

Glasgow

G51 1PR

Tel 0141 420 8300

Nerth East

Aspen Hause

Wykeham Road
Northminster Business Park
\L;Jpﬁer Poppleton

(e}
Y026 GOW
Tel 01904 444200

Graphic removed East Midlands
North West Gnon House
Unit 3, Egward Court Qrion Way
Altrincham Business Park Kettering
Altrincham NN15 6PE
WATZ 5GL Tel 01536 220 700
Tel 0161 941 6255
West Midlands
Ross House
Harry Weston Road
Binley Business Park
Coventry
CV32TR
h North London
Tel: 02476 441199 Prospect Place
85 Great North Road
South West ;’Eéﬁggj'q
First Floot, Blackibreok Gate 1
Blackbrook Park Averue Tel: 01707 446000
Taunton
TA1 2PX
Tel 01823 200500 South East
2 Geness Business Park
|_ _’ Afbert Drwve
Woking
GU27 5RW
Head Office Southern Tel 01483 508600
4th Foor Seuthern House
100 Haldenhurst Road 1 Embankment Way
Bournemouth, Dorset Ringwood
BHB 8AQ BH24 1EU
Tel 01202 292480 Tel 01425 322000
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Glossary

ASP

‘BSG'

‘Capital turn

pacily
‘I

‘Company’
cqQr

‘DCLG"

‘EPS’

‘FRI

‘FTSE”
‘Gearing’

‘Group’

Po

‘Land bani’

‘LIBOR’

average selling price  the average
price agreed for sales of apartmeants
n the year after deducung list price
discaunts and part-exchange Wp-ups

the Bullding Safety Group s a not-for-
profit erganisauon which specialises
0 providing Healtn, Safety and
Environmental advice for The
canstruction industry

calculated by dviding revenue by
the average opening and closing.
tamgible gross asset value In the vear

cash generating unit

the Commumity Infrastructure Levy
of the Communny Infrastructure
Lewy Regulations 2010

McCarthy & Stone pic

the Care Quality Commissian is an
executive non-departmental public
bedy of the Department of Health
which regulates and inspects health
and saaal care services i England

the Department for Comimunities
and Locat Government

profit atiributable to ordinary
sharehalders (excluding excepuanal
nems) dvided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in 1ssue
dunng the financial year

freehold reversionary interest -

the freehold of each of the Group's
developments in England and Wales
which include the future iIncome
stream of ground rents which can
be sold o third parties

the Financial Times Stock Exchange

geann% is calculated by dviding
net debit by net assets

the Campany and 1Ts consclidated
subsidianes and subsidrary
undertakings

Intvial Public Offering

Includes owned sites and
exchanged sites

the London inierbank ofiered rate
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‘MSMS’

‘Net assets’

‘Net debt/cash’

‘NHBC’
‘PRS’
‘ROCE’

‘Section 106

‘TGAV'

‘TNAV"

TSR’

‘Underlying
profit before tax’

YLMS'

McCarthy & Stone Management
services Limited - a whaolly-owned
subsidiary of the Compariy that
proviges management services
to homeowners in the Group's
Retirernent Living and Lifesiyle
Living devefopments

net assets s calculated as total assets
less total habiities

cash and cash equivalents less
long-term and shart-teren borrowings
(excluding unamorused debt

ISsUe Cosis)

National House Building Council
Prvate Rented Sector

refurn on capital employed - calculated
by dnviding underlying operaung profit
by the average open\n% and closing
tangiole gross asset value in the year

the legally-bnding agreements or
planning obligations entered mto
betweer: a landowner and a local
planning authority, under section
106 of the Town and Country
Planning Acl 1990

tangible gross asset value - calculated
as TNAV less net debi/cash

tangible net asset value - calculated
as net assets excluding goodwil and
ntangible assets

total shareholder return - 1s @
measurement of the performgnce
of the Group’s share price since the
IPC It combines the share price
appreciatron and dividends paid

to show the total return to the
sharehoiders expressed as a
percentage

calculated by adding smorusation
of brand and exceptionat
admrmustrative expenses to profic
before tax

Yourtife Management Services
Limited - 3 subsidiary of MSMS
owned 50/50 by MSMS and Somerset
Care Group Lemited, that prowides
managernent services, domestic
assistance, persanal care and
addwonal support io hameowners

in the Group's Retirement Living Plus
developments




McCarthy & Stone

—— Retirement living to the fuli —

4th Floor

100 Holdenhurst Road
Bournemouth

Dorset

BHE 8AQ

Tel 01202 292 480

Website www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk Twitter twitter com/mecarthystone
Email investor-relations@mccarthyandstone co uk Facebook facebook com/mccarthystone
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